
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 
3TN on THURSDAY, 4 OCTOBER 2007 at 11:30 AM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

 
1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 6th 
September 2007. 
 
 

Mrs H J Taylor 
388008 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any agenda item.  Please see Notes 1 and 2 below. 
 
 

 

3. ST. IVO OUTDOOR CENTRE:  RELEASE OF SECTION 106 
FUNDING  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Leisure Centres Co-ordinator regarding 
the funding of a scheme to extend facilities at the St Ivo Outdoor 
Centre. 
 

S Bell 
388049 

4. MEDIUM TERM PLAN - REQUEST FOR THE RELEASE OF 
FUNDS  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

5. CULTURAL STRATEGY  (Pages 11 - 104) 
 

 

 With the assistance of a report by the Head of Environmental and 
Community Health Services to consider the contents of the Cultural 
Strategy. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 

6. SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY (DRAFT)  (Pages 105 - 
106) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Policy and Strategic Services 
seeking approval for the Sustainable Community Strategy. NB the 
Strategy is not included within these papers and will be 
despatched separately. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 



 
 
7. TREASURY MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE  

(Pages 107 - 110) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services on the 
performance of the Investment Fund for the period April to August 
2007. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

8. VOLUNTARY SECTOR COMMISSIONING  (Pages 111 - 118) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environmental and Community 
Health Services outlining a proposal to replace the existing grant aid 
allocation process with a commissioning framework linked to the 
Council’s identified community objectives. 
 
 

D Smith 
388377 

9. PROMOTING BETTER HEALTH IN OLDER PEOPLE THROUGH 
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY  (Pages 119 - 132) 

 

 

 To consider the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service 
Delivery) regarding the needs of older people and the services 
available to them. 
 

A Roberts 
388009 

10. REPRESENTATION ON COMMITTEES/ADVISORY GROUPS   
 

 

 In light of full Council’s decision on 21st September 2007 to appoint 
Councillor Dew as Executive Councillor for Leisure Centres, the 
Cabinet may wish to review as necessary membership of the various 
committees/advisory groups to which they appoint. 
 

Mrs H J Taylor 
388008 

11. SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP  (Pages 133 - 140) 
 

 

 To receive the reports of the meetings of the Safety Advisory Group 
held on 13th June and 12th September 2007. 
 

Mrs H J Taylor 
388008 

   
 Dated this 26 day of September 2007  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 



 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 

Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 01480 
388008/e-mail Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any 
Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would 
like information on any decision taken by the Committee/Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit and to make their way to the car park adjacent to the Methodist Church on the High 
Street (opposite Prima's Italian Restaurant). 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the the Council 

Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
on Thursday, 6 September 2007. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor L M Simpson  – Vice-Chairman. 
   
  Councillors P L E Bucknell, A Hansard, 

C R Hyams, Mrs D C Reynolds, T V Rogers 
and L M Simpson. 

   
 APOLOGY: An apology for absence from the meeting 

was submitted on behalf of Councillor 
I C Bates. 

   
    
 
 

52. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 19th July 2007 
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Vice-Chairman. 
 

53. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 No declarations were received. 
 

54. FINANCIAL FORECAST   
 

 Further to Minute No. 07/21 and by way of a report by the Head of 
Financial Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
the Cabinet were acquainted with a financial forecast for the period up 
to 2017/18 in terms of three assumed scenarios.  The outcome of 
deliberations by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Corporate and 
Strategic Framework) on the matter also were noted. 
 
Having regard to information contained in the report, the uncertainty 
as to the future levels of Government grant, the implications of 
possible changes to the concessionary fares scheme and the 
upcoming review of schemes in the Medium Term Plan, the Cabinet  
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the contents of the report be noted; and 
 
 (b) that in considering the financial forecast for the period 

ending 2017/2018 full Council’s attention be drawn to – 
 

♦  past successes in controlling spending and 
obtaining additional grant funding, the 
continuation of which it is hoped will form 
important elements in reducing future spending; 

♦  the development of five-year visions which it is 
anticipated will contribute towards additional 

Agenda Item 1

1



spending reductions and help prioritise 
proposals for service developments; and 

♦  the major uncertainty over future grant levels 
and the consequent inability to develop 
accurate plans until the three year grant levels 
are known in December. 

 

55. GREAT FEN PROJECT PARTNERSHIP   
 

 Further to Minute No. 07/48 and by way of a report by the Director of 
Operational Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) Members considered a request by the Middle Level 
Commissioners to become a partner of the Great Fen Project 
alongside the District Council, the Environment Agency, English 
Nature and the Wildlife Trust for Cambridgeshire  
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the request by Middle Level Commissioners to 

become full partners of the Great Fen Project be 
welcomed and that the Director of Operational 
Services be authorised to sign the resulting revised 
Memorandum of Agreement; and 

 
 (b) that the Director of Operational Services, after 

consultation with the Executive Member for Planning 
Strategy, Environment and Transport, be authorised to 
sign any future changes to the Memorandum of 
Agreement, which accord with Council Policy and do 
not prejudice the fundamental objectives of the Project.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

2



 1 

CABINET 4TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

ST. IVO OUTDOOR CENTRE:  RELEASE OF SECTION 106 FUNDING 
 

(Report by Leisure Centres Co-ordinator) 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1  Cabinet are reminded that an MTP scheme to develop additional 

changing accommodation at St. Ivo Outdoor Centre and Priory Park, St 
Neots to cope with increased demand, especially for junior football, was 
approved initially in 2003, with the possibility of grant from the Football 
Foundation.  Subsequently in February 2006, Cabinet were informed 
that provision had been made in Section 106 Agreements for nearby 
housing development at St Ives for contributions to be made to off-site 
development at the Outdoor Centre.  As the cost of the new facilities at 
Priory Park was higher than originally forecast, Cabinet agreed to 
allocate the whole of the MTP provision to the latter scheme and to meet 
the cost of the St Ivo scheme, net of grant from the Foundation, from the 
Section 106 receipts. 

 
1.2   The scheme at the Outdoor Centre comprises additional changing 

accommodation, new training and lecture facilities, demolition and 
relocation of the groundsman’s store to facilitate the building extension, 
additional car parking to meet increased demand and a cycle-way 
through the site to connect the new developments to the local primary 
school. 

 
1.3 Funding for the project, estimated to cost £1m, was to be met equally 

from Section 106 contributions for the developments at St. Ives Golf 
Club, Houghton Grange and Houghton Road and from grant from the 
Football Foundation.  

 
2. CURRENT SITUATION 
 
2.1 Preparation of the bid to the Football Foundation has been undertaken 

by a professional agency which included consultation with existing and 
potential user groups.  Prior to its submission, the Foundation indicated 
that they had additional funding available and they suggested the 
inclusion within the bid of a second synthetic pitch at the Centre, the cost 
of which (estimated at £500,000) would be met by the Foundation. This 
would comprise ‘third generation (3G)’ turf, suitable for football only, with 
full floodlighting.   

 
2.2 Consequently, further work on the bid has taken place and this will be 

submitted before the end of September 2007.  The extended scheme 
estimate now totals £1.5 million with grant now sought from the Football 
Foundation of £1 million and the remaining cost met from Section 106 
contributions. 

 
2.3 This scheme provides an excellent opportunity to increase facility 

provision to meet growing demand, especially for youngsters, and 
increase income generation without capital expenditure on the part of 
the Council.  The number of grass pitches at St. Ivo will be reduced by 

Agenda Item 3

3



 2 

one but the new pitch will be configured to allow either one full-size or up 
to 3 smaller games to take place simultaneously.  With floodlighting the 
additional usage will be substantial and although some existing bookings 
will transfer from the current synthetic pitch, it should be possible to fill 
most of that space with additional hockey activity and waiting-list 
bookings. 

 
2.4 The Football Foundation bid will be determined in October/November 

2007 and although there is no guarantee of success, the close liaison 
with County Football Association, Local Football Partnership (LFP) and 
the Football Foundation representatives in the formulation of the 
application suggests the chances are good with clear evidence of unmet 
demand and a strategic need.  

 
3. SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
 
3.1 The agreements require payment of the contributions to the Council 

before the first dwelling on each of the sites is occupied or the letting of 
the contract for the off-site work, whichever is the later.  However, all of 
the planning permissions are outline and the most likely forecast is that 
occupation of the first dwelling at two of the sites will be in approximately 
two years.  The timescale is more difficult to predict at Houghton Grange 
but this does represent the smallest of the three contributions at 
£30,000.   

 
3.2 If approval is obtained from the Football Foundation, the scheme will 

precede the housing development but will be unable to proceed unless 
funding is provided by the Council in advance of the Section 106 
receipts.  This will not conflict with the provision made in the 
Agreements.  There is a risk that the developments may not proceed or 
that they may be delayed for some time which would result in the 
Council failing to be reimbursed or this taking longer than envisaged.  
The risk of not receiving Section 106 agreed funding is, however, 
considered minimal. Conversely, the opportunity of additional grant from 
the Foundation of £500,000 is unlikely to be repeated. 

 
4. REVENUE IMPACT 
 
4.1 The following table represents an achievable and realistic forecast of 

income and expenditure over the next ten years for the new synthetic 
pitch and associated changing and training facilities (prices as at 2007 
levels).  This includes loss of interest for Council funding for up to two 
years in advance of the receipt of Section 106 funding and an estimate 
for loss of income resulting from departure of existing bookings from the 
current synthetic pitch.  

 
 Income projections are based on 66% occupancy at weekday peak 

times and 20% occupancy at weekends during the football season (32 
weeks), and half that figure during the out of season period (18 weeks). 
Expenditure includes a replacement pitch surface in year 10. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 3 

£k Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Total 

New 
Bookings 

53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 575 

Training 
Room 

2 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 40 

Total Income 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 615 

Electricity 7 7 8 8 9 9 10 10 11 11 90 

Rates 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 

Maintenance 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 70 

Cleaning 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 

Loss of 
Interest 

30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60 

Total 
Expenditure 

44 44 16 16 18 18 20 20 22 22 230 

Lost existing 
pitch income 

6 6 5 5 4 4 3 3 2 2 40 

Net surplus 5 6 36 37 37 38 38 39 39 40 315 

Replacement 
Pitch surface 

         120 120 

Cumulative 
Surplus 

5 11 47 84 121 159 197 236 275 195 195 

 
4.2 Income does not take into account any additional bar and catering 

proceeds which the increased attendances will generate. 
 
4.3 Realisation of the above could increase admissions to the centre by up 

to 30,000 per annum the majority of whom will be under 15 years of age.  
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The scheme has developed substantially over the past two years and 

the completed bid to the Football Foundation will be for grant of 
approximately £1 million.  Although the Council’s 33% contribution to the 
total estimated cost of £1.5 million can be met from Section 106 receipts 
from nearby development, this will not be available in time for the 
anticipated start on site early in 2008 with completion by the ensuing 
summer holiday period. 

 
5.2 The scheme will not require any capital contribution from the Council’s 

reserves and is shown as a nil contribution in the approved MTP.  
Minimal additional staffing costs will be required to operate the extended 
facilities at the Outdoor Centre and these are forecast to generate net 
additional income of around £41,000 per annum.  The scheme is, 
however, dependent upon the Council being prepared to fund a 33% 
contribution in advance of the receipt of the Section 106 funding. 

 
5.3 The scheme provides an opportunity to enhance the facilities at the 

Outdoor Centre and generate both higher attendances and additional 
net income.  It meets several of the objectives contained in the Council’s 
Corporate Plan ‘Growing Success’ by encouraging participation in active 
leisure pursuits and providing a new cycleway, while at the same time 
maximising external funding and reducing the Council’s net expenditure. 

 
6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
6.1 Cabinet therefore are 
 

RECOMMENDED 
 

(a) to approve the submission of a bid for funding from the Football 
Foundation in the sum of £1 million towards a total scheme cost of 

5



 4 

£1.5 million for the development proposed at the St Ivo Outdoor 
Centre as outlined in the report; and 

 
(b) to meet the cost of the Council’s contribution to the scheme in the 

sum of £0.5 million in advance of the receipt of Section 106 
contributions from developments at Houghton Grange, Houghton 
Road and St. Ives Golf Club allocated to this project in those 
agreements. 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
Planning permissions and Section 106 Agreements for development at Houghton 
Grange, Houghton Road and St Ives Golf Club, St Ives. 
Application for funding to Football Foundation for St Ivo Outdoor Centre scheme. 
Huntingdonshire District Council Corporate Plan. 
 
 
Contact 
Officers: 

Simon Bell – Leisure Centres Co-ordinator 
 

 ((((  01480 388049 
 

6



  
  
CABINET 4 OCTOBER 2007 
  

MEDIUM TERM PLAN 
REQUESTS FOR RELEASE OF FUNDS 

 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Cabinet to decide whether to 

release funds for the MTP scheme detailed in the attached annexes.  
 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 The Council agreed in December 2005 that, having regard to the 
implications for future spending and Council Tax levels, Directors 
review with appropriate Executive Councillors the need for 
schemes/projects included in the MTP but not yet started and that 
specific prior approval be sought and obtained from the Cabinet 
before such schemes/projects are implemented. 
 

2.2 Officers have identified the schemes that they wish Cabinet to consider 
releasing funding for and have discussed them with the relevant 
Executive Councillor. 

 

2.3 Annex A summarises and the following Annexes detail these requests.  
 

 

3. RECOMMENDATION  
 
3.1 The Cabinet is recommended to release the funds shown in Annex A. 
 

 
 
 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
None 
 
 
Contact Officer:  
Steve Couper 
Head of Financial Services     (((( 01480 388103

Agenda Item 4

7



  

A
N
N
E
X
 A
 

    
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 

N
e
t 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
(£
’0
0
0
) 

N
e
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
(£
’0
0
0
) 

 A
n

n
ex

 
 

2
0

0
6

/ 

2
0

0
7

 

2
0

0
7

/ 

2
0

0
8

 

2
0

0
8

/ 

2
0

0
9

 

2
0

0
9

/ 

2
0

1
0

 

2
0

1
0

/ 

2
0

1
1

 

2
0

1
1

/ 

2
0

1
2

 

2
0

0
6

/ 

2
0

0
7

 

2
0

0
7

/ 

2
0

0
8

 

2
0

0
8

/ 

2
0

0
9

 

2
0

0
9

/ 

2
0

1
0

 

2
0

1
0

/ 

2
0

1
1

 

2
0

1
1

/ 

2
0

1
2

 

B
 

7
0
8
 C
o
n
d
it
io
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 (
a
ll
 L
e
is
u
re
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
) 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 –
 S
y
n
th
e
ti
c
 

p
it
c
h
 r
e
s
u
rf
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
-m
o
d
e
l 
 

 

1
 

-8
 

-9
 

-8
 

-1
0
 

 

9
5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

o
ta

l a
m

o
u

n
t 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 r
el

ea
se

 n
o

w
 r

eq
u

es
te

d
 

 
1
 

-8
 

-9
 

-8
 

-1
0
 

 
9
5
 

 
 

 
 

8



  

 

A
N
N
E
X
 B
 

 7
0
8
 C
o
n
d
it
io
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 (
a
ll
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
) 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 –
 S
y
n
th
e
ti
c
 p
it
c
h
 r
e
s
u
rf
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 

re
-m
o
d
e
l 

P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
–
 S
im
o
n
 B
e
ll
  
  
  

 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

N
e
t 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 

 
2
0
0
6
/ 

2
0
0
7
 

2
0
0
7
/ 

2
0
0
8
 

2
0
0
8
/ 

2
0
0
9
 

2
0
0
9
/

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
1
0
/ 

2
0
1
1
 

2
0
1
1
/

2
0
1
2
 

2
0
1
2
/

2
0
1
3
 

2
0
0
6
/ 

2
0
0
7
 

2
0
0
7
/ 

2
0
0
8
 

2
0
0
8
/ 

2
0
0
9
 

2
0
0
9
/

2
0
1
0
 

2
0
1
0
/ 

2
0
1
1
 

2
0
1
1
/

2
0
1
2
 

2
0
1
2
/

2
0
1
3
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 N

e
t 
B
u
d
g
e
t 

(T
o
ta
l 
C
o
n
d
it
io
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
) 

 
2
2
2
 

1
7
1
 

2
5
0
 

2
5
6
 

2
6
0
 

2
3
1
 

 
1
,4
7
9
 
1
,3
1
3
 

8
5
7
 

4
9
8
 

4
7
7
 

 

In
c
o
m
e
 

(I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 U
s
a
g
e
) 

 
3
 

-6
 

-7
 

-7
 

-8
 

-8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

(S
a
v
in
g
s
 o
n
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
) 

 
-2
 

-2
 

-2
 

-2
 

-2
 

-2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
m
o
u
n
t 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 

n
o
w
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
  

(N
e
t 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t)
 

 
1
 

-8
 

-9
 

-8
 

-1
0
 

-1
0
 

 
9
5
 

 
 

 
 

 

  S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 

 

v
 
T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
L
e
is
u
re
 C

e
n
tr
e
s
 C

o
n
d
it
io
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
rk
e
d
 a
s
 a
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
e
 (
2
0
0
7
) 
it
e
m
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts
 u
rg
e
n
t 
n
a
tu
re
. 

 v
 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 L
e
is
u
re
 C

e
n
tr
e
’s
 s
y
n
th
e
ti
c
 p
it
c
h
 w
a
s
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 (
1
9
9
2
) 
w
it
h
 a
 t
e
n
-y
e
a
r 
lif
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
.1
5
 y
e
a
rs
 h
e
n
c
e
 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 u
rg
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 
 v
 
R
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 l
ik
e
 w

it
h
 l
ik
e
, 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w

o
u
ld
 s
p
lit
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 7
-a
-s
id
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 i
n
to
 t
w
o
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 f
iv
e
-a
-s
id
e
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 a
 

fo
o
tb
a
ll 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
rt
if
ic
ia
l 
s
u
rf
a
c
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 i
n
s
e
t 
g
o
a
ls
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
fe
n
c
in
g
. 
 

 

9



  

v
 
T
h
is
 w

o
u
ld
 a

llo
w
 t
w
o
 g

a
m
e
s
 t
o
 o

c
c
u
r 
s
id
e
 b

y
 
s
id
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

o
te
n
ti
a
l 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 1

4
 t
o
 2

0
 p

e
r 
h
o
u
r,
 r
a
is
in
g
 t
o
ta
l 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 2
3
,0
0
0
 (
fr
o
m
 1
8
,0
0
0
).
 

 
v
 
W
o
rk
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 a
 f
o
u
r/
fi
v
e
 w

e
e
k
 p
e
ri
o
d
 w

h
e
n
 o
u
td
o
o
r 
b
o
o
k
in
g
s
 a
re
 a
t 
th
e
ir
 l
o
w
e
s
t.
 T
h
is
 w

o
u
ld
 m

in
im

is
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re
 w

ill
 b
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 (
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 £
3
k
) 
w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 r
e
c
o
u
p
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
e
d
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
o
o
k
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 h
o
u
s
e
d
. 

 v
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 £
3
0
k
 p
a
. 
R
e
v
is
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
it
c
h
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
is
 t
o
 a
ro
u
n
d
 £
3
6
k
, 
w
it
h
 n
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
. 
M
o
n
th
ly
 b
ru
s
h
in
g
 (
£
3
k
 p
a
) 

w
ill
 n
o
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
. 

   

J
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
R
e
le
a
s
e
 

 

v
 
P
it
c
h
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
e
n
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 t
o
ta
lle
d
 £
6
k
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 f
ig
u
re
 w
ill
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
it
c
h
 a
g
e
s
 u
n
le
s
s
 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
ta
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
. 

 v
 
D
u
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
a
ir
 t
im

e
s
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
c
c
u
rs
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 h
o
n
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
b
o
o
k
in
g
s
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

re
g
u
la
r 
lo
s
s
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
. 

 
v
 
S
y
n
th
e
ti
c
 p
it
c
h
 h
ir
e
 c
o
s
ts
 u
p
 t
o
 £
3
6
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
ta
te
 o
f 
th
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 a
s
 p
o
o
r 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

 
v
 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
e
n
c
e
 r
e
p
a
ir
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
y
 u
p
 t
o
 2
0
%
. 

 
v
 
T
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
in
ju
ry
 c
la
im

s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
H
D
C
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
b
o
th
 t
h
e
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
e
n
c
in
g
. 
 

 
 

10



CABINET 
 4TH OCTOBER 2007 
 

CULTURAL STRATEGY REPORT 
 

Report by Head of Environmental and Community Health Services 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ consent to the adoption 

and implementation of a Culture Strategy for Huntingdonshire. The 
development and implementation of a Cultural Strategy is a key   
objective of the Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership (Culture 
and Leisure Thematic Group) and the Huntingdonshire Children and 
Young People's Strategic Partnership. 

 
2.          PROGRESS 
 
2.1 The strategy explores the policy context for culture in the district, 

examines existing provision as well as identifying a clear action plan for 
the coming three years to meet identified cultural themes. It is intended 
to help those engaged in delivering or planning services; they will be 
able to place their activity in context, justify funding and understand the 
overall impact of their work.   

 
2.2        The first draft of the cultural strategy was distributed on the 1st May 2007 

for consultation to members of the Culture and Leisure Thematic group 
and wider stakeholders at both local and county level and was linked to 
the current process of reviewing Huntingdonshire’s Community Strategy 
in order to produce a Sustainable Community Strategy. It was presented 
to the Huntingdonshire Children and Young People's Strategic 
Partnership on 5 July 2007. Consultees were asked to identify the 
Culture and Leisure Issues, needs and aspirations that affect 
Huntingdonshire. All feedback received was used to further develop the 
strategy. 

 
2.3    A copy of the draft strategy was later submitted to COMT, on 14th 

August, and to the Overview and Scrutiny panel (Service Delivery), on 
4th September, for comment.  

 
2.4 The key comments made by members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

panel are listed below: 

• The strategy is ambitious. The delivery involves a degree of risk as 
some aspects are dependent on the funding available. However the 
aspirational character of the strategy was endorsed as a means to 
help secure external funding. 

•  Where possible Section 106 funding should be secured to support 
the delivery of the strategy. 

• Investment in facilities and improvements in leisure infrastructure is 
needed within Huntingdonshire. 

• Accessibility is an issue in outlying rural areas of the district 
particularly with regards to transport. 

• Regard should be had to the Government’s “Youth Offer” 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

11



3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The development and implementation of a Cultural Strategy is a key   

objective of the Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership. The 
strategy explores the policy context, examines existing provision as well 
as identifying a clear action plan for the coming three years. The draft 
strategy has been subject to wide consultation and has been amended 
where appropriate, to take account of relevant comments received.  The 
draft document has been used as a reference in the current review of 
the community strategy for Huntingdonshire and there will be on ongoing 
process to ensure the documents are closely linked. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Cabinet is asked to consent to the adoption and implementation of the 

Culture Strategy for Huntingdonshire. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Huntingdonshire Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership, 19 July 2006  
Huntingdonshire Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership, 5 July 2007. 
 

Chris Lloyd. ( 01480 388290 Contact Officer: 

Howard Thackeray (((( 01480 388035 

 
 

12



 

Cultural Strategy 
for Huntingdonshire 

 

(2007 – 2010) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 

1
3



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

                               1. INTRODUCTION 
 

 

Culture has a fundamental role to play in community life by providing opportunities to improve standards of 

health, well-being and quality of life.  It can also contribute to, and develop, economically vibrant communities, 
with positive benefits for local and regional tourism, increased investment in culture-led growth and 
regeneration, and positive impacts on housing and employment opportunities, reinforcing the notion of 
sustainable communities.  Acknowledging the importance of culture, the Council will work towards meeting the 
following vision statement: 

 

To enhance the quality of life and ensure that all of Huntingdonshire’s residents have the 
opportunity to pursue a wide range of high-quality, sustainable cultural activities that fully 
reflect the diverse needs of the district  
 
 

What is Culture? 
 
The Department for Culture, Media and Sport defines ‘culture’ as having the following key characteristics: 
 

“Culture has both a material and a value dimension and includes a wide range of activities including arts, 
media, sports, parks, museums, libraries, the built heritage, the countryside, and playgrounds.”   
 

With this definition in mind, the scope of this Strategy includes: 
 

§ Arts - The performing and visual arts, crafts, design and fashion 

§ Built heritage - The built heritage, architecture landscape and archaeology 

§ Leisure – Formal and informal leisure pursuits 

§ Libraries - Libraries, literature, writing and publishing 

§ Museums - Museums, artefacts and archives 

§ Open space - Parks, open spaces, wildlife habitats, water environments and countryside recreation 

§ Play - Children’s play, playgrounds and play activities 

§ Sports - Events, facilities and development 

1
4



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

2. LOCAL CONTEXT 
 

 

District Profile 
 

Huntingdonshire is predominantly a rural district, covering an area of approximately 350 square miles, and has a 
population of 162,000 (Mid-2005 population estimate, ONS).  Approximately half of the district’s residents live in 
four market towns - Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey, with the remaining residents distributed within 
key settlements and rural villages. 
 
Given the rural nature of much of the district, isolation is seen as a major issue.  Indeed, rural areas often lack an 
adequate range of services and facilities in their immediate localities.  Therefore, this strategy looks at 
addressing the negative effects of isolation ensuring that all residents, irrespective of their location, can access 
culture and cultural services. 
 
The majority of housing and economic growth has been, and will continue to be, located within the district’s 
largest towns of Huntingdon and St Neots.  Lesser scale development is planned in other market towns such as 
St Ives and Ramsey. In rural areas new development will be limited and will be restricted to a number of key 
settlements. In villages there will be limited growth to meet local needs. The Council’s Corporate Plan also states 
that resources will be focused upon the need to reinvigorate all of the district’s towns and to assist more deprived 
communities, including rural areas.  When considering all of these different growth pressures, it is vital that all 
communities have access to, and can participate in, culture and cultural activities.  

 

Policy Context 
 

The development of a Cultural Strategy is of high priority to the district as it is identified as a key objective of the 
Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership and also within the Huntingdonshire Children and Young People’s 
Plan.  Therefore, it is important that this Cultural Strategy has strong links to the Council’s emerging Sustainable 
Community Strategy.  Aside from the importance at the district level, key national and regional policy also has an 
impact upon culture within Huntingdonshire, examples being Living East’s Regional Cultural Strategy, ““A Better 
Life: the role of culture in the sustainable development of the East of England”, and the county-wide, “A Cultural 
Strategy for Children and Young People in Cambridgeshire”. 

1
5



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

3. AUDITS OF PROVISION 
 

 

Existing cultural offer in Huntingdonshire 
 

A detailed audit of existing provision has been completed for all areas of culture – please refer to the Cultural 
Strategy for a full breakdown of provision levels.  In summary: 
 

§ Arts Services deliver a range of activities and events including ‘Art Attack’, ‘Hinchingbrooke Spring Music’, 
‘Riverside Music’, ‘Huntingdonshire Arts Diary, and the ‘Arts and Health Referral Scheme’.  The Council also 
works in partnership with other organisations such as ‘Vital Communities’, and ‘Arts in Cambs on Tour’. 

§ With regard to the Built Heritage, the District has 58 Grade I listed buildings, 133 Grade II listed buildings and 
2032 Grade III listed buildings.  There are a further 60 conservation areas in Huntingdonshire. 

§ There are eight libraries in the district and 1 library access point. 
§ Museums in the district include the Ramsey Rural Museum, the Norris Museum (St Ives), St Neots Museum, 

Blacked-Out Britain War Museum (Huntingdon) and the Cromwell Museum (Huntingdon). 

§ The District Council has five Leisure Centres located in St Ives, Huntingdon, St Neots, Ramsey and Sawtry.  
There are also seven privately owned health and fitness centres, whilst a further 85 community facilities are 
owned or maintained by Parish / Town Councils.  Schools and colleges also have indoor leisure provision, and 
an increasing number are now available outside of school hours due to the extended schools programme. 

§ An open space audit conducted by PMP Consultants identified that the district has 240 playing pitches.  This 
figure is dominated by football pitches including 88 adult pitches, 54 junior pitches and 14 mini-soccer pitches. 
Other provision exists including rugby pitches, cricket pitches, tennis courts and golf courses. 

§ Water sport and recreation activities are popular at locations such as Grafham Water and the River Ouse. 

§  Huntingdonshire District Council’s Leisure Development focus on delivering four key areas of work: 
Prevention programmes (e.g. Youth Sports Development and the Community Sports & Recreation Project), 
Intervention Programmes (e.g. Exercise Referral scheme, health walks, etc), Sporting Infrastructure (targeting 
clubs, coaches, volunteers and officials) and Raising the profile of sport  

§ The Countryside Services manage 12 sites which are open to the public 24 hours a day. The service also 
maintains and promotes the 26 mile Ouse Valley Way and a nursery project in Godmanchester.  There are 
also numerous parks and open spaces located across the District, and furthermore, there are 117 sites that 
have formal equipped play provision for children and young people.   

1
6



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

      4. IDENTIFYING CULTURAL NEEDS 
 

Consultation 
  

Undertaking robust consultation is vitally important to ensure that this Cultural Strategy, and its associated action 
plan, properly meets the needs of the district.  Through consultation it is possible to identify attitudes to existing 
cultural services, identify aspirations for culture, identify barriers to accessing provision, and consultation can 
help to inform the development of the culture action plan. 
 

A range of consultation exercises have been undertaken by the Council in the past two years including specific 
service-related consultation, and more general consultation undertaken as part of wider studies.  Examples of 
key consultation include the Cambridgeshire Joint Consultation Partnership, “Cambridgeshire Quality of Life 
Survey”, PMP “Open Space Needs Assessment” and Huntingdonshire District Council “Annual Report”.  The 
main findings of the consultation are as follows: 
 

§ Whilst the general quality of open spaces is seen to be acceptable, in some cases it is limited by anti-social 
behaviour, litter and vandalism. 

§ “Natural and semi-natural greenspace” and “parks and gardens” are viewed as the highest quality open 
spaces within the district. 

§ Teenage play provision is deemed to be insufficient, whilst existing open spaces could be improved by 
increasing the play value of existing play facilities. 

§ Leisure centres are deemed to be accessible facilities within the district, although there is scope for 
improvements in accessibility to theatres and cinemas, and other cultural facilities  

§ Residents within Huntingdonshire are less satisfied with the availability of cultural facilities when compared to 
residents of neighbouring authorities. 

§ Sports clubs within the district feel that there is sufficient pitch provision to meet demand, and many view the 
quality of provision as good. 

§ There are insufficient training areas for sports clubs, with few accessible floodlit areas. 
§ Transport is seen as a major barrier to accessing cultural facilities, particularly for residents within rural areas, 
where provision is generally much poorer compared to urban areas.  Cost of using facilities is also seen as a 
barrier to some – particularly children and young people. 

 

1
7



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

5. IDENTIFYING THE PRIORITIES FOR CULTURE 
 

Long-term principles 
 

In support of the broad vision statement outlined in the introduction, Huntingdonshire District Council has 
developed a set of long-term cultural principles that it will aspire to achieve.  These are as follows: 
  

1. Huntingdonshire will be a centre for cultural excellence, with a clear distinct identity where people choose to live, work and visit. 
2. Culture will help to improve quality of life by significantly impacting upon all areas of local community life through a range of 
opportunities resulting in improved health and well-being. 
3. Implementing this Cultural Strategy will make a real and positive difference to community life and community cohesion by specifically 
targeting resources at meeting needs in priority neighbourhoods and communities. 
4. The development of a Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire will help to positively contribute to Council policies and priorities including 
education, health, equality and community needs. 
5. All key cultural partners will ensure that ‘culture’ is sustainable by embedding it into all relevant strategies and plans, both at the local 
and regional level. 
6. Huntingdonshire’s cultural diversity, its local character and its diverse natural and built environment will be celebrated and enhanced. 
7. All residents will have the opportunity to access and participate in a wide range of high quality cultural activities, and this will be 
reflected in increased participation levels.  
8. Barriers will be removed so that all children and young people can access a range of safe inclusive play and recreational opportunities. 
9. Enhanced cultural activity will support and encourage community programmes and the personal, social, environmental, economic and 
physical development of all residents within the district. 
10. All key cultural partners will work towards understanding the changing cultural needs of the district, by improving methods of 
engagement and consultation including isolated and under-represented groups. 
11. Using tools including the “Open Space, Sport, and Recreation Needs Assessment and Audit”, a co-ordinated approach across culture 
will be adopted when considering future provision of open space, recreation and cultural activities, in relation to section 106 monies. 
12. All key cultural partners will work towards maximising potential external funding opportunities to support cultural activities and events. 
13. All key cultural partners will work towards raising the profile of culture within the district, actively seeking out new ways of highlighting 
and promoting cultural opportunities within the district. 

 

  In order to deliver against the identified vision and thirteen long-term principles, the Council has developed three 
key themes to act as a basis for developing a three year action plan.  These three themes address priority areas 
identified within the consultation and wider corporate objectives, and are as follows: 

 

 1. Improve access to culture and leisure opportunities 
 2. Develop and improve life-long learning 
 3. Develop vibrant communities which are safer, healthier, cohesive and economically sustainable 

1
8



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

 

6. ACTION PLAN: 2007 – 2010 
 

At the core of Huntingdonshire’s Cultural Strategy is an action plan which is underpinned by the three key 
themes listed previously.  For each of the themes, a set of objectives have been produced as demonstrated 
below.  (Note: Many of these objectives are supported by a list of actions which can be monitored throughout 
the life-span of the Strategy.  These actions relate to specific service areas of the Council and / or to key 
cultural partners. To view the key actions please refer to the Cultural Strategy document) 

 

    THEME 1: Improve access to culture and leisure opportunities 
 

   Identified objectives 

§ Make effective use of section 106 monies to positively contribute to cultural opportunities within the District 
§ Make accessible leisure opportunities for all 
§ Meet local leisure provision needs 
§ Enhance the standard of service provided at Leisure Centres and by Leisure Development 
§ Make sport and active recreation opportunities accessible for disabled people; and for over 50’s 
§ Provide under-represented groups with the opportunity to participate in sport and active recreation 
§ Promote healthy lifestyles by enabling vulnerable people through ill health / rehabilitation to lead active lives via improved 
 participation in physical leisure activities 

§ Increase opportunities to pursue a healthy lifestyle by encouraging walking 
§ Raise awareness of sports clubs available in the District 
§ Raise the profile of sport and culture linked to the 2012 Olympics 
§ Raise the profile and awareness of water-based sporting and recreation opportunities 
§ Promote, maintain and improve access to Ouse Valley Way 

§ Promote and enhance the Public Rights of Way Network (PROW network) 

§ Provide countryside sites that are accessible to all 
§ Raise awareness of the District’s greenspace including both countryside sites and parks and open spaces 
§ Raise the standards of all District Council maintained parks and open spaces 
§ Develop existing & new opportunities for arts activities and events 
§ Improve access to opportunities for cultural enrichment that promote good health & mental well-being 
§ Increase the number of cultural & leisure opportunities for young people 
§ Develop and improve the Arts Venue Database 
§ Improve the understanding of and access to the countryside & the heritage of the landscape 

1
9



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

  

 

6. ACTION PLAN: 2007 – 2010 
 

    THEME 2: Develop and improve life-long learning 
 

   Identified Objectives 
 

§ Develop further opportunities for local people to improve or gain work related skills 
§ Provide volunteer activities for all at countryside sites 
§ Provide open space events and activities for all 
§ Develop learning opportunities through cultural activity 
§ Develop understanding of local heritage 
§ Promote all libraries and library access points 

 

 
THEME 3: Develop vibrant communities which are safer, healthier, cohesive and economically 
sustainable 

 

   Identified Objectives 

§ Ensure that there is clear linkage between this Strategy and the new Sustainable Community Strategy 
§ Ensure that key actions are helping to deliver vibrant communities 

§ Enable residents to take an active part in their communities 
§ Ensure high-quality built-environment 
§ Develop Godmanchester Nursery Project 
§ Develop community involvement in greenspaces & biodiversity projects 
§ Increase the Biodiversity value throughout the District 
§ Enhance provision of Facilities for Healthy and Active Lifestyles 
§ Seek to encourage greater community involvement in the districts parks and open spaces 
§ Support communities in protecting & valuing open spaces & historic sites & buildings 
§ Develop further opportunities for local people to improve or gain work related skills 
§ Support the development of play and recreation facilities in identified communities 
§ Adopt Neighbourhood Management Approach within three identified priority areas of Oxmoor, Eynesbury and Ramsey 
§ Apply to Big Lottery through the ‘Children’s Play Programme 

 

2
0



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  

 

7. MONITORING AND EVALUATING THE STRATEGY 
 

Review Mechanisms 
 
This Cultural Strategy acknowledges that risk management is important in ensuring the delivery of objectives and 
key actions outlined in the Action Plan.  To help identify the potential for risk, key organisations and partners 
responsible for delivering each action have been identified.  Furthermore, to enable actions to be monitored, 
timescales and performance measures / indicators have been established to enable the District Council to assess 
progress.   
 
This Cultural Strategy is intended to act as starting point to address issues in the long-term – working towards 
achieving the thirteen long-term cultural principles.  Therefore, this strategy will be reviewed in due course so that 
a new strategy will immediately follow on at the end of this initial three-year period. 
 
The development and implementation of this Cultural Strategy is a key objective of the Huntingdonshire Local 
Strategic Partnership (Culture and Leisure Thematic Group).  Therefore, it follows that the three-year action plan 
will be monitored and reviewed by the Culture and Leisure Thematic Group.  With regard to the specific actions 
and objectives identified within the action plan, progress will be tracked and monitored by individual service plans, 
which are refreshed on an annual basis.  If appropriate, reference will also be made to relevant performance 
indicators from the Local Area Agreement.   
 
Within the three-year action plan, Huntingdonshire District Council also commits to investigating and reviewing 
appropriate evaluation tools and where appropriate, will build them into the Cultural Strategy review process. 

 
This Strategy has been produced by Huntingdonshire District Council working in partnership with environmental consultants, Jones Plus Limited 

 

     jones plus limited+
++  

 
                                                                       Consultant: Alex Jones 

                  e-mail: jonesplusltd@yahoo.co.uk 

2
1



2
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
 

Cultural Strategy 
for Huntingdonshire 

 

(2007 – 2010) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

CONTENTS 
 

                    Page 
   

1.  INTRODUCTION 

 1.1 Why is culture important?           1 
 1.2 Defining “culture”            1 
       

2.  DISTRICT PROFILE 
 2.1 Background to Huntingdonshire          3 
        

3.  POLICY CONTEXT 
 3.1 National Policy Context           4 
 3.1.1 Department for Culture, Media and Sport, “Five Strategic Priorities”                 4    
       3.1.2 Choosing Health: Making healthy choices easier 4                   
 3.2 Regional Policy Context           4  
 3.2.1 Living East’s Cultural Strategy           4 

3.3 Sub-Regional Context            5 
 3.3.1 A Cultural Strategy for Children and Young People in Cambridgeshire      5 
 3.3.2 Cambridgeshire Horizons “Quality of Life” Strategies        5 
 3.3.3 Cambridgeshire Local Area Agreement          5 

3.3.4 Cambridgeshire Health: Annual Report of the Director of Public Health (2006)   5 
3.4 Key Policy at the Local Level           6 

 3.4.1 Community Strategy            6 
 3.4.2 Growing Success (Corporate Plan)          6 

3.4.3 Local Development Framework          6 
3.4.4 Other Key Local Policies           6 

 

4.  AUDIT OF EXISTING CULTURAL PROVISION 
 4.1 Arts Services             8 
 4.2 Built Heritage           10 
 4.3 Libraries           11  
 4.4 Museums            11 
 4.5 Indoor Leisure Facility Provision        12 
 4.6 Outdoor Sports Provision         13 
 4.7 Leisure and Sports Development        14 
 4.8 Water Related Sport and Recreation        16 
 4.9 Parks, Open Space and Countryside        17 
 4.10 Play            18 
 

5.  IDENTIFYING LOCAL CULTURAL NEEDS 
 5.1 The importance of consultation        19 
 5.2 Arts Service Consultation (On-going)        19 
 5.3 Leisure Development Consultation (On-going)       19 
 5.4 Open Space Audit Consultation – undertaken by PMP (2006)    20 
 5.5 Young People IT Survey – undertaken by PMP (2006)     21 
 5.6 Huntingdonshire District Council Annual Report (2006)     21 

5.7 Cambridgeshire Joint Consultation Partnership – Cambridgeshire  
Quality of Life Survey (2006)         22 

 5.8 Huntingdonshire District Council Sports Club Survey (2005)    23 
 5.9 Office of Children and Young People’s Services: “Getting It Right”  
  (2005)            23 
 5.10 Local Plan Review: Key Issues – Exercise Part 1 (2004)     24 
 5.11 Other Important Consultation Exercises       24 
 5.12 Summary of Main Findings         25 

 

24



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

  Page 
6.  DEVELOPING AN ACTION PLAN FOR CULTURE 
 6.1 Achieving the Cultural Strategy Vision       26 
 6.2 Action Plan: Theme 1          28 
  Action Plan: Theme 2          51 
  Action Plan: Theme 3          57 
          
 6.3 Evaluation and Monitoring 

6.3.1 Identification of “Risk”         67 
 6.3.2 Monitoring Progress          67 
 

 
 

Appendix 1: Policy Context 
 

A. National Context 
B. Regional Context 
C. Sub-regional Context 
D. Local Context 

 
Appendix 2; Sustainable Community Strategy Framework 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 1 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

This introductory section explains the important role that culture has on 
community life, and identifies the core vision and scope of this Cultural 
Strategy. 
 
 

1.1 Why is ‘culture’ important? 
 

Culture has a fundamental role to play in community life by providing opportunities to 
improve standards of health, well-being and quality of life.  It can also help contribute 
to, and develop, economically vibrant communities, with positive benefits for local 
and regional tourism, increased investment in culture-led growth and regeneration, 
and positive impacts on housing and employment opportunities, reinforcing the 
notion of sustainable communities. 
 
This Cultural Strategy sets out Huntingdonshire District Council’s key targets and 
aspirations for culture over the next three years.  Through this, the Council, working 
in conjunction with key cultural partners and stakeholders, will work towards meeting 
the following core vision:  
 

To enhance the quality of life and ensure that all of Huntingdonshire’s 
residents have the opportunity to pursue a wide range of high-quality, 
sustainable cultural activities that fully reflect the diverse needs of the 
district  

 

Recognising the important role of culture, the development of a Cultural Strategy is of 
high priority to the district as it is identified as a key objective of the Huntingdonshire 
Local Strategic Partnership and also within the Huntingdonshire Children and Young 
People’s Plan. 
 

1.2 Defining “culture” 
 

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport defines ‘culture’ as encompassing the 
following key characteristics: 

 
“Culture has both a material and a value dimension and includes a wide 
range of activities including arts, media, sports, parks, museums, 
libraries, the built heritage, the countryside, and playgrounds.”   
 
'Creating opportunities'- Guidance for Local Authorities in England on Local Cultural Strategies’ 

 

This emphasises the wide-ranging nature of culture and, with this in mind, the scope 
of this Cultural Strategy includes the following key areas: 
 

§ Arts - The performing and visual arts, crafts, design and fashion 

§ Built heritage - The built heritage, architecture landscape and archaeology 

§ Leisure – Formal and informal leisure pursuits 

§ Libraries - Libraries, literature, writing and publishing 

§ Museums - Museums, artefacts and archives 

§ Open space - Parks, open spaces, wildlife habitats, water environments and 
countryside recreation 

§ Play - Children’s play, playgrounds and play activities 

§ Sports - Events, facilities and development 

26



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 2 

It is important to realise that key District Council service areas impact positively on 
many different aspects of culture.  For instance, Planning Services have statutory 
responsibilities linked to built heritage, but are also involved in issues such as 
strategic greenspace enhancement and sports pitch provision.  
 
These different aspects of culture can all help to create local distinctiveness, which in 
turn supports healthy and sustainable communities.  This strategy explores the policy 
context driving forward culture in the district and examines existing provision levels, 
as well as identifying a clear action plan for the coming three years to meet identified 
cultural themes and enhance and protect the distinctive cultural identity of 
Huntingdonshire. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hartford Church 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 3 

2. DISTRICT PROFILE 
 

Before examining the different aspects of culture within 
Huntingdonshire, it is important to have an understanding of the local 
area, as factors such as location and population demographics can 
influence cultural provision, cultural needs and cultural aspirations. 
 

2.1 Background to Huntingdonshire 
 

Huntingdonshire is predominantly a rural district, covering an area of approximately 
350 square miles, and has a population of 162,000 (Mid-2005 population estimate, 
ONS).  Approximately half of the district’s residents live in four market towns - 
Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey, with the remaining residents distributed 
within key settlements and rural villages. 
 
Looking at the district’s population in greater detail, over 25% of Huntingdonshire’s 
population are aged between 0 – 19. This compares to 23% for East Cambridgeshire 
and Fenland, and just over 24% for South Cambridgeshire and Cambridge City.  
 
Given the rural nature of much of the district, isolation is seen as a major issue.  
Indeed, rural areas often lack an adequate range of services and facilities in their 
immediate localities.  Therefore, it is important that this strategy should look to 
address the negative effects of isolation ensuring that all residents, irrespective of 
their location, can access culture and cultural services. 
 
Life expectancy in Huntingdonshire is high compared to the national average. In 
addition, the 2001 census showed that 73% of people described their health as 
‘good’, a figure that is almost 5% higher than the national average. This strategy 
should therefore recognise the need to ensure that all residents and visitors, 
irrespective of age, can access and participate in high quality cultural opportunities. 
 
Since the early 1970s, Huntingdonshire has accommodated a large amount of new 
housing and employment growth.  Huntingdonshire is at the centre of the Cambridge 
to Peterborough growth area and managing the opportunities and pressures from 
growth is a continuing focus for the council.  Furthermore, it is expected that 
Huntingdonshire will continue to accommodate a large amount of additional housing 
and jobs. The council’s Corporate Plan, “Growing Success”, recognises that the 
needs of new or expanding communities which will require new infrastructure and 
services, must be balanced with those of nearby communities which might be 
affected by growth but which don’t have the same level of services and facilities.   
This requirement is important when considering present and future provision of 
cultural services and facilities. 
 
The majority of growth has been, and will continue to be, located within the district’s 
largest towns of Huntingdon and St Neots.  Lesser scale development is planned in 
other market towns such as St Ives and Ramsey. In rural areas new development will 
be limited and will be restricted to a number of key settlements. In villages there will 
be limited growth to meet local needs. The council’s Corporate Plan also states that 
resources will be focused upon the need to reinvigorate all of the district’s towns and 
to assist more deprived communities, including rural areas.  When considering all of 
these different growth pressures, it is vital that all communities have access to, and 
can participate in, culture and cultural activities.  

28



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 4 

3. POLICY CONTEXT 
 

A number of strategies and policies have an impact upon culture within 
Huntingdonshire.  This section provides a brief overview of key policies 
– please refer to Appendix 1 for a full overview.   

 
3.1 National Policy Context 
 
3.1.1 Department for Culture, Media and Sport, “Five Strategic Priorities” 
The Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) is the government department 
that works towards ‘improving quality of life for all through cultural and sporting 
activities, to support the pursuit of excellence and to champion the tourism, creative 
and leisure industries.’  In order to achieve this vision of extending excellence and 
improving access in all relevant sectors, five strategic priorities have been identified: 
 

§ Children and young people 

§ Communities 

§ Economy 

§ Delivery 

§ Olympics 
 
The development of this Cultural Strategy will particularly help to work towards the 
first two DCMS priorities of ‘children’ and ‘communities’. 
 

3.1.2 Choosing Health: Making healthy choices easier 
This Government White Paper sets out ways to provide more of the opportunities, 
support and information people want to enable them to choose health. It aims to 
inform and encourage people as individuals, and to help shape the commercial and 
cultural environment we live in so that it is easier to choose a healthy lifestyle.   
 

The report details how the local environment, social networks, sense of security, and 
socioeconomic circumstances, facilities and resources in local neighbourhoods can 
all impact upon individual health. There are wide-ranging differences in people’s 
experience of health between different areas and between different groups of people 
within the same area. Action by local authorities working with local communities, 
businesses and voluntary groups to tackle local health issues makes a difference to 
the opportunities for both adults and children to choose healthier lifestyles, and one 
way in which this can achieved is by emphasising health within key local documents 
such as cultural strategies. 
 

3.2 Regional Policy Context 
 

3.2.1 Living East’s Cultural Strategy 
“A Better Life: the role of culture in the sustainable development of the East of 
England” sets out Living East’s new cultural strategy for the region.  Its core vision is 
“to put culture at the heart of life in the East region – for every resident and visitor, 
wherever they are and whoever they are”, and linked to this are four key themes:  
 

§ embedding culture in growth and regeneration  

§ developing creativity  

§ growing cultural tourism  

§ capturing the benefits of the London 2012 Olympic Games and Paralympic 
Games 

29



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 5 

3.3 Sub-Regional Policy Context 
 

3.3.1 “A Cultural Strategy for Children and Young People in Cambridgeshire” 
Underlying the Children and Young People’s Strategy is the desire to ensure ‘that all 
children and young people in Cambridgeshire are able to participate actively in 
cultural activities, including sport and the arts, as a matter of right’.  To help achieve 
this, a number of aims have been established, and these include: 
 

§ Access  

§ Inclusion  

§ Diversity  

§ Sustainability  

§ Quality 
 

3.3.2 Cambridgeshire Horizons “Quality of Life” strategies 
Cambridgeshire Horizons is a non-profit making company set up to drive forward the 
development of new communities and infrastructure in the Cambridge sub-region, in 
accordance with the approved Structure Plan.  As part of this, ‘Quality of Life’ 
strategies have been produced for a number of key areas that impact upon culture 
within this sub-region, including a ‘Strategy for Major Sports Facilities’, a ‘Green 
Spaces Strategy’ and an ‘Arts and Culture Strategy’.  The recommendations from 
these 3 documents will, where appropriate, be adopted in principle in this strategy 
 

3.3.3 Cambridgeshire Local Area Agreement 
Cambridgeshire’s Local Area Agreement has four ‘blocks’ and within each block 
there are cross-cutting themes, as indicated below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where relevant, these cross-cutting themes should be reflected within this Cultural 
Strategy, as culture can make a positive contribution to all four Local Area 
Agreement blocks.   
 

3.3.4 Cambridgeshire Health: Annual Report of the Director of Public 
Health (2006) 
This annual report provides an overview of the key factors that influence health 
across the county and identifies key local health inequalities.  In addition to this, the 

30



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 6 

report also outlines public health priorities for 2007, and these are grouped around 
five key themes, namely: 

§ Health improvement 
§ Health protection 
§ Service improvement 
§ Health inequalities 
§ Corporate responsibilities. 

 

3.4 Local Policy Context 
 

3.4.1 Community Strategy 
The Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership developed a ‘Community Strategy’ 
for the district in 2004.  The long-term vision of the Community Strategy is for 
Huntingdonshire to be a place where future generations have a balanced and 
good quality of life and can enjoy – 
 

§ an environment that is protected and improved 

§ opportunities for all  

§ continued economic success 
 

It is of vital importance that there are clear links between this Cultural Strategy and 
the wider principles outlined within the Community Strategy.  However, it should be 
noted that this document is currently being reviewed with a new Sustainable 
Community Strategy intended for adoption by the beginning of 2008 (Note: how this 
links to the Council’s corporate framework is shown visually in Appendix 2).  It is 
important to ensure that where changing priorities are identified within the new 
Sustainable Community Strategy, clear linkages are made within this Cultural 
Strategy.  Therefore, this is identified as a key objective within the Action Plan 
outlined within section 6.2. 
 
3.4.2 Growing Success (Corporate Plan) 
Huntingdonshire District Council is responsible for promoting the economic, social 
and environmental well being of its communities, with the desired objective of 
achieving a good quality of life.  This is achieved by delivering actions and principles 
established within the Community Strategy, as discussed in 3.4.1.   
 
3.4.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
This is one of the principle vehicles for achieving the corporate plan. It is a spatial 
plan that goes beyond traditional land use planning to bring together and integrate 
policies for the development and use of land with other policies and programmes 
(described in 3.4.4) which influences the nature of places and how they function. The 
LDF consists of a number of documents including a core strategy and development 
control policies which together set out a spatial strategy to manage the amount and 
direction of growth and policies to help guide and judge that development. It also 
includes a document identifying where allocations for development will occur. 
 
3.4.4 Other Key Local Policies 
A range of other key policy documents exist that impact upon culture within 
Huntingdonshire, examples including: 
 

§ Huntingdonshire Children and Young People’s Plan  

§ Huntingdonshire Play Strategy 

§ Huntingdonshire Creative Enterprise Strategy 

§ Huntingdonshire Environment Strategy 

31



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 7 

§ Huntingdonshire Economic Development Strategy 
 
Inevitably, given the wide ranging nature of culture, there is some overlap between 
this Cultural Strategy and the above strategies.  Many of the actions and outcomes of 
specific District Council service areas are supportive and complementary to a 
number of strategies.  This synergy is noted within the Action Plan shown in 6.2, with 
clear reference made to other supporting strategies. 
 
Again, refer to Appendix 1 for further information. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 8 

 
4. AUDIT OF EXISTING CULTURAL PROVISION 

 
 

This section provides an overview of existing cultural opportunities and 
cultural services within Huntingdonshire, highlighting where relevant 
key quantitative information. 
  
4.1 Arts Services 
 

Overview: Huntingdonshire District Council does not run any dedicated arts facilities; 
instead, responsibility within the market towns lies with the various Town and Parish 
Councils.  However, the Council’s Arts Service seeks to provide and promote arts 
related activities, and works towards achieving the following key objectives: 
 

§ To provide a range of accessible arts activities; to provide a means of self-
expression and support sound mental health. 

§ To increase accessibility to a range of arts activities to meet the social and 
cultural needs of residents and visitors 

§ To assess the impact of the Arts Service; to ensure equal benefit from the 
arts may be obtained by all sectors of the community. 

 
To help achieve and deliver these objectives, the Arts Service delivers a range of arts 
activities, such as: 
 

§ “Art Attack” - where children experience creative 
art through a range of participatory workshops 
such as creating fantasy castles, bird mobiles, 
etc.  As part of this, family-friendly activities also 
take place to encourage creative play for all ages 
within the family unit. 

 

§ “Hinchingbrooke Spring Music” - a series of music events designed to offer a 
range of music from across the world.  As part of this series, workshops for 
young people are arranged e.g. a master-class run by one of the 
Hinchingbrooke Spring Music performers. 

 

§ “Riverside Music” - a summer season of free outdoor music events, with 
concerts arranged in the four market towns across the district.   

 

§ “Huntingdonshire Arts Diary” – a bi-monthly information leaflet that provides 
details of arts events taking place within the district.  This includes 
performances, exhibitions, classes, and workshops. The Diary includes 
entrance costs and contact details for all events, as well as providing 
information relating to the accessibility of each of the venues.  This 
information, and more, is also available through the District Council website 
‘What’s On” listings. 

 

§ “Arts and Health Referral Scheme” – This is a pilot project being developed 
during 2007, whereby people can self-refer, or be referred by a medical 
practitioner to a number of specialist-led arts activities.  The referrals could be 
made for a number of factors including rural isolation, phobias, depression or 
other mental health issues.  This scheme will provide participants with safe 

33



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 9 

opportunities for creativity and self-expression, as well as the opportunity to 
meet new people. 

§ In addition to this regular programme of events, the Council is also involved in 
a number of other projects in partnership with other organisations, including: 

 

§ “Arts in Cambs on Tour (ACT)” - ACT works with local voluntary groups to 
promote professional arts events throughout rural Cambridgeshire, and is a 
county-wide partnership project.  The scheme offers subsidy and support to 
people who want to see professional performances taking place in their 
village or town, and several venues across Huntingdonshire regularly take 
events. 

 

§ “Vital Communities” - Through an innovative and 
inclusive research programme of high-quality creative 
activities, this long-term project aims to demonstrate 
the positive impact of the arts on individual and 
community development.  Three schools in the District 
are active participants in this project (Ramsey 
Spinning Infants, Samuel Pepys and Winhills School in 
St Neots). 

 
 
There are, in addition, other important arts providers within Huntingdonshire including 
a thriving local amateur arts scene, local festivals (eg in Ramsey and St Ives), 
several dance schools, a handful of commercial galleries and a number of 
professional artists who both live and work in the district.  However, despite there 
being a wide range of art providers, the district is seen to be lacking in arts 
infrastructure.  There are four large multi-purpose halls - Burgess Hall (St Ives), 
Priory Centre (St Neots), Commemoration Hall (Huntingdon) and Hinchingbrooke 
Performing Arts Centre - which do promote a limited number of arts events and are 
available for hire, but there is no purpose built theatre.  There are several public 
houses which offer live music, together with a few nightclubs, but the only cinema (a 
multiplex) in the district is in Huntingdon. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 10 

 
 
4.2 Built Heritage 
 

Overview: Creation of the built form is one of the most public of visual arts.  Across 
Huntingdonshire there are 2223 listed buildings.  Buildings are listed by the Secretary 
of State for Culture, Media and Sport when they are considered to be of special 
architectural or historic interest and can include not only buildings such as houses, 
churches, schools and barns, but also walls, tomb stones, milestones, ice houses, 
bridges and locks, telephone and post boxes.  The type of listing is broken down into:  

 

i. Grade I - buildings of outstanding national 
interest, of which there are 58. 
ii. Grade II - particularly important buildings 
of more than special interest, of which there 
are 133. 
iii. Grade III – buildings representing a 
major element in the historic quality of our 
towns, villages and countryside.  These are 
buildings of special interest, of which there 
are 2032 

Houghton Mill 
 

Once listed, a building has special protection under the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Huntingdonshire District Council Planning 
Authority has additional powers of protection.  Extra responsibilities are also imposed 
on owners; for example, the need to obtain listed buildings consent for certain works. 
 

Buildings that are deemed to be worthy of listing are, in general terms, those that 
were either: 
 

§ Built before 1700, which survive in anything like their original condition. 

§ Built between 1700 and 1840, although some selection is necessary. 

§ Built between 1840 and 1914, although greater selection is necessary.  Only 
buildings of definite quality and character are listed. 

§ Built between 1914 and 1939, with only the best examples of particular 
building types and high quality being listed. 

§ Built less than 30 years ago but more than 10 years old but of outstanding 
quality and under threat. 

 

In addition to this, there are also 60 Conservation Areas across Huntingdonshire.  
This concept was introduced in 1967 when it was found that listed building legislation 
was failing to protect the overall character of cities, towns, and villages. 
 

Conservation Areas are defined as those of special architectural or historic interest, 
the character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance.  The 
buildings, how they are grouped, open spaces, views into and out of the area, street 
plan and street features, trees, water features, archaeology and historic landscapes 
all go together to produce the valued and distinctive local environment.  The 
Conservation Area designation enables the proper management of change in such 
historic places, not the preservation of them in time. 
 

Huntingdonshire District Council has begun the process to review its Conservation 
Areas and at the same time develop Management Plans that will work with, engage 
and empower local communities to identify and implement actions to implement 

35



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 11 

sustainable enhancements to the area, which in turn have a positive social and 
economic impact. 

4.3 Libraries 
 
Overview: Across Cambridgeshire there are 32 libraries, supported by 8 mobile 
library vehicles in Cambridgeshire, all run by the County Council.  Cambridgeshire 
County Council also offer range of centrally based services and are partners in 10 
Library Access points.  Within, Huntingdonshire, there are eight libraries and one 
library access point.  They are as follows: 
 

§ Buckden Library 

§ Huntingdon Library 

§ Ramsey Library 

§ Sawtry Library 

§ Somersham Library Access Point 

§ St Ives Library 

§ St Neots Library 

§ Warboys Library 

§ Yaxley Library 
 
 

4.4 Museums 
 
Overview: Although the Council does not own or 
maintain any museums, there are several 
museums located in the district that have an 
important cultural contribution.  Ramsey Rural 
Museum is an independent museum which is run 
and managed by volunteers.  This museum is 
housed in 17th Century farm buildings and 
focuses on Ramsey’s agricultural heritage, with 
displays including agricultural hand tools and 
carts, chemist and cobbler shops.    
 
Other museums include the Norris Museum at St 
Ives and the St Neots Museum, which follows the 
historic development of this town from prehistoric 
times to the present day.  Blacked-Out Britain is a 
war museum at Huntingdon, whilst The Cromwell 
Museum, a Cambridgeshire County Council 
venue, is also situated in Huntingdon and is 
dedicated to the life of Oliver Cromwell, who led 
the country from 1653-1658 and was born in 
Huntingdon. 

Ramsey Museum 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 12 

 
 
4.5 Indoor Leisure Facility Provision 
 

Overview: The District Council has five key 
Leisure Centres, located in St Ives, 
Huntingdon, St Neots, Ramsey and Sawtry.  
These centres receive in excess of 1.5 million 
visitors per year, providing a wide variety of 
sports and leisure activities and facilities for all 
ages and interests, including swimming pools, 
health and fitness suites, squash courts, etc.  
The facilities are available to use by local 
residents and visitors to Huntingdonshire, with 
two main membership schemes available 
(‘Advantage’ and ‘Classic’ membership), in 
addition to ‘pay-on-the-day’.   

Fitness Studio at St Ivo Leisure Centre 

 
Aside from council provision, there are also seven private health and fitness centres 
located within the district, and a further 85 community facilities which are either 
privately owned or maintained by Parish / Town Councils.  It should also be noted 
that there are sports halls available to hire within schools and colleges across the 
district. 
 
Quantitative Information:  “Active Places” is an online database run by Sport 
England that provides a range of information relating to different sports facilities. 
Using this database, the following information is obtained relating to health and 
fitness facilities in the district: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 13 

 
 
4.6 Outdoor Sports Provision 
 
Overview: There is a good spread of outdoor sports provision across the district, 
particularly in St Neots and Ramsey where levels per 1000 population are highest, 
based on the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Needs Assessment and Audit 
undertaken in 2006.  The range of facilities across the district is good, and it should 
be noted that dual access provision (schools, colleges) makes an important 
contribution.  An excellent example of this is Hinchingbrooke School – a Specialist 
Sports College which has the largest number of satellite schools in the county as part 
of its ‘sport family’. 
 
Quantitative Information:  The Open Space, Sport and Recreation Needs 
Assessment identified that there are 240 playing pitches in the district, including all 
known public, private, school and other pitches whether they are in secured public 
use or not.  This figure is made up of the following: 

 

§ 88 adult football pitches, 54 junior pitches 
and 14 mini soccer pitches 

§ 43 cricket pitches 

§ 7 adult rugby pitches 

§ 7 junior rugby pitches 

§ 1 junior rugby league pitch 

§ 7 adult grass hockey pitches 

§ 19 synthetic turf pitches 
 
In addition to this, there is a range of other 
outdoor sporting provision found within the 
district, including 85 tennis courts and 8 eighteen 
hole golf courses (based on information provided 
within the Cambs Horizons Major Sports 
Facilities Strategy and Active Places)  
 

Further information regarding the spatial distribution of sports pitches across the 
district is available within the Open Space, Sport and Recreation Needs Assessment 
and Audit (2006), conducted as part of a Planning Policy Guidance 17 Assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

38



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 14 

 
 
4.7 Leisure and Sports Development 

 
Overview: 
Local authorities are key providers of sport and recreation and play a key role in the 
delivery of sport in and for the community. Leisure Development through sport has a 
role to play in promoting active lifestyles to prevent obesity and avoid the risk of 
associated diseases such as diabetes, cancer and heart disease. Leisure 
Development as a service can also contribute towards community provision of 
sporting facilities, social inclusion and community development through sport, the 
development of sport in the community, and training and development of coaches, 
leaders, officials, administrators and volunteers.  Huntingdonshire District Council’s 
Leisure Development focuses on four key areas of work, and this is summarised 
below: 
 
i. Prevention programmes: 
The service directly provides 2 prevention programmes: Youth Sports Development 
and the Community Sports & Recreation Project. The target audience for these 
programmes are young people, disabled people, women & girls and people on low 
incomes (the latter 3 target groups are all under-represented in sport and active 
recreation). Rural isolation is also a key part of these programmes. 

§ School Holiday Activities - Independent of activities run at the Leisure 
Centres, Leisure Development also co-ordinate school holiday programmes 
to provide a wide-range of activities targeted at children and young people, 
including ‘roadshows’ which take activities out to rural locations across the 
district, as well as ‘multi-sports days’ and traditional ‘sports courses’. 

§ School links – Leisure Development work closely with local schools to raise 
awareness of and access to sport through activities such as after-school 
clubs, school sports festivals and school multi-sport days. 

§ Coach Education and Development – Leisure Development can facilitate 
access to a range of Sports Coach UK courses and workshops, National 
Governing Body Coaching courses, and other sports-related awareness 
courses. 

§ Club Development – A sports club database is available through the District 
Council’s website, and all sports clubs are encouraged to add their contact 
information to this database.  The District Council also offers child protection 
workshops and can signpost clubs to funding opportunities. 

§ Active and Able Sports Club – This is a multi-sports club for disabled people, 
and is run in St Neots and Huntingdon and has separate clubs for junior and 
adult members. 

§ St Ives Rangers Disability FC – This football club for disabled people is run in 
partnership with Hunts FA and is based at the St Ivo Outdoor Complex. 

§ Holiday Activities – A number 
of holiday activities are 
organised for disabled people 
of all ages 

§ Disability Sports Forums and 
Festivals – Both the forums 
and festivals are arranged to 
raise the profile of disabled 
sport. 

 

39



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 15 

 
 
ii. Intervention programmes 

The Leisure Development service directly provides 3 intervention 
programmes. The target audience for these programmes are vulnerable 
people who are in need of additional support to enable them to lead active, 
healthy lives or in some instances to maintain their quality of life. 
Predominantly these are older adults, cardiac patients and sedentary adults. 

§ Exercise Referral Scheme – This scheme allows people with identified 
medical conditions to exercise in a safe, supervised and friendly environment, 
supported by registered exercise professionals.  Following referral, an initial 
consultation is conducted, from which a 12 week programme is developed to 
help each individual achieve personal fitness goals. 

§ Phase IV – Cardiac Rehabilitation – This is safe, structured supervised 
exercise for people who have suffered heart attacks, undergone by-pass 
surgery or other surgical interventions, with all classes taught by British 
Association for Cardiac Rehabilitation (BACR) instructors. 

§ Health Walks - Trained walk leaders organise and oversee walks around four 
of the districts main towns of Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey. This 
is a multi-agency partnership including the District Council, the Countryside 
Agency and Cambridgeshire Primary Care Trust 

 
iii. Sporting Infrastructure 

§ The service aims to support, influence and promote the sporting infrastructure 
across the district. The target audience are clubs, providers, coaches, 
volunteers and officials. For instance advice is given on grant applications 
and coaches are encouraged to achieve accredited qualifications including 
coaching, first aid and child protection. 

 
iv. Raising the Profile of Sport and Leisure Opportunities 

The service contributes to raising the profile of sport and leisure opportunities 
through promotional material, the website, event displays and talks for 
targeted groups. The target audience is all residents of Huntingdonshire but 
particularly those in need of additional support to be active. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 16 

 
4.8 Water Related Sport and Recreation 

 
Overview: 
Water resources found within the district (such as rivers and gravel pits) offer a range 
of leisure and cultural opportunities, and support numerous private water sports 
clubs.  Grafham Water Centre is an excellent case-in-point of an important water 
facility, providing a range of water sports and activity training, including: 
 

§ Sailing 

§ Windsurfing 

§ Canoeing and kayaking 

§ Powerboating 

§ Youth courses 

§ Instructor training 

§ Arts, Crafts, Music courses 
 
Other key natural resources include the River Ouse which flows through the district.  
The national importance of this river is recognised by The Inland Waterways 
Association (IWA), who are holding their national waterways festival on the River 
Ouse in St Ives during 2007.  Consequently, this river is not only important from a 
cultural viewpoint, but also when considering tourism and the local economy.  It 
should be noted that the Economic Development Strategy provides a commitment to 
maximise the tourism benefit of water and water-related activities. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 17 

 
4.9 Parks, Open Space & Countryside 

 
Overview: The Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Needs Assessment and Audit 
(2006) undertaken in accordance to 
Planning Policy Guidance 17, identified a 
range of open space in the district, 
including large parks such as Riverside 
Park, as well as smaller local urban parks 
such as Hill Rise Park, with provision 
concentrated in the main market towns.  
In the more rural areas, the dominant 
form of provision is amenity greenspace 
and local recreation grounds.  The district 
also contains a range of stunning natural 
and semi-natural open spaces including 
Hinchingbrooke Country Park (shown 
opposite). 

Hinchingbrooke Country Park 

 
Although many open spaces have a dominant characteristic related to their primary 
function (e.g. amenity greenspace, parkland, etc) and can be particularly valued for 
one aspect such as nature conservation, heritage value or recreation opportunities, it 
is important to realise that open spaces have multiple facets and offer different things 
to different users including both formal and informal cultural opportunities.  More 
needs to be done to raise the profile of all open space in the district, including 
increased provision of events and activities. 
   
When considering open space, accessible open countryside is also of key 
importance, as many residents are able to access natural countryside in addition to 
more formal local open spaces.   
 
Quantitative Information: The total amount 
of open space provision in the district is 
270.19 hectares, and this figure is broken 
down by typology in the table opposite.  
These figures are based on the Open Space, 
Sport and Recreation Needs Assessment 
and Audit. 
 
Countryside Services manage 12 sites which 
are open to the public 24 hours a day.   The 
service also maintains and promotes the 26 
mile Ouse Valley Way and a nursery project 
in Godmanchester.  57 parishes are 
supported by the tree warden scheme and 31 
in the Parish Path Partnership.  This scheme 
is in partnership with the County Council and 
Parish Councils, and aims to promote the 
public rights of way network 
 
 

42



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 18 

 

4.10 Play 
 
Overview:  
Play is what children and young people 
do when they follow their own ideas and 
interests in their own way and for their 
own reasons. Play is fundamental to 
children and young people’s lives.  It 
can happen any time, any place, 
anywhere. With this definition in mind, 
play can take many different forms, 
ranging from formal equipped play 
provision to ‘free-play’ which can take 
place anywhere. 
 
With regard to equipped play provision, 
greater levels of provision are noted in 
urban areas of the district (with the 
exception of St Ives). In particular, 
Huntingdon and Godmanchester have 
the highest level of provision in the 
district, with lower levels of provision in 
rural areas, particularly in Yaxley and 
Sawtry. 

 
The variation in sizes of equipped play facilities is particularly noticeable within 
Huntingdon and Godmanchester, where despite there being 10 play areas with over 
10 pieces of equipment, there are many with only one piece, indicating a number of 
play areas with limited play value and benefit.  For further information regarding play 
opportunities in the district, please refer to the Huntingdonshire District Council ‘Play 
Strategy’. 
 
Quantitative Information: A 
total of 117 sites are identified 
as having provision for children 
and young people, 
encompassing equipped play 
areas, skateboard areas, ball 
courts (including multi-use 
games areas). This is based on 
the Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Needs Assessment 
and Audit, and and is broken 
down further in the table 
opposite.  Of this total number, 
it should be noted that the 
District Council own and 
maintain 31 play facilities.  The 
remaining facilities are 
maintained by Parish and Town 
Councils. 

43



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 19 

5. IDENTIFYING LOCAL CULTURAL NEEDS 
 

It has been has shown that there are strategies and policies at the 
national, regional, sub-regional and local level that impact upon culture 
within Huntingdonshire.  Prior to developing key themes and actions for 
2007 - 2010, it is important to understand what local cultural needs exist 
within the district. This section explores a range of consultation 
exercises that have been undertaken which have a link to the 
development of this Cultural Strategy. 
 

5.1 The importance of consultation  
 
Undertaking robust consultation is vitally important to ensure that this Cultural 
Strategy, and its associated action plan, properly meets the needs of the district.  
Through consultation it is possible to: 

 
§ identify attitudes to existing culture and cultural services provision,  

 
§ identify aspirations for culture  
 
§ identify barriers to accessing provision 
 

§ inform the development of the cultural action plan 
 

5.2 Arts Service Consultation (On-going) 
 
The Arts Service regularly consults its service users to assess satisfaction levels in 
key areas and to help identify future options for projects and general service 
development.  Some recent findings show that: 
 

• 91% of parents / carers whose children came to ‘Art Attack’ rated the 
quality of the workshops as ‘excellent’ or ‘good’. 

• 94% of children who responded rated what they did on the Art Attack 
workshops as “brilliant” or “good”. 

• 83% of responders to the 2005 Hinchingbrooke Spring Music concerts 
rated them between 8 and 10/10 (a further 16% rated them at 7/10). 

 
5.3 Leisure Development Consultation (On-going) 
 
Leisure Development evaluate all of its services’ through a range of consultation 
exercises to assess user satisfaction covering key areas such as exercise referral 
schemes, holiday programmes for children and young people, after school clubs and 
disability sports festivals.  Findings show that: 
 

§ Since 2002/3 there has been a year-on-year increase in the number of young 
people who have assessed holiday sports programmes as ‘brilliant’ or ‘good’, 
with 97.9% of users stating this in 2006/2007. 

§ ‘Disability sport’ is part of the Community Sports and Recreation project run 
by the Council.  In 2006/7, 91% of users were ‘satisfied’ or ‘very satisfied’ with 
the annual ‘Active and Able’ event, whilst 100% of users were ‘satisfied’ or 
‘very satisfied’ with the Disability Festival. 

44



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 20 

§ In 2005/6, with regard to health walks, 91.7% of users were ‘satisfied or 
better’ with the service on offer.  In 2006/7, this figure has increased to 
95.6%.  

§ Sport England’s Active People survey showed that in Huntingdonshire, 23.5% 
of adults participate in at least 30 minutes moderate intensity sport and active 
recreation on 3 or more times a week, putting the district in the top 25% in the 
country. 

 
5.4 Open Space Audit Consultation – undertaken by PMP Consultants 
(2006) 
 

As the part of the district-wide audit of open space, 5000 households were given the 
opportunity to comment on the overall provision, quality and accessibility of open 
space, sport and recreation facilities within Huntingdonshire. The questionnaire was 
distributed according to the total population living in each analysis area ensuring that 
geographically representative samples of residents living in the district were able to 
comment.  In total, 565 postal surveys were returned and supporting this postal 
questionnaire was a number of community drop-in sessions. 
 

This extensive consultation exercise highlighted the following: 
 

§ There is an overall perception that the quality of open spaces has improved 
over recent years and it is clear that residents of Huntingdonshire value a 
good quality environment and a range of opportunities at open space sites. 
Despite this, concerns were raised when looking at the quality of the district’s 
open spaces with quality limited by antisocial behaviour, vandalism and litter. 

§ A loss of open space was also a key theme and emerged as the primary area 
of concern, with residents keen to ensure that all existing open space is 
preserved.  

§ There is a perceived inequality in the distribution of parks within 
Huntingdonshire District, with respondents highlighting a lack of provision in 
Ramsey, Yaxley and Godmanchester. There were many comments made 
about this during the drop in sessions, particularly in Ramsey, Yaxley and St 
Neots indicating that residents would prefer more formal parks provision. 

§ Provision of amenity green space is of significant importance, particularly in 
villages where there are few recreational and leisure opportunities for 
residents.  However, residents in such locations feel that these types of open 
space are not being used to their maximum potential with too many 
restrictions placed on the use of amenity green space, such as “no ball 
games” signs which restrict the recreational value to residents. In contrast, 
misuse of these sites was also highlighted as a key issue across the district, 
particularly dog-fouling. 

§ The household survey showed that the highest quality ratings were awarded 
to natural and semi-natural greenspaces, followed by parks and gardens. 

§ There were strong opinions that provision for teenagers was insufficient, a 
perception shared by 61% of residents. Residents at some drop in sessions 
also felt there to be some areas of deficiency; areas being seen to be 
deficient in provision including Bury, Ramsey, St Ives, St Neots and Yaxley. 

§ There are mixed views regarding the overall quantity of outdoor sport 
provision in Huntingdonshire. This is likely to be reflective of the vast array of 
facilities that the outdoor sports facilities typology covers. 

§ There is a range of opinion regarding the general quality of outdoor sports 
facilities in the district with a tendency towards positive assessment in terms 

45



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 21 

of quality, with 33% of household survey respondents stating that facilities are 
good and less than 15% deeming them to be poor. 

§ People attending drop-in sessions commented on the high quality of some 
green corridors in the district, particularly walks around river courses. A 
shortage of accessible footpaths was highlighted at drop in sessions at 
Ramsey, where it was the issue of dog fouling was also mentioned as a 
limiting factor regarding the level of use of any green corridors.  

 

5.5 Young People IT Survey – undertaken by PMP (2006) 
 
All schools in the district were invited to take part in an on-line questionnaire.  In total, 
176 responses were received, ranging from 6 to 18 year olds, although 63% of 
respondents were made by 9 to 11 year olds.  The questionnaire explored attitudes 
to open space and sports provision.  The main findings included: 
 

§ The main reasons that children visit open spaces is to meet friends, and to 
have a kick-about / informal play. 

§ The least liked aspects of open spaces included limited play value of existing 
play facilities.   Location was also cited as an important factor, with some 
open spaces being located too far away from areas of housing. 

§ When asked how open spaces could be improved, 36% stated that there 
should be more interesting play equipment, 18% wanted multi-use games 
areas / kick about areas, whilst 17% wanted skate or BMX park. 

 

5.6 Huntingdonshire District Council Annual Report (2006) 
 

During 2006, Huntingdonshire District Council carried out its annual district wide 
survey. The survey assessed overall satisfaction with Huntingdonshire as a place to 
live and the services that the District Council provides, and has been used to assess 
progress against identified targets within Growing Success (the Corporate Plan), and 
also used to inform revisions to the Community Strategy.  
 

3000 leaflets were distributed to households in the district using a commercially 
supplied list of contacts, such that the mailed sample reflected the proportional 
population of the district by ward, and from this, telephone interviews were then 
conducted. In total, a sample of 505 responses was achieved.  With regard to culture 
and the provision of cultural services, the following key findings were noted: 
 

§ 83% very/fairly satisfied that Huntingdonshire is a clean green and attractive 
place to live - an increase in percentage compared to the 2005 survey  

§ 72% very/fairly satisfied with the availability of parks and open spaces - an 
increase in percentage compared to the 2005 survey  

§ 88% rated the quality of Huntingdonshire’s countryside/natural environment 
as very high/acceptable quality - an increase in percentage compared to the 
2005 survey  

§ 91% very/fairly satisfied with Huntingdonshire as a place to live - an increase 
in percentage compared to the 2005 survey 

§ 33% rated the quality of public arts projects and events as very good / good, 
whilst 53% had no opinion - the percentage of respondents who gave no 
opinion on the rating of public arts projects/events significantly increased by 
22% compared to the 2005 findings.  (With regard to these findings, it should 
be noted that ‘public arts projects’ include events run by all providers within 
the district – a far wider range of activities and events compared to those 
provided by the District Council’s Arts Service).   

46



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 22 

§ 71% can very / fairly easily get to Leisure Centres - an increase in percentage 
compared to the 2005 survey  

§ 71% rated physical access to, and around, Leisure Centres as very / fairly 
easy - a decrease in percentage compared to the 2005 survey  

 

5.7 Cambridgeshire Joint Consultation Partnership – Cambridgeshire 
Quality of Life Survey (Conducted by RBA Research, 2006) 
 
The 2006 survey was commissioned to track changes in attitude since the first quality 
of life survey, conducted in 2003.   Postal questionnaires were sent to a random 
sample of 7,500 households in Cambridgeshire, and 3206 responses were received.  
These responses were weighted based on population within each of 
Cambridgeshire’s districts.   
 
Within Huntingdonshire, a total of 671 completed questionnaires were returned (45% 
response rate).  Concerning culture, headline findings include: 
 

§ In line with the regional findings, 80% of the district’s residents are very / fairly 
satisfied with their neighbourhood as a place to live. 

§ Using a continuous scale from -2 to +2 (whereby -2 = very dissatisfied, 0 = 
neither satisfied nor dissatisfied, +2 = very satisfied), respondents were asked 
to assess different aspects of local life.  In many instances, Huntingdonshire 
findings tended to be consistent with those from across the whole of 
Cambridgeshire.  For instance, when asked to assess level of recreational 
services available, the mean score for Huntingdonshire was 0.13, compared 
to a county mean score of 0.15. However, there are areas where 
Huntingdonshire respondents are less satisfied, and one such area focuses 
on the level of cultural facilities available.  Whilst a county mean score of 0.26 
was calculated, the mean score within Huntingdonshire was only 0.07.   

§ Compared to other factors included in the questionnaire, the quality and 
amount of natural environment within the district is highly regarded by 
residents of Huntingdonshire, with a mean mark of 0.59 calculated.  
Compared to other district’s, this was only exceeded within South 
Cambridgeshire. 

§ When asked to assess how easy it is to get to a public open space, 78% of 
Huntingdonshire residents stated that it is very / fairly easy – compared to 
county wide response of 79%. 

§ When asked to assess how easy it is to get to a sports / leisure centre, 69% 
of Huntingdonshire residents stated that it is very / fairly easy – compared to 
county wide response of 64%. 

§ When asked to assess how easy it is to get to a theatre or cinema, 58% of 
Huntingdonshire residents stated that it is very / fairly easy – compared to 
county wide response of 54%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

47



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 23 

5.8 Huntingdonshire District Council Sports Club Survey (2005) 
 
A sports club survey was undertaken by the Council to all known football, cricket, 
rugby, hockey, tennis and bowls clubs during 2005, with a total of 62 clubs 
responding to this questionnaire. 
 
Responses indicated that 77% of the clubs felt that number and availability of pitches 
met the demand within the district.  In line with this, 47.6% of clubs rated the 
availability of pitches in the district as very good or excellent. This related to an 
average score of 3.42 (out of 5) and a modal score of 4 (very good). 59.7% of clubs 
rated the accessibility of pitches as very good or excellent. This relates to an average 
score of 3.61 (out of 5) and a modal score of 4 (very good). 
 
Sports clubs generally felt that the quality of pitch provision in the district was of a 
good standard. The only aspect that scored less than average was training area. 
Most clubs did not possess a training area and hence scored this as zero.  Similar to 
the scores given for pitch quality factors, the scores given for ancillary facilities were 
good, with only cycle parking scoring below average.  Consultation suggests that 
access to training facilities is a key issue, with only limited slots available at synthetic 
pitches for clubs wishing to train midweek. There are few floodlit training areas and 
teams struggle to access facilities between the peak hours of 6 and 9pm, particularly 
at the leisure centres where there is high demand for facilities.  
 

5.9 Office of Children and Young People’s Services: “Getting It Right” 
(2005) 
 
1853 young people were consulted on the key themes from the Children and Young 
People’s Plan, including 495 young people from Huntingdonshire.  Headline findings 
include: 
 

§ Key priorities for “under 11’s” identified as: safe local environments, 
supportive and bully-free schools. 

§ Key priorities for “over 11’s” identified as: safe local environments, supportive 
and bully-free schools, transport, leisure, and access to jobs. 

§ Lack of transport prevents young people accessing leisure opportunities, jobs, 
learning and health services and is experienced in towns as well as rural 
areas.  Key needs identified include cheaper or free public transport, and 
transport at more regular times. 

§ There are not enough leisure and recreation opportunities for children and 
young people.   The key factor is access in terms of transport and cost with 
many acknowledging that there is existing provision, but they can’t access 
facilities as they cannot travel there, or transport is too expensive.  Key needs 
identified include transport at more appropriate times and transport that goes 
to entertainment / leisure venues. 

§ Children and young people with disabilities suggest that leisure and 
recreation facilities are often linked to school facilities.  For disabled children, 
the lack of appropriate facilities and transport within their communities is a 
barrier to participation. 

 
 
 
 
 

48



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 24 

5.10 Local Plan Review: Key Issues - Exercise Part 1 (2004) 
 
Questionnaires were distributed to 70,000 homes within the district, and a total of 
1453 responses were received by the closing date.  In addition to this, a series of 
seminars and presentations were made to different organisations and interest 
groups.  Findings from this exercise include: 

 

§ When considering entertainment, several issues were commonly repeated in 
the additional comments box at the end of the twenty16 questionnaire, 
including eight comments of a desire for more arts venues in the district. 

§ When asked about transport, 88% agreed or strongly agreed that greater 
priority should be given to improving public transport.  Regarding additional 
comments on this topic, a range of ideas were provided, popular themes 
being to increase safe cycle lanes and paths, introduce bus services for an 
increased number of locations. 

§ The final question within this consultation focused on biodiversity and asked 
respondents whether there are any locations in the district that should be 
protected or improved due to their biodiversity value.  In terms of general 
habitat types, commonly cited answers included river valleys / water 
meadows (71 respondents), fenland (60 respondents) and woodland (40 
respondents).  Regarding specific locations, Paxton Pits (21 responses), the 
Great Fen Project (15 responses), and Brampton Wood (15 responses) were 
the most regularly stated suggestions. 

§ In terms of leisure, 19 respondents sought improved facilities (either generally 
or in specific locations), and a greater number (25 respondents) referred to 
the need for more affordable leisure facilities for young people (e.g. youth 
centres, skate/bike parks). St.Neots was mentioned relatively frequently as a 
place where improved facilities were sought. 

§ At the seminar for local community/environmental interest groups, it was 
suggested that green spaces could be better protected and promoted within 
the district, and that there were potential opportunities to combine 
biodiversity, tourism, and leisure facilities more effectively in certain locations. 

 

5.11 Other Important Consultation Exercises 
 
A county-wide extended schools survey was undertaken by the Office of Children 
and Young People’s Services, with over 500 young people participating.  The survey 
identified that one of the major barriers to participation in extended schools 
programmes is that young people living in rural areas had problems accessing 
activities after school as they rely on the school bus and there are no other public bus 
routes that would get them home – indicating that it is important to have public 
transport to community facilities at appropriate times. 
 
In 2005, 18 young people aged 11-18 participated in a day of consultation activities 
based on Huntingdonshire District Council priorities.   Regarding culture and cultural 
services, 14-18 yr olds thought there were not enough parks and open spaces, and 
this same age group would like more opportunities to play, watch and listen to live 
music. 
 
 
 
 
 

49



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 25 

5.12 Summary of Main Findings: 
 

§ Whilst the general quality of open spaces is seen to be acceptable, in some 
cases it is limited by anti-social behaviour, litter and vandalism. 

 

§ “Natural and semi-natural greenspace” and “parks and gardens” are viewed 
as the highest quality open spaces within the district. 

 

§ Teenage play provision is deemed to be insufficient, whilst existing open 
spaces could be improved by increasing the play value of existing play 
facilities. 

 

§ The quantity of open space provision is deemed to be acceptable to most and 
should be protected and enhanced. 

 

§ Leisure centres are deemed to be accessible facilities within the district, 
although there is scope for improvements in accessibility to theatres and 
cinemas (the majority of which are located outside the district in Cambridge, 
Peterborough or Bedford), and other cultural facilities. 

 

§ Residents within Huntingdonshire are less satisfied with the availability of 
cultural facilities, when compared to residents of neighbouring authorities. 

 

§ Sports clubs within the district feel that there is sufficient pitch provision to 
meet demand, and many view the quality of provision as good. 

 

§ There are insufficient training areas for sports clubs, with few accessible 
floodlit areas. 

 

§ Transport is seen as a major barrier to accessing cultural facilities, particularly 
for residents within rural areas, where provision is generally much poorer 
compared to urban areas.  Cost of using facilities is also seen as a barrier to 
some – particularly children and young people. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 26 

6. DEVELOPING AN ACTION PLAN FOR CULTURE  
 

 

This section explores the key themes and three-year action plan which 
underpin this Cultural Strategy.  
 

6.1 Achieving the Cultural Strategy Vision 
 
The core vision of this Cultural Strategy was introduced within section 1.1, namely: 
 

To enhance the quality of life and ensure that all of Huntingdonshire’s 
residents have the opportunity to pursue a wide range of high-quality, 
sustainable cultural activities that fully reflect the diverse needs of the 
district 

 
In order to deliver this broad vision statement, Huntingdonshire District Council has 
developed a set of long-term cultural principles that it will aspire to achieve. These 
are as follows: 
 

1. Huntingdonshire will be a centre for cultural excellence, with a clear distinct 
identity where people choose to live, work and visit. 

 
2. Culture will help to improve quality of life by significantly impacting upon all areas 

of local community life through a range of opportunities resulting in improved 
health and well-being. 

 
3. Implementing this Cultural Strategy will make a real and positive difference to 

community life and community cohesion by specifically targeting resources at 
meeting needs in priority neighbourhoods and communities. 

 
4. The development of a Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire will help to 

positively contribute to Council policies and priorities including education, 
health, equality and community needs. 

 
5. All key cultural partners will ensure that ‘culture’ is sustainable by embedding it 

into all relevant strategies and plans, both at the local and regional level. 
 
6. Huntingdonshire’s cultural diversity, its local character and its diverse natural 

and built environment will be celebrated and enhanced. 
 
7. All residents will have the opportunity to access and participate in a wide range 

of high quality cultural activities, and this will be reflected in increased 
participation levels.  

 
8. Barriers will be removed so that all children and young people can access a 

range of safe inclusive play and recreational opportunities. 
 
9. Enhanced cultural activity will support and encourage community programmes 

and the personal, social, environmental, economic and physical 
development of all residents within the district. 

 

51



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 27 

10. All key cultural partners will work towards understanding the changing cultural 
needs of the district, by improving methods of engagement and consultation 
including isolated and under-represented groups. 

 
11. Using tools including the “Open Space, Sport, and Recreation Needs 

Assessment and Audit”, and the ‘sports facilities calculator, a co-ordinated 
approach across culture will be adopted when considering future provision of 
open space, recreation, indoor sports facilities and cultural activities, in relation to 
section 106 monies. 

 
12. All key cultural partners will work towards maximising potential external 

funding opportunities to support key cultural activities and events. 
 
13. All key cultural partners will work towards raising the profile of culture within the 

district, actively seeking out new ways of highlighting and promoting cultural 
opportunities within the district. 

 
In order to deliver against the identified vision and long-term principles, the Council 
has developed three key themes to underpin its action plan.  These three themes 
address priority areas identified within the consultation and wider corporate 
objectives linked to the Community Strategy, and will help to enhance existing 
cultural opportunities and ensure that culture positively progresses towards ensuring 
that the vision and long-term principles established within this strategy become 
reality. 
 
It has been shown that provision of cultural facilities and services are seen to be 
adequate in terms of the quantity of provision.  Given the diverse nature of the 
district, quality of provision varies spatially, with levels of access strongly linked to 
location.  Furthermore, it has also been shown that residents of the district value 
culture and cultural facilities, recognising the positive benefits of high-quality cultural 
opportunities. 
 
Therefore, the following three themes have been developed with theme 1 particularly 
important to help try and overcome barriers identified through the consultation. 
 

THEME 1: Improve access to culture and leisure opportunities 
 
THEME 2: Develop and improve life-long learning 
 
THEME 3: Develop vibrant communities which are safer, healthier, 
cohesive and economically sustainable 

 
 

 

52



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
2
8
 

6
.2
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

M
a
k
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6
 m
o
n
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

 

(a
) 
W
o
rk
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 m
o
n
ie
s
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 k
e
y
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
o
f 

c
u
lt
u
re
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
la
y
, 
re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
, 

le
is
u
re
, 
in
d
o
o
r 
s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 

a
rt
s
, 
a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

A
ll 
H
D
C
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 
 

- 
A
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 

m
o
n
ie
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

c
u
lt
u
re
, 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
  
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

 
(b
) 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 a
 j
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
rt
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 u
s
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 o
f 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
’s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
  

 

A
ll 
H
D
C
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 
 

- 
A
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 

m
o
n
ie
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

c
u
lt
u
re
, 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
  
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

53



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
2
9
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

M
e
e
t 
lo
c
a
l 

le
is
u
re
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

(a
) 
P
ro
v
id
e
 m
o
d
e
rn
is
e
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 (
n
e
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
e
d
) 
 

in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
 i
n
d
o
o
r 
s
p
o
rt
s
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 f
it
 

fo
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
  

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
S
p
o
rt
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
’s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

F
a
c
ili
ty
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

e
m
e
rg
in
g
 C
a
m
b
s
  

s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

M
o
d
e
rn
is
e
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
,(
 n
e
w
 

a
n
d
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
e
d
) 
 

in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
 

in
d
o
o
r 
s
p
o
rt
s
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

fi
t 
fo
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

M
e
e
t 
le
is
u
re
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

(b
) 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 

(e
g
. 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

g
ro
w
th
 f
u
n
d
, 
lo
tt
e
ry
) 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

k
e
y
 l
e
is
u
re
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
 

s
p
o
rt
s
/a
rt
s
 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
je
c
t 
 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
o
lle
g
e
 

C
C
C
 

L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 c
lu
b
s
 

 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
S
p
o
rt
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
’s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

F
a
c
ili
ty
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

e
m
e
rg
in
g
 C
a
m
b
s
  

s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

M
o
d
e
rn
is
e
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

54



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
0
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

M
e
e
t 
le
is
u
re
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

n
e
e
d
s
 

(c
).
 A
n
a
ly
s
e
 A
c
ti
v
e
 P
la
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 P
e
o
p
le
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

in
fo
rm
 f
u
tu
re
 s
tu
d
ie
s
  

L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
S
p
o
rt
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
’s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

F
a
c
ili
ty
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

e
m
e
rg
in
g
 C
a
m
b
s
  

s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

M
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

le
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(a
) 
M
a
x
im
is
e
 u
s
a
g
e
 o
f 
a
re
a
s
 

w
it
h
in
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
to
 t
h
e
 

L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

    

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

     

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
: 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 
 

- 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
e
t 

d
e
fi
c
it
 (
£
1
.2
m
) 
 

- 
S
w
im
m
e
rs
 p
e
r 

h
o
u
r,
 (
2
0
.2
 p
h
) 

- 
C
o
u
rt
 

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 

(7
4
.7
%
) 

 (0
5
-0
6
 i
n
 b
ra
c
k
e
ts
) 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
h
ig
h
e
r 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

le
v
e
ls
 

 

55



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
1
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

M
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

le
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(b
) 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
liv
e
*  

c
a
rd
 h
o
ld
e
rs
 f
o
r 
L
e
is
u
re
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

(L
iv
e
*  
=
 u
s
e
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 

la
s
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
) 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

 

-H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
 –
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

  

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
V
is
it
o
r 
s
ta
ts
 

(1
.5
9
m
) 

- 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
e
t 

d
e
fi
c
it
 (
£
1
.2
m
),
 

- 
N
e
t 
c
o
s
t 
p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 

(8
0
p
) 

 ( 0
5
-0
6
 i
n
 b
ra
c
k
e
ts
) 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
le
is
u
re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
 

th
e
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
. 

M
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

le
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(c
) 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
 o
n
 

H
o
lid
a
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

fo
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t,
 b
o
th
 a
t 

L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

ru
ra
l 
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
  

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 L
o
c
a
lit
y
 

O
b
e
s
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
 –
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
  

- 
E
v
e
ry
 C
h
ild
 M
a
tt
e
rs
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

H
o
lid
a
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
le
is
u
re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
 

th
e
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
. 

56



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
2
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

M
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

le
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(d
) 
M
a
n
a
g
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
L
in
k
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

u
n
d
e
r 
1
7
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

- 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
  
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
 O
b
e
s
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
 –
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
C
h
o
o
s
in
g
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

- 
D
C
M
S
 ‘
A
 S
p
o
rt
in
g
 

F
u
tu
re
 f
o
r 
A
ll’
 

- 
E
v
e
ry
 C
h
ild
 M
a
tt
e
rs
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
le
is
u
re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
 

th
e
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
. 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
t 

L
e
is
u
re
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
y
 

L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 ‘
T
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
n
 

E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
’ 
(T
A
E
S
) 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

2
0
0
7
-2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

W
h
e
th
e
r 
T
A
E
S
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
ill
 

b
e
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 b
y
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
im
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
, 
a
s
 

w
e
ll 
a
s
 p
o
lit
ic
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
  

57



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
3
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

M
a
k
e
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

P
ro
v
id
e
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 &
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
is
u
re
 p
u
rs
u
it
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
fo
r 
a
ll 
a
g
e
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 a
t 
le
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
k
e
y
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
, 

- 
S
p
e
c
ia
l 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
, 

- 
N
G
B
’s
, 

- 
L
D
P
. 

 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
 O
b
e
s
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
  

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
%
 v
is
it
s
 b
y
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 

- 
%
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
 

IF
I 
a
n
d
 D
D
A
 

a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

(2
0
%
) 

 ( 0
5
-0
6
 i
n
 b
ra
c
k
e
ts
) 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
le
is
u
re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
 

th
e
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 b
y
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

    

M
a
k
e
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 

o
v
e
r 
5
0
’s
 

P
ro
v
id
e
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 &
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
r 
5
0
’s
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

le
is
u
re
 p
u
rs
u
it
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

- 
L
u
m
in
u
s
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
L
S
P
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
V
is
it
s
 b
y
 o
v
e
r 

5
0
’s
 

- 
O
v
e
r 
5
0
’s
 l
iv
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
le
is
u
re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
 

th
e
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 b
y
 o
v
e
r 

5
0
’s
 

 

58



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
4
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 u
n
d
e
r-

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 

s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
. 

P
ro
v
id
e
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 &
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
w
o
m
e
n
, 
g
ir
ls
 

&
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

fo
r 
a
ll 
a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
N
G
B
’s
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 L
o
c
a
lit
y
 

O
b
e
s
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
 –
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
  

- 
D
C
M
S
 ‘
A
 S
p
o
rt
in
g
 

F
u
tu
re
 f
o
r 
A
ll’
 

- 
E
v
e
ry
 C
h
ild
 M
a
tt
e
rs
 

 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

u
n
ti
l 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

V
is
it
s
 b
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r-

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 

le
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

59



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
5
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 b
y
 

e
n
a
b
lin
g
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

ill
 h
e
a
lt
h
 /
 

re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

le
a
d
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 v
ia
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
le
is
u
re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 E
x
e
rc
is
e
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

o
f 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

o
v
e
r 
1
6
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
y
 

m
e
d
ic
a
l 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
, 
re
g
u
la
r 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
. 

(i
n
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 

1
4
- 
1
6
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
) 

- 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

P
C
T
 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
 O
b
e
s
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
 –
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 t
o
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 a
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 b
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 l
iv
e
s
 v
ia
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
le
is
u
re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 C
a
rd
ia
c
 

R
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
  

P
h
a
s
e
 I
V
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

u
n
d
e
rg
o
n
e
 h
e
a
rt
 s
u
rg
e
ry
 o
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
 h
e
a
rt
 a
tt
a
c
k
 i
n
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

- 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

P
C
T
 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
 O
b
e
s
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
 –
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
la
s
s
e
s
 h
e
ld
 

- 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t 
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 t
o
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 a
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
 

60



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
6
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
u
rs
u
e
 a
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 

b
y
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 

w
a
lk
in
g
 

T
o
 r
u
n
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

W
a
lk
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

  

- 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

P
C
T
  

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
, 

- 
H
D
C
 S
p
o
rt
 /
 

L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
  

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
 O
b
e
s
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
L
S
P
 –
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
if
e
s
ty
le
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

G
ro
u
p
 

- 
W
H
I 
W
a
lk
in
g
 t
h
e
 W
a
y
 

to
 H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

w
a
lk
s
  
o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
, 

- 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
p
u
t 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 t
o
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 a
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
 

R
a
is
e
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

s
p
o
rt
s
 c
lu
b
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

(a
) 
U
p
d
a
te
 t
h
e
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ry
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 w
e
b
s
it
e
  

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

2
0
0
7
 –
 

2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lu
b
s
 

o
n
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
e
w
 

c
lu
b
s
 e
n
te
re
d
 

o
n
to
 t
h
e
 m
a
s
te
r 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s
p
o
rt
s
 

c
lu
b
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
  

61



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
7
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

R
a
is
e
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

s
p
o
rt
s
 c
lu
b
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

(b
) 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ry
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
8
 -
 

2
0
1
0
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s
p
o
rt
s
 

c
lu
b
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

R
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
s
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 c
u
lt
u
re
 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

2
0
1
2
 O
ly
m
p
ic
s
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
  
a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 c
u
lt
u
re
 w
it
h
in
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
D
C
  

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

 

- 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

C
u
lt
u
re
 M
e
d
ia
 a
n
d
 

S
p
o
rt
 ‘
F
iv
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
’ 

- 
‘R
is
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
’ 
E
a
s
t 
o
f 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
2
 O
ly
m
p
ic
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
ls
  

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 

o
f 
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
re
 

R
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
fi
le
 a
n
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

w
a
te
r-
b
a
s
e
d
 

s
p
o
rt
in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 w
a
te
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 s
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

le
a
fl
e
ts
, 
e
tc
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
it
s
 

o
n
 w
a
te
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

w
e
b
-p
a
g
e
 

- 
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
ls
 i
n
 w
a
te
r-

b
a
s
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

w
a
te
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 

s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

 

62



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
8
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

P
ro
m
o
te
, 

m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 O
u
s
e
 

V
a
lle
y
 W
a
y
 

P
le
a
s
e
 
re
fe
r 
to
 
th
e
 
D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 

fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
th
a
t 
re
la
te
 
to
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 R
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

R
a
is
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

O
u
s
e
 V
a
lle
y
 W
a
y
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

P
u
b
lic
 R
ig
h
ts
 

o
f 
W
a
y
 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 

(P
R
O
W
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
) 

 

P
le
a
s
e
 
re
fe
r 
to
 
th
e
 
D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 

fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
th
a
t 
re
la
te
 
to
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 R
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 p
a
th
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

s
it
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 

a
ll 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
  

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 R
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 s
it
e
s
 

63



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
3
9
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
 

o
n
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

s
it
e
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

  

H
D
C
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 

th
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 
a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r 

lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 

E
n
s
u
re
 h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

w
it
h
in
 a
ll 
p
a
rk
s
, 

o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

s
it
e
s
 

 

M
a
in
ta
in
 k
e
y
 s
it
e
s
 t
o
 G
re
e
n
 

F
la
g
 A
w
a
rd
 s
ta
tu
s
  

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 &
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
C
iv
ic
 T
ru
s
t 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
re
e
n
 F
la
g
 A
w
a
rd
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
: 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

S
e
lf
-a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
G
re
e
n
 

F
la
g
 A
w
a
rd
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
ra
b
le
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
s
e
t 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 (
G
re
e
n
 

F
la
g
 A
w
a
rd
) 

64



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
0
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

R
a
is
e
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

g
re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

s
it
e
s
, 
p
a
rk
s
 

a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 s
it
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
h
o
w
s
, 
d
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
ty
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

le
a
fl
e
ts
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
 

b
o
a
rd
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
H
D
C
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

  

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 

o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

g
re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
 

R
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
a
ll 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

(a
) 
A
d
o
p
t 
a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

to
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 c
o
n
c
is
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
iu
m
 

te
rm
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
s
u
e
s
. 
 

W
it
h
in
 t
h
is
, 
u
ti
lis
e
 t
h
e
 O
p
e
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
, 
S
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

N
e
e
d
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
 

to
 h
e
lp
 i
n
fo
rm
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
n
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

- 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
, 
S
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 N
e
e
d
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
 

(P
M
P
) 

2
0
0
7
 –
 

2
0
0
9
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 b
y
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
a
rk
s
 

a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

th
e
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

m
e
d
iu
m
-t
e
rm
 

65



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
1
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

R
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
a
ll 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

(b
) 
F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
k
e
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
, 
e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 d
is
tr
ic
t-
w
id
e
 O
p
e
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 t
h
e
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
, 
S
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 N
e
e
d
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

to
 h
e
lp
 i
n
fo
rm
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
W
ild
lif
e
 T
ru
s
t 

 

- 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
, 
S
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 N
e
e
d
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
 

2
0
0
9
 –
 

2
0
1
0
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

T
h
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

s
u
c
h
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

w
ill
 b
e
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 b
y
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 p
o
lit
ic
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
a
rk
s
 

a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

th
e
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 

 
(c
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
k
e
y
 p
a
rk
s
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  

2
0
0
7
 –
 

2
0
1
0
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
e
 

y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
, 

b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 a
ll 

u
s
e
rs
 

66



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
2
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

R
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
a
ll 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

(d
) 
In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

a
p
p
ly
in
g
 f
o
r 
G
re
e
n
 F
la
g
 A
w
a
rd
 

fo
r 
o
n
e
 p
u
b
lic
 p
a
rk
 (
p
a
rk
 t
o
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 k
e
y
 p
a
rk
s
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
) 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
C
iv
ic
 T
ru
s
t 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

2
0
0
7
 –
 

2
0
0
9
  

(I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

a
p
p
ly
in
g
) 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
e
th
e
r 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
n
d
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
re
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 

a
p
p
ly
 

 2
0
0
9
 –
 

2
0
1
0
 

(S
u
b
m
it
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
) 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

C
iv
ic
 T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 

a
c
c
e
p
t/
 r
e
je
c
t 
th
e
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
 G
re
e
n
 

F
la
g
 S
ta
tu
s
 f
o
r 

o
n
e
 p
u
b
lic
 p
a
rk
 -
 

a
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
w
a
rd
 

fo
r 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 

 
(e
) 
E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

p
la
y
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 b
y
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

v
a
ri
e
d
, 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
, 
in
c
lu
s
iv
e
 

p
la
y
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 

d
e
s
ig
n
s
  

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
rv
e
y
s
 

- 
P
la
y
 V
a
lu
e
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit
y
, 
in
c
lu
s
iv
e
 

p
la
y
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

67



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
3
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 &
 n
e
w
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
) 
P
ro
d
u
c
e
 &
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 b
i-

m
o
n
th
ly
 A
rt
s
 D
ia
ry
 

     

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
A
rt
s
 

D
ia
ri
e
s
 

d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t,
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 e
-m
a
il 

a
n
d
 w
e
b
 

d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

 
b
) 
R
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
rt
s
 w
e
b
 

p
a
g
e
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 W
h
a
t’
s
 O
n
) 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
it
s
 

re
c
o
rd
e
d
 o
n
 a
rt
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
b
-

p
a
g
e
s
 

  

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

 
(c
) 
E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

m
a
te
ri
a
l 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
 l
a
rg
e
 p
ri
n
t 
o
r 

a
u
d
io
 f
o
rm
a
t 
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

u
p
-t
o
-d
a
te
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 b
o
o
k
in
g
 

a
rt
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

ti
c
k
e
te
d
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m
e
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

68



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
4
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 &
 n
e
w
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

(d
) 
O
rg
a
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
 

re
g
u
la
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t,
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 

m
u
s
ic
 c
o
n
c
e
rt
s
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

th
e
 

H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rt
s
  

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 

a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

 
(e
) 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 A
rt
s
 I
n
 C
a
m
b
s
 O
n
 

T
o
u
r 
(A
C
T
),
 w
h
ic
h
 t
a
k
e
s
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
rt
s
 e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

ru
ra
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

   

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
A
P
A
D
O
G
 

(C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
, 

F
e
n
la
n
d
 D
C
, 

S
o
u
th
 C
a
m
b
s
 

D
C
, 
A
D
e
C
 (
E
a
s
t 

C
a
m
b
s
),
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

D
C
) 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

A
C
T
  

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
v
e
n
ts
 h
e
ld
  

  

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 

a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

69



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
5
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 &
 n
e
w
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

(f
) 
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 V
it
a
l 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
rt
s
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fo
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
, 
th
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 R
a
m
s
e
y
 

a
n
d
 S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
A
P
A
D
O
G
 

- 
R
a
m
s
e
y
 

S
p
in
n
in
g
 I
n
fa
n
ts
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

- 
W
in
h
ill
s
/S
a
m
u
e
l 

P
e
p
y
s
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
, 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

L
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
a
t 

V
it
a
l 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 h
a
s
 

o
n
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 

a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

 
(g
) 
W
o
rk
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
ty
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

jo
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
A
P
A
D
O
G
 

- 
o
th
e
r 
in
te
rn
a
l 
&
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
la
n
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 

a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

 
(h
) 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
a
te
u
r/
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
to
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 /
 

A
m
a
te
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 c
re
a
te
d
 

w
it
h
 a
m
a
te
u
r 
/ 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 

a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

70



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
6
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

e
n
ri
c
h
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 

p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 &
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
w
e
ll-

b
e
in
g
 

  

(a
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 A
rt
s
 &
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
  

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

- 
In
s
p
ir
e
 (
A
rt
s
 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 H
e
a
lt
h
) 

- 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 

T
ru
s
t 

- 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
ru
s
t 

- 
H
D
C
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
s
 

T
e
a
m
 

 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  

P
ilo
t 

P
ro
je
c
t 

2
0
0
7
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
rt
s
/h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
to
ry
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 

b
y
 G
P
’s
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
, 
e
tc
. 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 

o
f 
s
e
lf
-e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
o
u
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

  
(b
) 
R
u
n
 d
ro
p
-i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
to
ry
 

a
rt
s
 a
n
d
 c
ra
ft
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
/c
a
re
rs
 

   

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

F
a
m
ily
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 

o
f 
s
e
lf
-e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
o
u
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

71



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
7
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
&
 

le
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 

(a
) 
O
rg
a
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
to
ry
 a
rt
s
 a
n
d
 c
ra
ft
s
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

fo
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
g
e
d
 8
-1
3
 y
e
a
rs
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 

o
f 
s
e
lf
-e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
o
u
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

 
(b
) 
R
u
n
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 a
n
d
/o
r 

m
a
s
te
rc
la
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
1
-1
8
 i
n
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 S
p
ri
n
g
 M
u
s
ic
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
C
IM
A
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 

o
f 
s
e
lf
-e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
o
u
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

72



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
8
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
&
 

le
is
u
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 

(c
) 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 

o
u
t-
o
f-
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 

w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
re
g
a
rd
 t
o
 

re
m
o
v
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
N
a
tu
ra
l 
H
ig
h
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 

o
f 
s
e
lf
-e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
o
u
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

A
rt
s
 V
e
n
u
e
 

D
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

(a
) 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 

a
m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
rt
s
 v
e
n
u
e
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 k
e
p
t 
u
p
-

to
-d
a
te
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

2
0
0
7
 –
 

2
0
0
9
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

S
iz
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

A
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 u
p
-

to
-d
a
te
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
rt
s
 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

 
(b
) 
M
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

2
0
0
9
 –
 

2
0
1
0
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
rt
s
 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

73



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
4
9
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f,
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
, 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 &
 

th
e
 h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 o
f 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 T
h
e
 G
re
a
t 
F
e
n
 a
s
 a
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
e
x
c
e
lle
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

a
rt
s
 a
n
d
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
, 

u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
rt
s
 t
o
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
t,
 

in
te
rp
re
t,
 a
n
im
a
te
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 

d
e
fi
n
e
 a
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
C
re
a
ti
v
e
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
: 

A
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
E
a
s
t 
o
f 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 

C
re
a
ti
v
e
 &
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

In
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  

O
n
-g
o
in
g
: 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 /
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 

o
f 
s
e
lf
-e
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
o
u
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

74



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
0
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
/S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

R
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 

c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
C
re
a
ti
v
e
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 

- 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

-H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

- 
A
rt
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

- 
W
y
s
in
g
 A
rt
s
 

-H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
(F
E
) 

C
o
lle
g
e
 

- 
S
c
re
e
n
 E
a
s
t 

- 
C
re
a
ti
v
e
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
: 

A
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
E
a
s
t 
o
f 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 

C
re
a
ti
v
e
 &
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

In
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 

th
e
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

C
re
a
ti
v
e
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 

c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 

            

75



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
1
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 L
if
e
 L
o
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
r 

g
a
in
 w
o
rk
 

re
la
te
d
 s
k
ill
s
 

 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
a
c
h
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
H
D
C
 L
e
is
u
re
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

 

- 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 F
u
tu
re
s
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt
 

- 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 &
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

- 
C
o
u
n
ty
 S
p
o
rt
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 g
a
in
in
g
 

s
p
o
rt
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

G
re
a
te
r 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

c
o
a
c
h
in
g
. 

P
ro
v
id
e
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

a
t 
c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

s
it
e
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

P
ro
v
id
e
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(a
) 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
t 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 s
it
e
s
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
v
e
n
ts
 h
e
ld
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

e
v
e
n
ts
  

76



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
2
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 L
if
e
 L
o
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(b
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
v
e
n
ts
 h
e
ld
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

 
(c
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
e
a
m
-b
u
ild
in
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

 

H
D
C
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
  

 
(d
) 
M
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
  

77



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
3
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 L
if
e
 L
o
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(e
) 
M
a
in
ta
in
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
  

 
(f
) 
M
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
th
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
  

 
(g
) 
M
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
g
u
id
e
d
 w
a
lk
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll 

  

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

w
a
lk
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

78



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
4
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 L
if
e
 L
o
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

P
ro
v
id
e
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

(h
) 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

fo
r 
“b
a
c
k
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
”,
 

w
o
rk
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
  

 
(i
) 
P
ro
v
id
e
 l
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

(a
) 
T
a
rg
e
t 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
d
ro
p
-i
n
 

fa
m
ily
 a
rt
s
 &
 c
ra
ft
s
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 

to
 s
o
c
ia
lly
 d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 h
e
ld
 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 

a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

79



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
5
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 L
if
e
 L
o
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

(b
) 
T
a
rg
e
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
a
re
n
ts
/c
a
re
rs
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

V
it
a
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
it
h
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
h
ild
re
n
 /
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

w
h
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 

a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

 
(c
) 
F
o
llo
w
 u
p
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

A
rt
s
 &
 H
e
a
lt
h
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 

to
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
 t
o
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 

a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
rt
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 

E
n
g
a
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
, 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 

 

R
a
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
fi
le
 a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 

80



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
6
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 L
if
e
 L
o
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 a
ll 

lib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 

lib
ra
ry
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

p
o
in
ts
 

W
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
s
ig
n
p
o
s
t 
u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
, 

w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
lo
c
a
l 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 I
T
 

 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

2
0
0
7
 -
 2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
lin
k
s
 

o
n
 H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 u
s
e
rs
 

to
 C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

G
re
a
te
r 
u
s
a
g
e
 

o
f 
a
ll 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
 

a
n
d
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 p
o
in
ts
 

in
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

             

81



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
7
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 

is
 c
le
a
r 
lin
k
a
g
e
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
is
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
is
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
. 

A
ll 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

- 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

(y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 a
d
o
p
te
d
) 

2
0
0
7
 -
 2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 

c
le
a
rl
y
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 

a
n
y
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 

C
le
a
r 

s
y
n
e
rg
y
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

o
n
-g
o
in
g
 L
e
is
u
re
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
re
 

re
fl
e
c
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 

th
is
 t
h
re
e
-y
e
a
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
is
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 L
e
is
u
re
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

A
ll 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

2
0
0
7
 -
 2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 

c
le
a
rl
y
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 

a
n
y
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
k
e
y
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

v
ib
ra
n
t 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
  
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
o
ls
 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 H
e
a
lt
h
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
b
u
ild
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

A
ll 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

- 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t 

2
0
0
7
- 
2
0
1
0
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 

c
le
a
rl
y
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 

a
n
y
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
w
e
ll-

b
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 

fo
r 
lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

82



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
8
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

E
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

to
 t
a
k
e
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

(a
) 
E
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

ro
le
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

A
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 m
e
e
ts
 p
u
b
lic
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 

C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 S
p
o
rt
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
. 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 S
p
o
rt
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
  
 

H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
  

-S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
. 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
--

- 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
L
if
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

%
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

v
e
ry
/s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

E
n
a
b
lin
g
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 

to
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m
 a
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
 

E
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

to
 t
a
k
e
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

(b
) 
E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
 

p
ri
c
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 f
u
lf
ils
 t
w
in
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 –
 m
a
x
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
ti
m
u
m
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
tu
rn
 –
 a
n
d
 a
llo
w
in
g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
lly
 

d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 

- 
S
p
o
rt
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

- 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
V
is
it
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

- 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l 

- 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 

to
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m
 a
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
  

E
n
s
u
re
 h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 b
u
ilt
-

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

(a
) 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
n
 r
e
s
to
ri
n
g
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

o
f 
h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 v
a
lu
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
s
to
ra
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
  

R
e
s
to
ra
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

83



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
5
9
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

E
n
s
u
re
 h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 b
u
ilt
-

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

(b
) 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
s
 

 

H
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
s
 

 
(c
) 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 n
e
w
 /
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 u
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l,
 p
u
b
lic
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

n
e
w
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

u
s
e
s
  

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

G
o
d
m
a
n
c
h
e
s
te
r 

N
u
rs
e
ry
 P
ro
je
c
t 

  

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

- 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

- 
D
ia
l 
D
ru
g
 L
in
k
 

- 
P
C
T
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
tr
e
e
 

n
u
rs
e
ry
 a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 

84



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
6
0
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

g
re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s
 &
 

b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 

o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

B
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 v
a
lu
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 

- 
B
C
N
 W
ild
lif
e
 

T
ru
s
t 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 H
o
ri
z
o
n
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

S
S
S
I’
s
 a
n
d
 

C
W
S
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

s
p
e
c
ie
s
 

S
e
e
k
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

g
re
a
te
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
ts
 p
a
rk
s
 

a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 e
m
p
lo
y
 a
 

p
a
rk
s
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

‘f
ri
e
n
d
s
 o
f’
 g
ro
u
p
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
k
e
y
 

p
a
rk
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t,
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
k
e
y
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 ‘
S
tr
e
e
t 

S
c
e
n
e
’.
 

- 
H
D
C
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

- 
C
A
B
E
 S
p
a
c
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

2
0
0
7
 -
 2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 /
 o
r 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
ill
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
 

fe
a
s
ib
le
 

 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 

g
re
a
te
r 

o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

85



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
6
1
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 &
 

v
a
lu
in
g
 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 &
 h
is
to
ri
c
 

s
it
e
s
 &
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

(a
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 a
rt
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
R
a
m
s
e
y
 

    

H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

D
a
te
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

is
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

C
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

a
rt
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 
(b
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
u
b
lic
 a
rt
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

in
 R
a
m
s
e
y
 &
 N
o
rt
h
b
ri
d
g
e
 w
it
h
 

in
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 

a
rt
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

C
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

a
rt
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

in
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

 
(c
) 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 a
rt
s
 a
re
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 

T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll 
re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
je
c
t 

  

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

- 
E
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
a
rt
s
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

R
a
is
e
d
 

p
ro
fi
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

a
rt
s
 

86



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
6
2
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 o
r 
g
a
in
 

w
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 

s
k
ill
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 S
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 
C
re
a
ti
v
it
y
 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t’
s
 

‘E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
C
re
a
ti
v
e
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
’ 
fo
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
la
te
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
  

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 T
o
w
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

- 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

- 
S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
o
lle
g
e
 

-H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

- 
S
c
re
e
n
 E
a
s
t 

- 
A
rt
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

-H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
(F
E
) 

C
o
lle
g
e
 

- 
C
re
a
ti
v
e
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
: 
A
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
E
a
s
t 
o
f 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 

C
re
a
ti
v
e
 &
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

In
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
L
iv
in
g
 E
a
s
t’
s
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

S
u
m
m
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

C
re
a
ti
v
e
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 a
s
 

a
 h
u
b
 s
it
e
 f
o
r 

c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 o
r 
g
a
in
 

w
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 

s
k
ill
s
 

(a
) 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
rt
is
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
re
a
ti
v
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

A
rt
is
t 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 

c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr
ie
s
 

87



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
6
3
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 o
r 
g
a
in
 

w
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 

s
k
ill
s
 

(b
) 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
rt
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

a
rt
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
(c
) 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
w
n
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
e
rs
/e
n
te
rt
a
in
e
rs
 

 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
T
o
w
n
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 

- 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm
e
rs
 /
 

e
n
te
rt
a
in
e
rs
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

to
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

R
a
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
rt
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
  

 
(d
) 
P
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rt
is
ts
, 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 A
rt
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
H
D
C
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
 

G
re
a
te
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a
rt
s
 

88



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
6
4
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

p
la
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

(a
) 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 “
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

G
ra
n
ts
” 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

- 
H
D
C
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

- 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

A
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

a
w
a
rd
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

p
la
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

 
(b
) 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

V
ill
a
g
e
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
 

g
re
a
te
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
–
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w
it
h
in
 r
u
ra
l,
 i
s
o
la
te
d
 

p
a
ri
s
h
e
s
 

- 
A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

R
u
ra
l 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 

(A
C
R
E
) 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
ill
a
g
e
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 

89



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
6
5
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

A
d
o
p
t 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
it
h
in
 

th
re
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

O
x
m
o
o
r,
 

E
y
n
e
s
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

R
a
m
s
e
y
 

(a
) 
A
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 

a
g
re
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 

th
e
 t
h
re
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 

- 
L
u
m
in
u
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

2
0
0
7
 –
 

2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

D
a
te
 o
f 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
k
e
y
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

w
ill
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

th
re
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 
(b
) 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 D
C
 

- 
L
u
m
in
u
s
 

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
G
ro
w
in
g
 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

2
0
0
8
 -
 2
0
1
0
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 s
ta
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 e
a
c
h
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 

 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

th
re
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 

A
p
p
ly
 t
o
 B
ig
 

L
o
tt
e
ry
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 ‘
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

P
la
y
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

(a
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 P
la
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
h
a
t 

fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
a
 o
f 
‘f
re
e
 

p
la
y
’ 
a
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 p
la
y
 i
n
 s
a
fe
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ts
 

 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 D
C
  

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
B
ig
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 

- 
P
la
y
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

- 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
7
 -
 2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

D
a
te
 o
f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

p
la
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

90



 
 

 

    C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
p
g
. 
6
6
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

 
3
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 V
ib
ra
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
i.
e
. 
s
a
fe
r,
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r,
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
ll
y
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

K
E
Y
 

O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
S
/ 
 

P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
 

L
IN
K
S
 T
O
 K
E
Y
 P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 /
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IE
S
 

T
IM
E
S
C
A
L
E
 &
 

M
E
A
S
U
R
E
  

D
E
S
IR
E
D
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

A
p
p
ly
 t
o
 B
ig
 

L
o
tt
e
ry
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 ‘
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

P
la
y
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

(b
) 
U
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 P
la
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 p
la
y
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 a
n
d
 

th
e
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 a
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 B
ig
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 f
o
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

P
la
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

- 
H
u
n
ts
 D
C
  

- 
C
a
m
b
s
 C
C
 

- 
B
ig
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 

- 
P
la
y
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

- 
H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

- 
B
ig
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 ‘
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

P
la
y
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
’ 

2
0
0
7
 -
 2
0
0
8
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
: 

D
a
te
 o
f 
L
o
tt
e
ry
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
 B
ig
 

L
o
tt
e
ry
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 

s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 p
la
y
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
  

  

91



   

 

 

 

 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
pg. 67 

6.3 Evaluation and Monitoring 
 

6.3.1 Identification of ‘risk’ 
The three-year action plan outlines a variety of desired objectives each with a set of 
actions.  Given the large number of actions produced, it is inevitable that some 
actions will have an element of associated ‘risk’.  For instance, key actions linked to 
the Huntingdonshire District Council’s Play Strategy which have informed 
development of this Cultural Strategy, are dependent upon receiving funding through 
the Big Lottery’s Children’s Play Programme.  Therefore, these key actions are high 
risk, given that the Big Lottery may reject the play application.     
 
Looking more widely, local authorities are asked to deliver more innovative services 
which provide value for money, and at the same time are sustainable.   To achieve 
this, Council’s will often seek to work in partnership with external organisations and 
funding bodies, thereby creating the potential for exploiting opportunities.  Many key 
actions identified within the Action Plan involve an element of partnership working, 
whether it is between different Huntingdonshire District Council service areas, or 
external organisations. Again, this will introduce a degree of risk, which needs to be 
managed. 
 
Therefore, this Cultural Strategy acknowledges that risk management is important in 
ensuring the delivery of objectives and key actions outlined in the Action Plan.  To 
help identify the potential for risk, key organisations and partners responsible for 
delivering each action have been identified.  Furthermore, to enable actions to be 
monitored, timescales and performance measures / indicators have been established 
to enable the District Council to assess progress.   
 
This Cultural Strategy is intended to act as starting point to address issues in the 
long-term – working towards achieving the thirteen long-term cultural principles.  
Therefore, the intention is for this strategy to be reviewed in due course so that a new 
strategy will immediately follow on at the end of this initial three-year period. 
 
6.3.2 Monitoring Progress 
The development and implementation of this Cultural Strategy is a key objective of 
the Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership (Culture and Leisure Thematic 
Group).  Therefore, it follows that the three-year action plan will be monitored and 
reviewed by the Culture and Leisure Thematic Group.  Quarterly reports will be 
provided to provide a summary of on-going progress against each of the three 
identified key themes.  With regard to the specific actions and objectives identified 
within the action plan, progress will be tracked and monitored by individual service 
plans, which are refreshed on an annual basis.  If appropriate, reference will also be 
made to relevant performance indicators from the Local Area Agreement.   
 
Within the three-year action plan, Huntingdonshire District Council also commits to 
investigating and reviewing appropriate evaluation tools and where appropriate, will 
build them into the Cultural Strategy review process.   
 
This Strategy has been produced by Huntingdonshire District Council working in partnership with 
environmental consultants, Jones Plus Limited. 

 

jones plus limited+
++  

 
Consultant: Alex Jones 
e-mail: jonesplusltd@yahoo.co.uk

92



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

A. Key Policy at the National Level 
 
i. Department for Culture, Media and Sport 
The Department for Culture Media and Sport (DCMS) is the government department 
that works towards ‘improving quality of life for all through cultural and sporting 
activities, to support the pursuit of excellence and to champion the tourism, creative 
and leisure industries.’ 
 
In order to achieve this vision of extending excellence and improving access in all 
relevant sectors, the DCMS have developed five strategic priorities around which 
initiatives and work is organised, and these are as follows: 
 

§ Children and young people: Further enhance access to culture and sport for 
children and give them the opportunity to develop their talents to the full and 
enjoy the benefits of participation 

  

§ Communities: Increase and broaden the impact of culture and sport, to enrich 
individual lives, strengthen communities and improve the places where people 
live, now and for future generations 

 

§ Economy: Maximise the contribution that the tourism, creative and leisure 
industries can make to the economy  

 

§ Delivery: Modernise delivery by ensuring our sponsored bodies are efficient 
and work with others to meet the cultural and sporting needs of individuals and 
communities 

 

§ Olympics: Host an inspirational, safe and inclusive Olympic Games and 
Paralympic Games and leave a sustainable legacy for London and the UK 

 

 
ii. Choosing health: Making healthy choices easier – Government White Paper 
(2004) 
The local environment, social networks, security, socioeconomic circumstances, 
facilities and resources in local neighbourhoods can all impact upon individual health. 
There are wide-ranging differences in people’s experience of health between 
different areas and between different groups of people within the same area. This 
Government White Paper recognises that action by local authorities working with 
local communities, businesses and voluntary groups to tackle local health issues can 
make a difference to the opportunities for both adults and children to choose 
healthier lifestyles. ‘Choosing Health’ sets out clear actions to maximise the positive 
impact of the local community setting with measures that include:  
 

§ Local authorities providing local leadership to bring concerted and integrated 
local action on health 

§ Investment and new initiatives in disadvantaged and deprived communities 
§ Promoting partnership between the public and voluntary sectors with 

business to develop national and local champions for health and extend 
opportunities for people to take up healthy lifestyles in local communities. 

93



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

The White Paper recognises that limited access to opportunities for exercise can be 
a significant cause of health inequalities. For instance, older people may feel unable 
to walk in their neighbourhoods because of the state of the pavements, a poor level 
of street lighting or a fear of crime. Adults in residential homes may be significantly 
disadvantaged in accessing opportunities for physical activity. People of all ages are 
discouraged from walking or cycling by excessive traffic and its speed. 
 
Poor quality local environments also have wider impacts on public health.  To 
illustrate, fear of crime and poor maintenance can stop the use of children’s play 
areas, whilst poor quality housing has been shown to have detrimental health 
impacts. 
 
Importantly, the White Paper recognises that local cultural strategies include plans for 
sports and recreation, and create opportunities for groups of people who are not 
traditionally engaged in exercise to become active. They provide the opportunity to 
build a diverse range of facilities and venues to reach a wide range of people of all 
ages.  

 
B. Key Policy at the Regional Level 
 
i. Living East’s Cultural Strategy 
Living East, the cultural consortium for the East of England, was established in 1999 
by the Government to help promote and raise the importance of culture within the 
region, by bringing together organisations and business working within culture.  The 
main areas of work pursued by Living East include: 
 

§ strategic research and cultural planning  

§ research and intelligence gathering  

§ working with local authorities  

§ promoting the region's culture  

§ strategic social and regeneration projects  
 
“A Better Life: the role of culture in the sustainable development of the East of 
England” sets out Living East’s new cultural strategy for the region.  Its core vision is 
“to put culture at the heart of life in the East region – for every resident and visitor, 
wherever they are and whoever they are”. Supporting this statement are four key 
themes to provide a focus for investment and decision-making over the next 10–20 
years:  
 

§ embedding culture in growth and regeneration  

§ developing creativity  

§ growing cultural tourism  

§ capturing the benefits of the London 2012 Olympic Games and Paralympic 
Games 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

C. Key Policy at the Sub-Regional Level:  
 
i. A Cultural Strategy for Children and Young People in Cambridgeshire  
Underlying this Children and Young People’s Strategy is the desire to ensure ‘that all 
children and young people in Cambridgeshire are able to participate actively in 
cultural activities, including sport and the arts, as a matter of right’.  To help achieve 
this, a number of aims have been established, and these include: 
 

§ Access – in physical, emotional, attitudinal and financial terms as well as 
participation in management and ownership.  

§ Inclusion – removing the barriers which prevent children and young people 
from taking part 

§ Diversity - provision of a breadth of activities taking full account of community 
values and multi-cultural perspectives 

§ Sustainability - engaging in developmental work with providers and ensuring 
that schools and other settings are involved in embedding key local, regional 
and national initiatives. 

§ Quality - working with providers to ensure the quality of provision meets the 
needs of children and young people and the national standards of each 
profession where established. 

 
The “Cultural Strategy for Children and Young People in Cambridgeshire” is a 
partnership between schools and a wide range of individuals and organisations.  As 
part of this, Cambridgeshire County Council and other key organisations will develop 
the capacity to provide more support to schools and community and voluntary groups 
in the preparation and submission of bids for funding of sports, arts and culture 
development.  This strategy also outlines key targets for each year of the strategy.  
To illustrate, in 2007, there is an identified target that 50% of secondary schools 
should be awarded the ‘Artsmark’.   
 
ii. Cambridgeshire Horizons 
Cambridgeshire Horizons is a non-profit making company set up to drive forward the 
development of new communities and infrastructure in the Cambridge sub-region, in 
accordance with the approved Structure Plan. 
 
As part of this, ‘Quality of Life’ strategies have been produced for a number of key 
areas that impact upon culture within this sub-region, including a Strategy for Major 
Sports Facilities, a Green Spaces Strategy and an Arts and Culture Strategy.  To 
illustrate the work undertaken, headline findings for the Facilities Strategy indicate: 
 

§ The provision of community facilities relative to Sport England benchmarks is 
below regional and national averages across much of the district.   

§ Within Huntingdonshire, the specific priority area for facility development is a 
larger 8-court hall, with careful consideration required when locating such a 
facility given the present good accessibility of provision. 

§ There is a lack of third generation pitches in Huntingdonshire. 

§ In order to address increasing pressure on current provision, there is a need 
for a new two lane indoor cricket net facility to serve the Huntingdonshire 
area.  

 
 
 
 

95



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

iii. Cambridgeshire Local Area Agreement  
Local Area Agreements (LAA’s) have been established to allow for informed 
discussion between local and central government based on a shared understanding 
of national and local priorities, as well as improving efficiency and performance at the 
local level.  Resources are being targeted at four key blocks: 
 

§ Children and young people 

§ Safer and stronger communities 

§ Healthier communities and older people  

§ Economic development and enterprise 
 

Within Cambridgeshire’s LAA, cross-cutting themes run through each of the four 
blocks, as indicated below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

From this, a set of performance indicators have been established for each of the four 
blocks, including some which are highly relevant for culture.  When monitoring the 
Cultural Strategy Action Plan, if appropriate, reference should be made to relevant 
performance indicators within the LAA.  Examples of some of the relevant indicators 
include:  
 

Performance Indicator: Incidence of obesity among children under 11 
Target: Halt year on year rise in childhood obesity 

 

Performance Indicator: Young people reporting that they exercise hard at least 3 
times a week 
Target: Increase by 5% (by 2009) the percentage of young people answering that 
they had exercised hard at least three times a week 

 

Performance Indicator: Active libraries borrowers as a percentage of population 
Target: Increase percentage of active library borrowers to 20.5% 

 
 
 

96



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

Performance Indicator: Percentage of adults participating in at least thirty minutes 
moderate intensity sport and / or active recreation on three or more days a week 
Target: Establish a baseline during 06/07 in order to increase in following years the 
percentage of adults participating in at least thirty minutes moderate intensity sport  
and / or active recreation on three or more days a week by 1% each year to 2009 

 

Performance Indicator: Percentage of residents satisfied with arts activities 
Target: Establish a baseline during 06/07 in order to increase in following years 
participation in community events in the arts by 1% each year to 2009 

 
 
iv. Cambridgeshire Health: Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 
(2006) 
This report outlines a series of priorities and key recommendations for 2007, grouped 
into five key areas, including: 
 

HEALTH IMPROVEMENT 
 
Priority 1: Joint working to implement the Health Act legislation for smoke free public 
places. 
Recommendation: A joint strategic approach should be developed for implementation 
of the Health Act legislation for smoke free public places, supported by ‘Smoke Free 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough’. A key aim is to maximise accessibility of 
effective smoking cessation support to smokers affected by the legislation, who wish 
to make a quit attempt. 
Priority 2: Childhood obesity. 
Recommendation: Local systems for collection of height and weight data in primary 
schools in accordance with national guidance should be established in 2007. A 
countywide partnership strategy to prevent and address childhood obesity is needed, 
based on evidence of ‘what works’ from 2006 NICE guidance. 

 

HEALTH PROTECTION 
 
Priority 3: Population growth. 
Recommendation: The PCT and its Public Health Department should continue to 
make an input on health issues to the decision-making processes for planning for 
new growth, in particular, to Cambridgeshire Horizons. This input should be based on 
an understanding of the best available evidence regarding the infrastructure 
requirements for health, social cohesion and health services for the local population. 

 
 

SERVICE IMPROVEMENT 
 
Priority 4: A joint strategic approach to health and social care services for 
older people 
Recommendation: Development of a joint strategic plan for the health and social care 
of older people in Cambridgeshire should be taken forward in 2007, with input from 
several partner agencies and robust engagement with older people. 

 
 
 
 

97



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

HEALTH INEQUALITIES 
 
Priority 5: Developing additional indicators for health inequalities in Cambridgeshire. 
Recommendation: An additional set of health inequalities indicators for 
Cambridgeshire are needed, which allow real time measurement of progress, and 
which have a focus on children and on population groups which are most vulnerable 
to inequalities in health. 

 
 

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Priority 6: Addressing local health needs within available resources. 
Recommendation: A health needs assessment for Cambridgeshire should be carried 
out, bringing together local and national comparator sources of information. This can 
be used to inform longer-term strategic and public engagement work on provision of 
affordable and equitable health services in the county. 
Priority 7: Support for health objectives in the Local Area Agreement 
Recommendation: Processes should be put in place to ensure that joint action 
planning in support of LAA health objectives, which takes place at a local level 
through sub-groups of district-based Local Strategic Partnerships, is fully supported 
and recognised within county-wide LAA structures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

98



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

D. Local Context  
 

i. Huntingdonshire Community Strategy 
The Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership (HLSP) includes a number of 
organisations and community representatives formed to improve the area.  This 
partnership includes key partners from the public, private and voluntary sector, 
including: 
 

§ Huntingdonshire District Council 

§ Huntingdonshire Primary Care Trust 

§ Cambridgeshire County Council 

§ Cambridgeshire Police 

§ Local businesses 

§ Voluntary Sector Organisations 
 

One of the major tasks undertaken by the HLSP was the development, 
implementation and on-going monitoring of a ‘Community Strategy’ – a key document 
that outlines how members of the HLSP will work in partnership to improve the 
quality of life in the area. 
 
Produced in 2004, the long-term vision of the Community Strategy is for 
Huntingdonshire to be a place where future generations have a balanced and 
good quality of life and can enjoy – 
 

§ an environment that is protected and improved 

§ opportunities for all  

§ continued economic success 
 

The Community Plan recognises that for this vision to be sustainable, it is important 
that the three principles stated above are achieved together.  Therefore, a series of 
key outcomes have been established for each of the three principles: 
 

PRINCIPLE: Protecting and improving our environment 
 
Key outcomes: 
A high quality built and natural environment; 
Low crime 
Low fear of crime. 
 

 

PRINCIPLE: Promoting opportunity for all 
 
Key outcomes: 
A healthy population; 
Easy and affordable access to services and facilities; 
Good opportunities for learning; 
Good cultural and leisure opportunities; and 
Vibrant, confident and effective communities. 

 

 

PRINCIPLE: Supporting continued economic success 
 
Key Outcomes: 
A sustainable, buoyant and balanced local economy; 
A balanced housing market; and 
Improved and sustainable infrastructure for communities. 
 

99



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

ii. Growing Success - Corporate Plan 
Huntingdonshire District Council is responsible for promoting the economic, social 
and environmental well being of its communities, with the desired objective of 
achieving a good quality of life.  This is achieved by delivering actions and principles 
established within the Community Strategy. 
 

‘Growing Success’ is Huntingdonshire District Council’s Corporate Plan and details 
how the Council will achieve its part of the Community Strategy. It is based on 
detailed community engagement so that the council can identify local communities’ 
needs. ‘Growing Success’ identifies aims that the council will work towards, and 
details how these aims will be delivered.   
 

iii. Huntingdonshire Children and Young People’s Plan  
The Huntingdonshire Children and Young People’s Plan represents a yearly 
implementation plan linked to the countywide Children and Young Peoples Plan.    
 

The priorities for children and young people in Huntingdonshire are based on 
ensuring a pro-active approach to addressing local need according to four key 
themes: 
 

§ Deliver high quality services 

§ Ensure children, young people, parents and carers can participate in all 
decisions which affect them 

§ Develop services which are inclusive and accessible 

§ Reduce inequalities and raise achievement 
 

Huntingdonshire Children and Young People’s Plan sets out clear priority actions that 
need to be addressed over the coming year, with identified tasks and performance 
measures established to monitor progress.  Priority 4.1 of the Plan is to “Develop and 
implement a comprehensive sports, arts and culture strategy”.   
 

In order to develop such a strategy, the following tasks have been identified: 
 

§ Develop programmes for volunteers and coaches 

§ Support outreach activity in sport, heritage and the arts 

§ Develop and agree sports, arts and culture strategy, linked to the 
development of strategy within school settings (‘Children and Culture’) 

§ Develop facilities in response to the expressed needs of children and young 
people 

§ Develop programmes and activities which will support children and young 
people living in Huntingdonshire to take part in the 2012 Olympics 

§ Develop a skate park in Stukeley Meadows 

§ Develop access to community transport for young people in rural areas 

§ Support the development of skills, jobs and business creation for young 
people in creative industries through implementing a “Creative Industries 
Strategy” for Huntingdonshire 

§ Develop a skills and participation project with young people in St Neots 

§ Develop a skills project with young people not in education, employment or 
training in Eynesbury and Eaton Socon 

§ Develop a Creative Enterprise Centre on Longsands College 

§ Develop Young Enterprise in Schools project 

§ Promotion of Enterprise Insight Programme with young people 
 
 
 

100



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

iv. Fitter Futures 
Fitter Futures, funded by Age Concern, is a project focused on increasing levels of 
participation in sport and active recreation by people in midlife.  In particular, this 
project, called “Promoting an Active Life in Mid-Life”, is targeting those at greatest 
risk of poor health and social exclusion, including Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) 
groups.   
 
As part of this work, a Fitter Futures Regional Development Manager has been 
appointed to help work with Age Concern and other key organisations including the 
community and voluntary sector, forging strong links with sport and recreation 
sectors within six counties, including Cambridgeshire.   
 
v. Huntingdonshire Play Strategy 
A specific Play Strategy is being developed for Huntingdonshire as part of, and in 
parallel to, this Culture Strategy. This strategy recognises that the quality, quantity 
and accessibility of play provision varies across the district depending on where 
children and young people live.  Huntingdonshire District Council is committed to the 
development of play and recreational opportunities in all localities.  Future 
development will be co-ordinated at district or town/parish level in order to secure the 
most appropriate, sustainable provision for local communities. 
 
The Play Strategy has been informed by a range of consultations with children, 
young people and parents and also takes account of local and national policy 
initiatives and organisational priorities.  It outlines priority targets for Huntingdonshire 
for 2007 – 2012, and it will provide a clear framework for investment and ensure that 
play initiatives are developed in line with other relevant plans and strategies.  With 
this in mind, the targets of the strategy are: 
 

§ To establish play as an entitlement for children and young people in 
Huntingdonshire. 

§ To identify priorities for development necessary to secure children and young 
people’s entitlement to play 

§ To set out aims and objectives for the short to long term 

§ To ensure that children and young people’s entitlement to play is embedded 
in service planning  

 
At the core of this strategy is the vision that “all children and young people in 
Huntingdonshire will be able to access a range of play opportunities suited to their 
needs and interests”, with a focus on changing attitudes to play and delivering 
sustainable, free play opportunities for children and young people.   Based on 
consultation and audits of provision, the following priorities are identified in the 
strategy (see over): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

101



   

 

 

 

_____________ 
Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007-2010)  
 

 

 
a) Changing people’s attitude to play 
b) Need: areas with a high population of children and young people and few 

facilities; deprived areas where targeted intervention is needed; rural areas 
with limited access to facilities and no plans for development; and areas 
where there are high incidents of Anti Social Behaviour. 

c) Including play in strategic planning e.g. 
- All developments: 

i. will take account of the different needs of children and young people of 
different ages  

ii. will consider the sustainability of provision, this could include developing 
comprehensive exit strategies for pump-priming projects  

iii. will have clearly visible benefits to children and young people 

- Identifying play opportunities within major projects e.g. Great Fen 
Project, Children’s Trusts 
- Effective use of external funding e.g. 106 agreements 

  
 
vi. Creative Enterprise: A Strategy for Huntingdonshire 
A Creative Enterprise strategy is currently being finalised for Huntingdonshire 
Creative enterprises are “industries which have their origin in individual creativity, skill 
and talent and which have a potential for wealth and job creation through the 
exploitation of intellectual property”.  With this in mind, creative enterprises focuses 
on areas such as advertising, designer fashion, film and video, music, the performing 
arts, photography, etc. 
 
At the national, regional and local level, it has been recognised that the profile of 
creative industries needs to be raised.  Similarly, another perceived problem is the 
fragmented nature of the sector.  The purpose of “Creative Enterprise: A Strategy for 
Huntingdonshire” is to promote two main aims: 
 

§ To increase the sustainability, growth and productivity of creative industries 

§ To maximise the potential for creative industries to contribute towards broader 
social, economic and cultural regeneration. 

 
To achieve these broad aims, a detailed list of key activities has been identified.  One 
of the key headline actions is the development of a district-based creative industries 
hub in St Neots – the largest town in Cambridgeshire – where it has been identified 
that there are opportunities to grow and diversify the local economy through creative 
enterprise.   
 
vii. Other Emerging Strategies 
Aside from the strategies mentioned above, other key emerging strategies that 
impact upon culture include the Environment Strategy and the Economic 
Development Strategy.  The Environment Strategy has clear links to areas of culture 
including countryside and biodiversity, and reference is made to the synergy between 
different Council strategies when considering the objectives and actions identified 
within the Cultural Strategy Action Plan. 
 
With regard to the Economic Development Strategy, there are clear links to be made 
to the Creative Enterprise Strategy discussed in point vi, and this is again 
emphasised within the Action Plan of the Cultural Strategy.  

102



 
 

 

   _
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 

C
u
lt
u
r
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r
 H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 (
2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
)
 

 
 

H
S
P

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 &
 c
ro
s
s
 c
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
e
s
, 
S
ig
n
 o
ff
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

C
o
u
n
ty
 V
is
io
n

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
: 
N
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 A
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
rs
o
n
s
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 S
tr
a
te
g
y P
la
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 &
 

a
g
re
e
 k
e
y
 a
re
a
s
, 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 &
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

C
o
re
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
/L
D
F

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

F
o
ru
m

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

&
 A
c
c
e
s
s

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

C
h
il
d
re
n
 &
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

C
u
lt
u
re
 &
 

L
e
is
u
re

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
H
s
g
&
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re

L
o
c
a
l 

E
c
o
n
o
m
y

C
h
il
d
re
n
 &
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

&
 A
c
c
e
s
s

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 

S
k
il
ls

C
u
lt
u
re
 &
 

L
e
is
u
re

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
H
s
g
&
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re

O
c
t/
N
o
v
 0
7

D
e
c
0
7
/J
a
n
0
8

1
0
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
0
7

J
u
n
/J
u
ly
 +
 

S
e
p
t 

M
a
y
 +
 S
e
p
t

A
p
ri
l/
M
a
y

G
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 b
o
d
y

C
u
lt
u
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

E
IA

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

  103



104

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 
 
CABINET 4 OCTOBER 2007 
 
 
A SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY FOR HUNTINGDONSHIRE 

(Report by Head of Policy and Strategic Services) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an opportunity for discussion on 

the review of the Sustainable Community Strategy for Huntingdonshire 
(SCS).  It briefly outlines the process and current progress in developing 
the strategy. The attached draft strategy document is subject still to 
consultation and review, specifically by partnership groups, the 
Corporate and Strategic Framework Overview and Scrutiny Panel and 
the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership Board and is still at a 
formative stage.  

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The District and County Council have a statutory duty to work with 

partner organisations to produce a Sustainable Community Strategy - a 
plan that sets out how the providers of local services – including the 
business and voluntary sectors - will work together to improve the 
economic, social and environmental well being of the area in which they 
operate. 

 
2.2 A Community Strategy for Huntingdonshire was adopted in 2004 by the 

Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership and partner organisations.  Each 
year there has been a desktop review with a substantial review planned 
after three years.  This coincides with the duty to prepare and maintain a 
SCS reiterated in the Local Government White Paper; ‘Strong and 
Prosperous Communities’. In particular the SCS will be an important 
means of informing and influencing the new Local Area Agreement and 
ultimately the allocation of resources.  

 
2.3 The development of the strategy is being carried out in two parts, firstly 

the updating of the vision and identification of the outcomes and 
objectives that will help to ensure a good quality of life over the longer 
period. The second part will involve producing shorter term action or 
delivery plans to show how partners in the District will work together to 
help achieve the shared vision.  

 
2.3 Currently, the Council is developing a new ‘Local Development 

Framework’, specifically a ‘core strategy’. The importance of the link 
between the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local 
Development Framework (which in practice will direct and determine 
much of the physical development needed to achieve sustainable 
communities) has been widely acknowledged. It is paramount that the 
two documents should, as far as appropriate, share a common vision, 
evidence base and, whenever possible, share engagement with 
stakeholders.   

 
3. PROGRAMME OF REVIEW  
 

Agenda Item 6

105



 

3.1 Stage 1 – completed 
 Huntingdonshire District Council services, partnership groups and/or 

stakeholders have been asked to identify the issues that should be 
addressed in the SCS.  This information, together with evidence from a 
range of strategy work currently underway has been collated and 
analysed to produce key issues for Huntingdonshire.  The key issues 
highlight the evidence reviewed to date.  Similarly the first stage of the 
Local Development Framework has been completed – issues and 
options papers- have sought the views of partners, stakeholders and the 
wider community.   

 
3.2 Stage 2 – completed 
 The issues identified have been considered HSP partnership groups and 

key partners/stakeholders to prompt further discussion and debate 
 

3.3 Stage3 – September/November 2007 
 Outcomes and objectives for Huntingdonshire have been identified from 

the evidence from the first two stages of the process.  The strategic 
themes and outcomes will contribute to the “County-wide Vision” 
process, which will help in the development of the new Local Area 
Agreement and will be used to develop both the Sustainable Community 
Strategy for Huntingdonshire and the Local Development Framework.  

 
3.4 Stage 4 – November 2007/Spring 2008 
 Refinement of the specific objectives and action planning will start 

immediately after the HSP Board “signs off” the draft strategy.  
 
4 RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Cabinet consider and comment on the draft Huntingdonshire 
Sustainable Community Strategy generally and specifically:- 

• The appropriateness of the six strategic themes;  

• Whether the outcomes and objectives sufficiently support the 
Council’s vision and priorities; and  

• Priorities areas for Huntingdonshire which are not highlighted in 
the draft strategy. 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Huntingdonshire Community Strategy 2004 
Local Government White Paper, ‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’ 
 
 
Contact Officer: Claire Sides, Senior Policy Officer 
 (((( 01480 388495 
 

106



CABINET 27 SEPTEMBER 2007 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report comments on the performance of the fund from April to 
August 2007 and the changes made to the Fund Managers in 
September 2007. At the beginning of the year the Fund Managers 
managed £53m of the Council’s funds: £21.5m with Investec, and 
£31.5m with CDCM.   

 
2. PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 
 

2.1  Annex A provides comparative tables showing investment returns over 
various periods. 

2.2  April to June 2007 
The interest on investments is the increase in the total value of the fund 
over the period in question. In the first quarter of the year the capital 
value of the assets held by Investec fell due to market changes which 
thus reduced the interest for the quarter. Overall they were below the 
benchmark, 7-day rate and industry average. 
 
CDCM achieved a better return in real terms, but were behind their 
benchmark.  This is because the majority of their funds are invested in 
the medium term and these rates, which were beneficial at the time, are 
now below current market rates. However taken in a longer time frame, 
CDCM has had a very satisfactory track record. During the quarter they 
exceeded the industry average but were below the 7 day rate. 

 
2.3 July to August 2007 
 Investec’s performance was above the benchmark in July but below in 

August due to the volatility following the problems in the USA sub-prime 
mortgage market. CDCM’s investments continued to be below their 
benchmark and the 7 day rate for the reasons explained above.  

 

3. INVESTEC’S PERFORMANCE 

3.1 The performance of the fund managed by Investec has been a concern 
for some months now, particularly in the light of the interest rates 
available for time deposits, and it did not improve in the first quarter of 
this year. The Capital Receipts Advisory Group met on 30 July 2007 with 
Chris Anthony from Butlers, our Treasury Management advisers. With 
market rates being above 6% and bearing in mind that the financial plan 
shows that the Authority will need the funds in 1 to 2 years, it was 
considered to be the right time to bring the funds managed by Investec 
back in-house. 

3.2 Investec accordingly returned £21.5m on 3 September 2007 and these 
funds have been invested until March 2008 at rates of between 6.24% 
and 6.3%. 

 

Agenda Item 7

107



3.3 The Treasury Management Strategy permits a maximum investment of 
£2.5m with any counterparty but allows the Head of Financial Services 
to make changes that are deemed to be in the Council’s interests but 
which do not increase the Council’s risks more than marginally. Chris 
Anthony advised that the increase in risk of raising this limit to £5m, as 
long as limited to counterparties with high long term credit ratings and 
avoiding any which CDCM already had funds with, was negligible. The 
Head of Financial Services has therefore, with the support of CRAG, 
made 3 investments of £5M, for up to 18 months, to achieve slightly 
higher interest rates. 

 
4. PERFORMANCE AGAINST BUDGET IN 2007/8 
 
4.1 The latest forecast outturn is additional interest of £120k on the budget 

of £2,587k.  

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

5.1 It is recommended that Cabinet note this report. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Working papers in Financial Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Steve Couper – Head of Financial Services    Tel. 01480 388103 
 

 
 
 

108



ANNEX A 
 

PERFORMANCE FOR THE QUARTER  APRIL 2007 – JUNE 2007 

 Performance 
% 

Benchmark  
% 

Variation 
from 

benchmark 

Industry average 
% 

Variation from 
average 

% 

Investec 0.92 0.93 * -0.01 1.16 -0.24 

CDCM 1.28 1.42 ** -0.14 1.16 +0.12 

 
 

CUMULATIVE PERFORMANCE SINCE JULY 2000 

 Performance 
% 

Benchmark  
% 

Variation from 
benchmark 

Industry 
average % 

Variation from 
average 

% 

Investec 38.22 37.87 0.35 36.83 1.39 

CDCM 40.94 37.26 3.68 36.83 4.11 

 
 

*   Composite of 60% Merrill Lynch 3 month LIBID (London Inter-Bank Bid 
Rate) and 40% ML 0-5yr Gilt Index.  

**  3 month LIBID 

 

109



110

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CABINET 4 OCTOBER 2007 
 

VOLUNTARY  SECTOR  COMMISSIONING 
Report by Head of Environmental and Community Health 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ approval to shift the 

present approach from grant-aiding community and charity projects 
annually to commissioning some longer-term services, proactively from 
the voluntary and community sector.   

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Historically Huntingdonshire District Council has been able to support 

community and charity projects within Huntingdonshire to help to provide 
the widest possible range of services to all sectors of the community.  
This has been achieved by advertising and accepting bids on an annual 
basis, evaluating those bids and prioritising them for consideration 
against the available budget (capital and revenue).  The final allocation 
is determined by two nominated Members after detailed consideration of 
the competing merits of the many bids. 

 
2.2 The present procedure for financially supporting voluntary and 

community services and initiatives has operated for 10 years.  A 
commissioning model would fundamentally change this approach to 
either directly inviting tenders or dealing directly with specific 
voluntary/community organisations.  

 
2.3 The bidding and sorting process of the existing system has limited the 

awards to funding only those projects, initiatives or services that have 
been submitted.  It is essentially a reactive process.  Commissioning 
services could allow the Council to be more pro-active in seeking bids 
for funding support to meet specific service criteria.  In this way the 
commissioning framework could reflect the Council’s objectives and 
those within the Strategic Community Strategy, giving a more focused 
procurement of community and voluntary support.  The commissioning 
process also allows service objectives/outcomes to be determined at the 
outset and monitored during the life of the commissioning agreement. 

 
2.4 At the last Grant Award meeting, 26 April 2007,  the nominated Cabinet 

Members with a view to changing the present grant aid allocation 
process to a commissioning model linked to the Authority’s priorities set 
out in Growing Success and the Cambridgeshire Local Area Agreement. 

 
Growing Success priorities: 
 

♦ A clean ‘green’ attractive place; 

♦ Housing that meets local need; 

♦ Safe, vibrant and inclusive communities; 

♦ Healthy living; 

♦ Access to services and transport; and 

♦ A strong diverse economy. 
 

Agenda Item 8

111



 

 

Local Area Agreement priorities: 
 

♦ Children and Young People; 

♦ Safer and Stronger Communities; 

♦ Healthier Communities & Older People; and 

♦ Economic Development & Enterprise. 
 
2.5 The commissioning process will clearly set out: what services or 

activities the authority will wish to directly commission, a description of 
the service/activity to be provided, the key targets required for the 
service/activity and the performance indicators against which the 
service/activity provided will be monitored, plus the level of funds 
available for each area of activity. 

 
3. NEED FOR FINANCIAL SUPPORT OF VOLUNTARY SECTOR, ETC 

 
3.1 An active and vibrant voluntary and community sector is an important 

measure of social capital.  Social capital is seen as important for 
communities in counteracting any tendency toward anti-social behaviour 
or discrimination between minority groups, etc; it maintains the sense of 
‘community’.  There are also benefits for socially-active individuals as 
research shows their personal sense of well-being and content are 
increased by community participation or voluntary service.   

 
3.2 It is estimated that there are over 1,500 voluntary and community 

organisations active in Huntingdonshire.  The vast majority of voluntary 
and community organisations operate without any reference to statutory 
sector agencies. 

 
3.3 Presently the Council financially supports voluntary and community 

services/activities from a variety of service areas in addition to the 
traditional grant aid budget: 

 

♦ Transport 

♦ Community safety 

♦ Healthy Lifestyles 

♦ Leisure development 

♦ Arts 

♦ Economic development 
 
3.4 It must be noted that a small number of strategically important voluntary 

and community organisations also receive funding from other statutory 
agencies, Cambridgeshire County Council and Cambridgeshire Primary 
Care Trust.  In these cases it would be appropriate that joint 
commissioning agreements be established with the relevant statutory 
agency. 

 
3.5 In addition to addressing the Council’s and LAA priorities set out in 2.4 

above, the Council would expect all providers to promote and deliver 
inclusive services to all communities, irrespective of ethnicity, gender, 
disability, religion/faith or sexual orientation.  Providers will therefore be 
encouraged to build up a representative service user base across all the 
groups, ensuring that all the needs of diverse groups are met. 

 

112



 

 

3.6 If Members support the commissioning model, a framework will be 
established that will outline what is required of the service provider, the 
proposed assessment process and performance targets for each 
service.  In addition it is proposed there should be a number of 
mandatory criteria to satisfy.  These would cover issues such as: 
management & financial systems, equal opportunities, employment 
practices, insurance, procedures for protection of vulnerable adults and 
children (see annex 2 below), plus monitoring and evaluation 
procedures. (Annex 1 below provides an outline of potential service 
targets for commissioned services.  Annex 2 outlines the management 
standards which the Authority could expect all organisations to adhere.) 

 
4.  MINIMISING THE IMPACT OF CHANGE ON SMALL VOLUNTARY 

ORGANSATIONS 
 
4.1  Moving to a commissioning model will very possibly result in a reduction 

in the number of organisations being directly supported by the Council.  
The difficulty this may pose for some small organisations who are not 
able to supply commissioned services, or who are unwilling or unable to 
form an alliance with others within the sector to fulfil some 
commissioned role, could be minimised in some cases by a minor 
alteration to the Council’s Capital Grant constraints.   

 
4.2 Historically the revenue grant aid budget has been used by small local 

voluntary and community organisations when seeking financial support 
to purchase equipment, eg computers, photocopiers etc.  These are 
capital items that could be supported through capital grant aid.  The 
present terms of reference for the capital grant aid budget are quite 
constrained, with the priorities set at: village hall, playing field and play 
areas.  Accessibility to the fund is further limited to one-off expenditure.  
If the present terms of reference for the capital grant aid budget were 
amended, this would allow these minor capital bids to be considered and 
help address any concerns that might arise from the voluntary sector 
about the changes from grant-aid to commissioning. 

 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  Historically Huntingdonshire District Council has been able to support 

community and charity projects within Huntingdonshire.  The present 
procedure for financially supporting voluntary and community services 
and initiatives has operated for 10 years.  The existing system has 
limited the awards to funding only those bids that have been submitted.  
The commissioning process allows procurement of service to achieve 
the Council’s and/or identified community objectives; it also allows 
service objectives/outcomes to be determined at the outset and 
monitored during the life of the commissioning agreement to ensure that 
the desired outputs/outcomes are being realised for the investment. A 
commissioning approach is being promoted by the Audit Commission as 
an example of good practice. 

 
6 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
a. It is RECOMMENDED that Cabinet approves the proposal to move to a 

commissioning approach in future. 
 

113



 

 

b. It is RECOMMENDED that the terms of reference for the capital 
grant aid budget be amended to relax the eligibility criteria to allow 
a wider range of voluntary and community applications to be 
considered. 

 
 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Dan Smith 
 (((( 01480 388377 

 

114



 

 

Annex 1 

Annex 1 a Build social capital 

 

Priority HDC - Safe, vibrant and inclusive communities 

 LAA - Safer and stronger communities 

 

Key Target • To enable Huntingdonshire residents to take an active part in 
their community 

• To work to ensure that communities are inclusive 

 

Service 
Description 

A professional support, development and promotion service for 
the voluntary and community sector (VCS), to enable it to 
become more sustainable, enterprising and effective.  This will 
include:- 

 • Practical assistance and support, including a fundraising 
service, training and general support on governance, 
management and employment; 

 • Leadership of the sector, including taking the lead on 
initiatives to encourage and facilitate groups to network, 
merge or cluster, and common share services and facilities; 

 • Representation of the sector at strategic level, facilitating third 
sector involvement in shaping the delivery of public services; 

 • Facilitating consultation and communication, including 
providing an effective liaison function between the local 
authority and the VCS, through newsletters and consultative 
mechanisms, and enabling the views of the VCS to be 
articulated on local, regional and national policies and issues; 

 • Build the capacity of the VCS to enable them to meet 
collectively the need of their communities in terms of both 
community leadership and service provision. 

 

Performance 
Indicators 

• At least £X pounds per annum levered into Huntingdonshire 
through funding bids; 

 • A minimum of X organisations per annum supported to 
present bids to external funders; 

 • X organisations supported to acquire accreditation relevant 
to their service area.  (These include IIP, PQASSO, Quality 
Mark etc.) 

 • X organisations per annum supported to develop enterprise 
strategies; 

 • Database of voluntary/community organisations in 
Huntingdonshire (not just affiliated members) provided and 
updated twice a year; 

 • Web site newsletter produced containing funding 
information, updated monthly. 

 

Funding £ xxxxxx  for 5 years 

 

Indicative 
Award 

1 

 
 
 

115



 

 

 
 

Annex 1 b Volunteering, development and support 

 

Priority HDC - Safe, vibrant and inclusive communities 

 LAA - Safer and Stronger Communities 

 

Service 
Description 

A volunteer development agency, to provide services to 
volunteers and volunteer-involving organisations. This will 
include: 

 • Developing a local volunteering infrastructure; 

 • Developing and widening volunteering opportunities in the 
voluntary, statutory and private sectors; 

 • Targeting excluded and underrepresented groups; 

 • Improving co-ordination and joint working between the major 
volunteer-involving organisations in Huntingdonshire; 

 • Working with partners to create pathways from volunteering 
to employment where appropriate; 

 • Raise the profile and knowledge of volunteering 
opportunities in Huntingdonshire; 

 • Develop arrangements for recognising the voluntary 
contributions individuals and organisations are making in 
Huntingdonshire; 

 • Provision of personal development and support for 
volunteers. 

 

Performance 
Indicators 

• Increase the number of volunteers recruited and placed with 
organisations as follows: 

2007/08 – X 
2008/09 – X 
2009/10 – X 
2010/11 – X 
2011/12 – X 

 • Plan and organise X volunteering events per year to promote 
volunteering opportunities in Huntingdonshire. 

 • Increase the number of organisations receiving volunteers by 
X % per year. 

 • X volunteers per annum acquiring national accredited 
qualifications for their volunteering. 

 

Funding £ xxxxx  for 5 years 

 

Indicative 
Award 

1 

 

116



 

 

 

Annex 1 c Advice and Information 

 

Priority HDC - Safe, vibrant and inclusive communities 

 LAA - Safer and Stronger Communities 

 

Service 
Description 

To provide independent, accessible and equitable generic advice 
and information service for local residents to accredited quality 
level.  All advice services must be accessible face to face, 
electronically or by telephone.  The service will include: 

 • Dealing with advice cases to address social exclusion; 

 • Work with other advice agencies to improve co-ordination of 
advice services, provide guidance and deliver mentoring 
support.  

 

Performance 
Indicators 

• A minimum of xxxxx advice cases dealt with in the following 
areas: 
Income maximisation/specific for welfare benefits; 
Homelessness; 
Employment; and 
Immigration and asylum per annum 

 • A minimum of xxxxx hours of advice delivered per annum. 

 • A minimum of £xxxxx gained for clients from advice per 
annum. 

 • A minimum of 10% of operational funds per annum acquired 
externally. 

 

Funding £ xxxxx  for 5 years 

 

Indicative 
Award 

1/2 

117



 

 

Annex 2 
 

Organisational Criteria (mandatory) 

Management You must hold regular committee meetings, including an annual 
general meeting, and you must have a business plan or 
demonstrate that you can develop such a plan for your 
organisation. 

 

Financial 
Systems 

You must comply with all financial and accounting requirements 
of Charity and/or Company law. 
You must follow good practice in relation to internal financial 
controls. 
Organisations with an annual turnover of £10,000 and above 
must have published accounts. 

 

Equal 
Opportunities 

You must have a written equal opportunities policy and code of 
practice and these must comply with current relevant 
legislation. 

 

Employment 
Practices 

For organisations where staff will be recruited to deliver 
services, you must hold advertised and open competitive 
interviews, and fill the post only through the results of these 
interviews. 
You must issue all staff with a statement of principal terms and 
conditions of employment and a job description. 

 

Insurance Your organisation must have and maintain adequate insurance 
cover for your activities, events, staff, premises, equipment and 
vehicles including: 

♦ Public liability; 

♦ Employers liability cover if staff are employed; 

♦ Property and equipment insurance against fire, theft, 
loss or damage; 

♦ Vehicle/driver insurance if vehicles are owned and/or 
driven; 

♦ Personal indemnity if advice is given to members of 
the public. 

 

Criminal 
Records 
Bureau 

You must ensure and have evidence that all staff working with 
children and vulnerable adults have been vetted through the 
Criminal Records Bureau. 

 

Protection of 
vulnerable 
adults 

Organisations working with vulnerable adults must have a 
protection of vulnerable adults policy and procedure. 
Employees or volunteers working with vulnerable adults must 
be trained in the protection of vulnerable adults. 

 

Child 
Protection 

Organisations working with children must have a child 
protection policy and procedure.  Employees or volunteers 
working with children must be trained in child protection. 

 

118



CABINET 4th OCTOBER 2007 
 

PROMOTING BETTER HEALTH IN OLDER PEOPLE THROUGH PHYSICAL 
ACTIVITY 

(Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery)) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report provides information that was previously requested by the 

Cabinet on proposals by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery) 
to enhance services in the District for older people in order to enable them to 
retain their physical fitness for longer. 

 
1.2 It needs to be read in conjunction with comments by the Heads of 

Administration and of Environmental and Community Health Services, 
which are attached at Appendix A. 

 
2. INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Cabinet, at a previous meeting, gave initial consideration to a report, 

which made a range of recommendations on services for older people.  The 
report (minus the appendices) is attached for information at Appendix B.  As 
a result of the Cabinet’s decision, the Working Group, which undertook the 
study work on behalf of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel, met with the 
Heads of Administration and of Environmental and Community Health to 
discuss the submission of further information. 

 
2.2 The Working Group wish to emphasise the demographic changes that face 

the District to underline the importance of approving their proposals.  To 
reiterate approximately 13% of the population of the District is aged 65 or 
over and Huntingdonshire has the largest number of over 65s in 
Cambridgeshire. Huntingdonshire also has the largest number of residents 
over 75 and the second largest number aged over 85. It is predicted that the 
population aged over 65 will increase by 50% between 2002 and 2016, 
which is double the national rate.  With this in mind the Working Group 
submits the operational and financial information requested by the Cabinet. 

 
2.3 Appendix C to this report sets out the operational and financial implications 

of participation by the Council in the Out and About project from the 
perspective of the leisure centres.  It can be seen that the cost of the 
proposals is estimated at £5,400 and a breakdown of the required 
attendances and the resulting income to meet this, also is indicated.  It is 
stressed that losses on classes incurred during the pilot will be underwritten 
by the Out and About Steering Group. 

 
2.4 Appendix D contains details of the Active at 50 project, which is the other 

avenue through which the aims of the report by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel can be delivered.  The Cabinet is requested to note the current 
position with regard to the Big Lottery Fund’s Well Being programme. 

 
2.5 The Working Group has taken the opportunity to discuss the progress of the 

Out and About project with representatives of Luminus Group.  To date a 
cautious, staged approach has been adopted.  The project is on course to 
meet its target of signing up 700 residents within the first three years and 

Agenda Item 9

119



positive feedback has been received from satisfaction surveys.  However, 
the Working Group is concerned that the project should be rolled out across 
the District and particularly in larger villages.  To this end discussion has 
taken place on promoting it through the Districtwide publication. 

 
2.6 The Working Group also has reviewed the position of its other 

recommendations and, as a result, two points can be made.  Firstly, since 
the original report was compiled the Council has been represented on the 
Out and About Steering Group by Simon Bell and Stuart Bell.  Secondly, 
having obtained further advice, the Working Group is of the view that the 
Culture and Leisure Thematic Group would be a more appropriate forum 
within the Local Strategic Partnership to deal with the issues raised in this 
report. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery) previously identified a 

number of initiatives that might be pursued to promote better health in older 
people through physical activity.  Following consideration of these initiatives 
the Cabinet requested further information on their operational and financial 
implications.  The Older Persons Working Group has compiled this 
information and it has been summarised above and in Appendices C and D.  
Having considered this information, the Cabinet is: 

 
RECOMMENDED to - 

 
(1) note the arrangements that have been put in place for officers to 

support the Out and About Steering Group; 
(2) endorse the importance of promoting Out and About through the 

Leisure Service and Districtwide; 
(3) note Out and About’s targets to establish a programme of exercise 

for older people at Luminus Sheltered Housing and to extend it to 
‘hub’ villages and the progress towards them; 

(4) endorse the financial arrangements contained in Appendix B, 
which relate to Recommendations (5), (6) and (9) of the original 
report. 

(5) note the current position with regard to the Active at 50 project bid; 
(6) introduce measures to ensure continuity of existing classes 

provided by the voluntary sector;  
(7) compile and maintain a comprehensive and up to date database 

of exercise services and facilities for older people; 
(8) request the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership’s Culture and 

Leisure Thematic Group to consider adopting the promotion of 
physical exercise amongst older people as one of its objectives; 
and 

(9) undertake a review of progress with the implementation of 
recommendations (1) to (8) for submission to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery). 

 
Contact Officer: Mr A Roberts (01480) 388009 
 
Background Documents – Reports of meetings of the Older Persons Working 
Group. 
 

120



APPENDIX A 
 

COMMENTS BY HEADS OF SERVICE ON THE PANEL’S RECOMMENDATIONS. 
 
The Heads of Environmental and Community Health Services and of Administration 
have provided the commentary below on each of the recommendations contained in 
the report. 
 
1. Despite a request by the Working Group that undertook the study, a formal 

invitation for the Council to be represented on the Out and About Steering 
Group has not been received from Luminus.  The Council, therefore, is not in 
a position to appoint a representative. 

 
 It is the case, however, that the Leisure Centres Co-ordinator and the 

Transportation Team Leader have been attending meetings of Out and About. 
 
2. The Leisure Centres will, for 2008, be producing their own guide to activities 

for the 50+ age-group.  The guide will contain references to external 
agencies’ activities, including Out and About. 

 
Out and About currently produce their own leaflet which briefly details 
available activities for the 50+ age group at the Centres and elsewhere. This 
is circulated to their existing 200+ members (i.e. they have 200 or more 
members, not those over 200 years of age!!) 

 
3. The Council has no budget provision to undertake the work involved in this 

recommendation.  To achieve this recommendation a bid for funding was 
submitted to the Big Lottery Fund. The bid for the Active at 50 project was 
successful and the Council has been awarded £46,830.  The project is being 
planned for implementation in 2008/09, however it is still dependant on the 
success of an MTP bid for match-funding. 

 
4. Space was created in the Centres’ timetables to host 50+ activities but Out 

and About did not follow through with arrangements to ensure that the 
Centres did not lose out financially and the activities do not run as originally 
planned.  However, the Centres are participating in “Cambridgeshire 
Celebrates Age” (8th October for one week) and will be providing a selection 
of free classes and pool sessions for the over 50’s. This will enable the 
Centres to ascertain a level of demand for the activities on offer which will, in 
turn, assist in future marketing initiatives. 

 
5. See 3 above. 
 
6. Classes in the voluntary sector have a natural life.  Either they evolve to 

become viable businesses or, if there is not a true gap in demand, they wane.  
Intervention by the Council needs to be considered on a case by case basis. 

 
7. There currently is no budget provision to create a database of services and 

facilities for older people.  Cambridgeshire County Council recently 
established a similar database of youth initiatives, towards the cost of which a 
grant of £45k was received.  It is likely that a similar sum would be required to 
implement this recommendation. 

 

121



8. The Thematic Group sets priorities according to health need.  The Primary 
Care Trust is presently involved in a joint health needs assessment for Older 
people. 

122



APPENDIX B 
 
 
 

PROMOTING BETTER HEALTH IN OLDER PEOPLE THROUGH PHYSICAL 
ACTIVITY 

(Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery)) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.2 This report summarises the findings of a study by the Older Persons 

Working Group and contains Members’ recommendations arising from that 
study, which have been endorsed by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery).  The Working Group was established by the former 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery and Resources) and 
comprised Councillors Mrs M Banerjee, K J Churchill and D Harty. It met on 
a number of occasions, the last being 16th June 2006. 

 
1.3 Following analysis of the needs of older people and of the services available 

to them, the Working Group decided to concentrate on promoting better 
health in older people through physical activity.  Members’ overarching aim 
was to prolong active life for the residents of Huntingdonshire.  The Council 
had responsibility for the governance of the community and for its health and 
its social well-being.  The proposed programme met both of these 
responsibilities.  It also accorded with the Council’s Core Strategy objective 
of enabling elderly people to live independently for their lifetime and 
corresponded with the Government’s objective of enabling older people to 
remain in their homes. 

 
1.3 In undertaking the study the Working Group was mindful of predicted 

demographic changes in Huntingdonshire. Approximately 13% of the 
population of the District is aged 65 or over and Huntingdonshire has the 
largest number of over 65s in Cambridgeshire. Huntingdonshire also has the 
largest number of residents over 75 and the second largest number aged 
over 85. It is predicted that the population aged over 65 will increase by 50% 
between 2002 and 2016, which is double the national rate. 

 
1.4 In the course of the study the Working Group held discussions with 
 

♦ Councillor Mrs J Chandler, Executive Councillor with 
responsibility for Leisure; 

♦ J Barrett, Huntingdonshire District Council ; 

♦ S Lammin, Huntingdonshire District Council; 

♦ S Plant, Huntingdonshire District Council; 

♦ D Smith, Huntingdonshire District Council; 

♦ M Collins, Huntingdonshire Primary Care Trust 

♦ A Gardener, Huntingdonshire Primary Care Trust; 

♦ N Finney, Luminus; 

♦ A Goddard, Luminus, and 

♦ S Bell, Huntingdonshire District Council. 
 

123



1.5 The Working Group recommended the Council extend its current range of 
services to meet the needs of older people. Details of the services currently 
provided by the Council for older people are attached at Appendix A and a 
list of services provided by the Council for those aged over 50 compared 
with other local authorities in Cambridgeshire appears at Appendix B.  
Appendix B does not contain facilities provided at St Neots Leisure Centre. 

 
2. THE WORKING GROUP’S FINDINGS 
 
2.1 The following paragraphs summarise the discussions held and conclusions 

reached by the Working Group. 
 
 a) Falls Prevention 
 
2.2 The Working Group received a presentation from A Gardiner on her work on 

falls prevention. Mrs Gardener was employed by the PCT but was based at 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital as part of a team working on falls prevention, which 
included specialists on physiotherapy and exercise. Approximately 8,000 
falls occurred per year in Huntingdonshire. There was a greater likelihood 
that those aged over 65 years would experience a fall and the chances of 
those over 80 falling were 1:2.  Falls had a significant impact on individuals’ 
lives. There was, therefore, a need to reduce to the incidence of falls, 
particularly amongst the elderly and exercise was perceived to be an 
important factor. 

 
2.3 Mrs Gardener acquainted the Working Group with exercise sessions held at 

the Women’s Institute Centre in Warboys. The sessions were run by staff 
from Ramsey Leisure Centre and key features to their success were their 
cost, location, transportation and the opportunity they offered for social 
interaction.  As an example of best practice in Huntingdonshire, which could 
be replicated throughout the District, Mrs Gardiner expressed the view that 
the initiative in Warboys demonstrated that the link between the Council’s 
leisure service and locally delivered services was critical.  In particular, she 
stressed the importance of specialist training for the staff involved and Mrs 
Gardiner’s team would be able to provide this training.  It subsequently was 
established that this would not meet the Council’s standard of training 
required for teaching exercise classes for older people.  See paragraph 
2.19. 

 
 b) Sheltered Accommodation 
 
2.4 The Working Group considered opportunities to provide exercise 

programmes at sheltered accommodation in the district. It was felt that there 
was demand for such services and advice from the PCT suggested that 
such classes needed to be provided on a regular basis (2/3 times a week) 
so as to achieve the required physical benefits and build a regular clientele. 

 
2.5 Mr N Finney, Group Director of Housing Services, provided the Working 

Group with details of the sheltered accommodation operated by Luminus. 
He also outlined proposals by Luminus to introduce an initiative named “Out 
and About” to provide activities for older people, the cost of which would be 
partly met by lottery funding. 

 
2.6 With regard to sheltered accommodation, the Working Group noted: 
 

124



♦ Luminus operated 13 sheltered schemes in the District; 

♦ Luminus Sheltered schemes housed 590 older people; 

♦ In total 1,000 older people occupied properties operated by 
Luminus. 

 
2.7 It was intended that Out and About would start operating in July 2006. It 

would: 
 

♦ Provide a 15 seater mini bus which had been fully adapted to 
accommodate those with impaired mobility; 

♦ Employ a part-time driver and part-time activities co-ordinator; 

♦ Provide an annual programme of activities for older people; 

♦ Be open to sheltered accommodation and other older people in 
the community; 

♦ Aim to attract 700 users per year; 

♦ Make a nominal charge. 
 
2.8 The Working Group discussed the links between Out and About, falls 

prevention and exercise for older people. There was an opportunity to 
provide exercise classes at sheltered accommodation, which would be open 
to non-resident older people who would be picked up by the mini bus. The 
classes would be provided by the managers of sheltered accommodation; 
however, they would need to be trained. Mr Finney assured the Working 
Group that all necessary training would take place. 

 
2.9 The Working Group discussed the potential to extend the current proposals 

by recruiting a full time activities co-ordinator under Out and About.  In this 
way it was hoped to provide frequent exercise classes, which would help 
with falls prevention, and provide sufficient other activities to cross 
subsidise the exercise classes. The officer also would be expected to 
produce a newsletter for distribution in the wider community so as to attract 
the level of interest aimed at for the scheme. Recruitment of a full-time 
officer would require a financial contribution from the Primary Care Trust 
(PCT). It was agreed to pursue this with the PCT.  

 
2.10 A steering group would determine the strategy for and oversee the 

operation of Out and About.  Age Concern already had been approached 
and had agreed to sit on the Steering Group. Members were of the view 
that the District Council should be represented on the Steering Group and, 
given their level of knowledge in this area, the representative should be one 
of the members of the Working Group.  If the appointment was to be an 
officer then appointees would be required from both the Leisure and 
Community Development sections.  In addition, it was agreed that the PCT 
should be invited to nominate a representative to sit on the Steering Group. 
Other Housing Associations also would be invited to participate.  

 
2.11 The funding awarded to Luminus for Out and About was available for three 

years from 2006/07. In this period the main set up costs of the initiative 
would be incurred.  While there was a condition on the funding awarded to 
Luminus that it remain solely responsible for Out and About, there existed 
opportunities for joint working between Luminus and other organisations, 
including the Council. These included advertising Out and About by the 
Council’s leisure service and via Districtwide, with a reciprocal arrangement 
to advertise the Council’s services that emerged in the long term through 

125



the Out and About programme via Luminus’ monthly publication.  Out and 
About also could be included in the Council’s database of services for older 
people, which is referred to at paragraph 2.20. 

 
2.12 Members noted that sheltered accommodation could be used during down 

time for the provision of exercise classes, for example, by the District 
Council or by the PCT.  

 
 c) Developing the Council’s Services 
 
2.13 The Working Group received a breakdown of services provided by the 

Council relating to exercise for older people, which is contained in Appendix 
A.  Additional information on exercise programmes for older people 
occurring in Huntingdonshire and at other authorities in Cambridgeshire 
together with examples of best practice further afield also were considered.  
In reviewing the information on services currently available in 
Huntingdonshire, Councillor Mrs Chandler drew particular attention to the 
following: 

 

• Impressions – individually tailored exercise programmes for the 
Councils fitness suites; 

• Doctor referrals – individual programmes; 

• Keep fit for older ladies; 

• Healthy walks in conjunction with the PCT; 
 

 Members thought that a comprehensive directory of activities available to 
older people in both the public and private sectors would be useful and a 
recommendation on this appears at the end of this report.  

 
2.14 The Working Group were of the opinion that, owing to the potential benefits 

to older people and its contribution to the objectives of a number of bodies, 
the Council should seek to establish its own programme of exercise for 
older people.  The Working Group noted that the Council’s leisure centres 
were dual use, which restricted the time they had available during the day 
for public use.  Members did not see that leisure centre availability 
represented a barrier to the provision of services as older people often 
preferred activities to be held in local village facilities.   

 
2.15 The Working Group also was informed by Councillor Mrs Chandler that 

many of the exercise programmes at the leisure centres were provided by 
part-time qualified private individuals who were paid by the Council on the 
basis of the number of attendances at their classes. The Council acted as a 
co-ordinator of these classes. The Working Group were of the view that this 
set-up presented a relatively low risk opportunity to extend the current 
range to include specialist provision of classes for older people. It was 
suggested that a pilot exercise be undertaken via the leisure service.  The 
Council would make available space at a Leisure Centre, which an external 
trainer would use to promote his/her own classes of exercise for older 
people. This would have little initial outlay or risk for the Council and would 
provide market testing for future service development by the Council. 

 
2.16 The Working Group suggested that, subject to the experience of Luminus 

with its Out and About initiative, opportunities for exercise classes for older 
people in ‘hub’ villages, at sheltered accommodation during ‘down time’ and 

126



at doctors surgeries should be explored.  Any programme should be 
developed incrementally from the Council’s existing initiative in Warboys in 
this area and of the basis of the pilot scheme referred to in the previous 
paragraph.  Transport would be available via the Luminus Group minibus.  
The minibus would be put by Luminus into the County Council’s Community 
Transport scheme and could be used by public. 

 
2.17 To have the necessary physical effect, the PCT had advised that older 

people should attend exercise classes three times per week. On this basis 
the hire of village halls was costed at approximately £6,700 per year at 
current rates.  Bearing in mind the Council’s own budget setting process 
this could not commence before 2007/08.  The ‘hub’ villages suggested by 
the Working Group were Kimbolton, Sawtry, Somersham, Warboys, 
Ramsey and Yaxley. Although more accurate costings would be required, it 
was suggested that, at present rates, a budget of approximately £32k would 
be required; however, Members were of the view that a nominal charge 
should be made for classes in order that there was little overall cost to the 
Council.  A full programme also would require the use of the community 
transport network. 

 
2.18 Budgetary provision would be required to enable the programme referred to 

above to take place although, overall, it was stressed that it would be at little 
cost to the Council.  The budgetary provision would be required in advance 
to meet the costs of the planned services but it was intended that the 
majority of the budget would be recouped through fees.  Indicative costs of 
up to £54k had been cited for a total programme.  The Working Group, 
however, preferred not to put a figure on the required budget as the costs 
referred to were for a full programme.  The incremental nature of the 
recommendations meant that it would be a number of years before a full 
programme could be introduced.  Officers would prepare the necessary 
forecasts for budgetary purposes according to the level and rate of service 
expansion deemed appropriate. 

 
 d) Training 
 
2.19 The level of qualification that physical training officers would require before 

they could provide physical activity classes for older people was a concern 
for the Working Group.  The Council’s current policy specified that those 
teaching classes to groups of older people should hold qualifications 
recognised by the National Register for Exercise Professionals (NREP) at 
level three. The Council’s Impressions and leisure centre fitness class 
instructors were all qualified to level two or three.  Training for an individual 
would cost in the order of £450 per year. The Working Group were of the 
view that the Council should seek to host the necessary training to ensure 
that sufficient staff were trained to the required level to allow the Working 
Group’s recommendations to be implemented.  In addition, they felt that, in 
order to reduce future costs in this respect, the Council should encourage at 
least one member of its leisure staff to become a qualified trainer in order 
that training could be provided direct by the Council for its own staff and for 
others.  The last recommendation was, however, subsequently withdrawn. 
Although technically possible, it was considered that the requirements 
placed on the Council to achieve trainer status would be so far in excess of 
the potential savings to the Council as to make it unjustifiable. 

127



 
 e) Marketing and Management 
 
2.20 In addition to those referred to above, the Working Group held discussions 

on other related matters.  Members were aware that many services and 
facilities were provided in Huntingdonshire that contributed to the 
overarching aim of the Working Group.  They were of the view that a 
comprehensive and up to date database of these was required in order to 
improve older people’s access to them. This was something that could be 
undertaken by the Environmental and Community Health Section. 

 
2.21 The Working Group discussed the marketing materials currently produced 

by the leisure service.  The Working Group were of the view that the 
Council’s current approach to targeting those aged 50 and over deterred 
those aged over 65 from using the Council’s facilities.  Members suggested 
that marketing materials should be produced that were specifically aimed at 
those aged over 65 years. This recommendation did not relate to new 
services and it was stressed that older people were not necessarily 
restricted to classes and facilities aimed at their age group.  It was not 
intended that new facilities and classes would be provided under this 
recommendation, merely that some marketing should be undertaken 
designed to encourage older people to use existing facilities and classes, 
which were open to all ages.  It was felt that this would reduce the likelihood 
that older people would be deterred from using existing services.  

 
2.23 In discussing exercise activities provided by the voluntary/private sector, 

Members identified a potential problem with succession where services 
were provided by key individuals.  It was suggested that it there was an 
opportunity to introduce greater continuity of provision if there was a public 
sector body, such as the Council, co-ordinating the service. 

 
 f) Exercise Referral 
 
2.24 The Working Group discussed the current exercise referral service, which 

operated at the leisure centres.  If leisure centre staff were provided with 
specialist training there was an opportunity to continue to provide services 
for frail people once their exercise referral programmes had finished.  
Having considered the extension of the existing exercise referral scheme to 
continue to provide classes specifically tailored to those who had completed 
the scheme, this was not pursued.  Members were reluctant to do this as 
there would be considerable benefit from it and there was great demand for 
such a service. It was, however, of a different nature to the main body of the 
study in that it dealt with clients post injury rather than injury prevention. 

 
 
 g) Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership 
 
2.25 The Working Group was made aware that the potential benefits of physical 

activity hit many of the drivers of a number of bodies.  Members, therefore, 
suggested that the Health, Housing and Social Care Thematic Group of the 
Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership should be requested to consider 
adopting the promotion of physical exercise amongst older people as one of 
its objectives. 

 
 

128



 
 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.2 The Older Persons Working Group met on number of occasions.  Members 

decided to concentrate on promoting better health in older people through 
physical activity.  A range of information was considered on the services 
currently provided by the Council, on services provided by other sectors in 
Huntingdonshire and in Cambridgeshire and on national best practice.  On 
the basis of this information and of discussions with relevant individuals 
Members have identified a number of initiatives that might be pursued to 
advance the objective of the Working Group.  The outcomes of these 
discussions have been summarised above and the Scrutiny Panel: 

 
RECOMMEND 

 
  that the Cabinet be requested to - 
 

(1) appoint a representative to the Out and About Steering Group; 
(2) promote Out and About through the Leisure Service and 

Distrtctwide; 
(3) subject to the progress of Out and About, establish a programme 

of exercise for older people at ‘hub’ villages and Luminus 
Sheltered Housing to commence in 2007/08; 

(4) make the necessary budgetary provision to enable the programme 
referred to above to take place although overall it will be at little 
cost to the Council; 

(5) subject to the programme of development referred to in 
Recommendation 3 and the outcome of the pilot referred to in 
Recommendation 8, train sufficient leisure staff to NREP level 
three as required to allow the programme referred to above to 
proceed; 

(6) provide facilities at the Leisure Centres for external trainers to 
provide their own classes for those aged over 65 years on a pilot 
basis; 

(7) introduce measures to ensure continuity of existing classes 
provided by the voluntary sector;  

(8) compile and maintain a comprehensive and up to date database of 
exercise services and facilities for older people; 

(9) produce marketing materials designed to encourage those aged 
over 65 years to use all of the Council’s existing leisure facilities 
and classes as appropriate; 

(10) request the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnerships Health, 
Housing and Social Care Thematic Group to consider adopting 
the promotion of physical exercise amongst older people as one of 
its objectives, and 

(11) undertake a review of progress with the implementation of 
recommendations (1) to (10) for submission to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery). 

 
Contact Officer: Mr A Roberts (01480) 388009 
 
Background Documents – Reports of meetings of the Older Persons Working 
Group. 

129



APPENDIX C 
 

Older Persons Working Group 
 
Breakdown of annualcosts incurred by Leisure Centres to support the “Out and 

About” pilot project. 
 
 
 

 Quantity Approx Cost Notes 
Leaflet Production 10,000 

glossy 
£400  

(£800 if twice) 
Once or twice a year specific to 50+ activities. Based 

on Leisure Centres but incorporating any other 
agency wishing to advertise 

Leaflet 
Distribution 

5,000 £1,000 
(£2,000 if twice) 

(5,000 x 2
nd

 class) 

Requires data base sharing and access to addresses 
of those of target age. Various means to distribute but 
posting might be the best option. Again, once or twice 

a year. 

Instructors 2 per week £2,370  
(£20 per hr x 50 

weeks) 

£20 (Level 3) plus on costs @ 18%. 
Based on one instructor per class at two centres per 

week. 

Facility Hire 2 hrs per week No charge Leisure Centres at St Ivo and Huntingdon will offer 
one hour free per week whilst instructor costs are 

underwritten by Out and About 

Equipment 2 sets £400 Exercise bands and stability discs – Centres do not 
currently possess 

Training 4 courses per 
annum 

£300 
£900 

2 x Chair Aerobics (2 x £150) 
2 x Old Peoples YMCA (2 x £450) 

Training 
attendance 

14 days  
(2x2 day chair 
course, 2x5 
day YMCA 
course)) 

 
£800 

 
Cost based on existing hourly Fitness instructor (gym) 

rates c £8 per hour (7 hr days) 

Total  £5,400  

 

Income 
examples 

     

Pilot classes Average 
attendance 

Cost per 
head 

Total 
Income 

Total Expenditure +/- 

St 
Ivo/Huntingdon 

10 £2.50 £25 £23 +£2 

St 
Ivo/Huntingdon 

4 £2.50 £10 £23 -£13 ** 

St 
Ivo/Huntingdon 

9 £2.50 £15 £23 Break Even 

** Losses incurred on classes during the pilot scheme will be underwritten by “Out and About” 
Group. 

Members of the public who are not members of the “Out and About” Club will be able to 
attend the classes for the same price. These admissions will be included in any payment 

calculations. 

 
 
Subsequent developments for the “Out and About” scheme in relation to the Leisure 
Centres will be dependent on the successes of the pilot classes. However, 
irrespective of the longer-term diagnosis and partnership, the Leisure Centres will be 
producing its own guide to activities for the 50+ age-group and will include references 
for external agencies within its covers. 

130



APPENDIX D 
 
BIG LOTTERY FUND WELL-BEING PROGRAMME 
OUTLINE PROJECT PROPOSAL:  ACTIVE AT 50   
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
1.1 During the summer of 2006 an initial project outline entitled ‘Active at 50’ 

was submitted to the East of England’s portfolio for consideration in their 
application to the Big Lottery Fund’s ‘Well Being’ Programme. 

 
1.2 The East of England’s bid was successful at stage 1 but for a significantly 

less sum than that originally bid for - £3.69m instead of the £16.3m 
requested. 

 
1.3 The East of England portfolio is now preparing and refining its portfolio 

ready for a stage 2 submission. 
 

1.4 The ‘Active at 50’ project was included as part of the original portfolio for the 
East of England and is waiting to hear whether it will be included in the 
stage 2 submission. 

 
2. PROJECT AIM 
2.1 The aim of the project was to promote and increase sustainable physical 

activity which also improves people’s mental health and well-being by 
people over 50.   

 
2.2 It was planned to establish two activity programmes across the 

Huntingdonshire District. Physical Activity Activators will lead and enable 
physical activity opportunities for the over 50’s and those returning to a more 
active lifestyle. 

 
2.3 The first programme will be generic for anyone over 50 to attend and will be 

a general range of activities identified following consultation. The second will 
be specifically for people with mobility problems who require additional 
support to return to a more active lifestyle. 

 
3. PROJECT OUTCOMES 
 The project would have 5 main outcomes: 

• Increased participation in physical activity amongst people over 50 

• Through community involvement develop a sustainable physical 
activity programme for people over 50 across Huntingdonshire 

• Provide training opportunities for volunteers and physical activity 
activators 

• Raise awareness of the health benefits of physical activity through 
the development of self help material 

• Establish targeted schemes for individuals over 50 who need 
additional support to return to an active lifestyle 

 
3.1 PROJECT LOCATION 
 Initially the schemes will target geographical areas of need: Oxmoor, 

Eynesbury, Ramsey and Yaxley before taking the project across the district. 
Recruitment to the scheme will involve working with various health 
professionals and will build on existing mechanisms from the exercise 

131



referral scheme e.g. targeting cardiac rehabilitation, obesity, diabetes and 
mental health referrals. 
 

3.2 TIMEFRAME 
Initially the project would have started in April 2007 if successful. The stage 
2 application if selected now has to be submitted by 8 March 2007. With the 
revised stage 2 submission date and no confirmed date of when stage 2 
applicants will be advised if successful it is impossible to forecast a start 
date. From previous experience it is estimated it would take approximately 
3-6 months to start any activity following being advised of any lottery award. 

 
3.3 PROJECTED NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS 
 Number of individual participants: 500 
 Throughput (total attendances): 10,000 
 
 This would be over the 3 year duration of the project. 
 
3.4 PROJECTED COSTS 

  

 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 

Staff costs 11,984 11,984 11,984 

Staff on costs 2,996 2,996 2,996 

Development budget 8,000 8,000 8,000 

Sub-Total Direct Costs 22,980 22,980 22,980 

Indirect Costs 3,200 3,200 3,200 

Total Costs 26,180 26,180 26,180 

Funding from other sources 8,000 8,000 8,000 

Bid to Big Lottery Fund 18,180 18,180 18,180 

 
*East of England requested that all bids include all costs at current prices with 
inflation being applied centrally to the whole portfolio. In practice the costs would be 
expected to increase by 3-5% annually. 

 

4.0 CONCLUSION 
 

There are still a number of obstacles in front of this project. Firstly it has to 
be accepted as part of the stage 2 portfolio for the East of England bid. 
News is expected on this imminently. The East of England portfolio though 
has had to be significantly reduced due to the limited success of the stage 1 
bid. 

 

If we are successful and put through to Stage 2, applications to this round 
are still subject to a robust scrutiny process and can still be declined at this 
stage. 

 

Overall it must be noted this bid is in a precarious state. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Contact Officer: Jo Peadon  ( 01480 388048 

 

132



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP held in 

Meeting Room 1, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, 
PE29 3TN on Wednesday, 13 June 2007. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillors A Hansard, Mrs P A Jordan and L 

M Simpson 
Safety Representative – C Sneesby 
Officers – J Craig, P Corley, T Davidson, P 
Duerden, P France, H Lack and C Rowland. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors J Davies 
and K Reynolds, K Lawson and S McKerral. 

   
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 Councillor L M Simpson was elected Chairman of the Group for the 
duration of the meeting only. 
 

2. REPORT OF THE ADVISORY GROUP   
 

 The report of the meeting of the Advisory Group held on 7th March 
2007 was noted. 
 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 None were received. 
 

4. ACCIDENT REPORTS   
 

 (a) District Council Employees   
 

  The Group received and noted a report by the Head of 
Human Resources and Payroll Services giving details of 12 
accidents and 2 incidents involving employees, together with 
2 accidents involving non-employees which had taken place 
since the previous meeting. 
 

 (b) Leisure Centre Employees   
 

  The Group also received a report by the Leisure Centres’ 
Health and Safety Co-ordinator detailing accidents which 
had been reported at the Leisure Centres since the last 
meeting.   
 

5. FIRE DRILL - 19TH APRIL 2007   
 

 The Group were apprised of a recent fire drill exercise undertaken on 
the 19th April 2007 at Pathfinder House.   
 
In noting the problems identified during the evacuation, Members 

Agenda Item 11

133



expressed concern with regard to employees returning to their desks 
to collect personal belongings during the drill.  The Health & Safety 
Adviser reported that it had been communicated to employees not to 
return to their desks during an evacuation and if necessary to make 
provisions for colleagues to bring along essential items to the 
evacuation point.  
 
Members also expressed concern that it was not clear where 
Councillors should sign in to Pathfinder House, and the Health & 
Safety Advisor agreed to investigate the provision of a “signing in” 
book for Members. 
 

6. VIOLENT INCIDENT REGISTER   
 

 Further to the subject being discussed at a previous meeting, the 
Group were pleased to note that the Violent Incident Register would 
become live on the intranet, GIS and CRM systems imminently.  
 
In noting the importance of compliance with the Data Protection Act, 
Members were advised of the rights of the aggressor and the victim in 
the process and noted the related protocol and incident report forms. 
 

7. BOMB THREAT SIMULATION EXERCISE   
 

 The Group were acquainted with a recent bomb threat simulation 
exercise undertaken by the Head of Human Resources and Payroll 
Services. 
 
In noting the timetable of events instigated by a telephone call to the 
Council’s Call Centre, Members were advised of the arising issues.  
Although accurate details had been recorded by the Call Centre 
agent, vital information was missing which had led to the co-
ordinators of the exercise being unclear of particular aspects of the 
threat.  Whilst noting that there was a considerable time lag between 
the original telephone call and the information being received by the 
co-ordinators, the Group were advised of a number of actions which 
had been put into place following the exercise. 
 
In view of the continued security measures at the Council, Members 
hoped that future exercises might include Eastfield House and 
Centenary House. 
 

8. REPORT OF AD-HOC SAFETY INPECTION   
 

 Members were acquainted with the report of the Ad-Hoc Safety 
Inspection held on the 13th June 2007 at St Neots Leisure Centre.  
 
P France, Centre Manager of St Neots Leisure Centre reported that 
although the inspection had highlighted particular issues, “behind the 
scenes” most of which had been addressed, the process had helped 
to outline the importance of Health & Safety to centre employees 
which had had a positive impact throughout the centre as a whole. 
 

9. FUTURE INSPECTION LOCATIONS   
 

 The following schedule of safety inspections was agreed: 
 

134



23rd July 2007 – Little Paxton Pits – 9.30am 
19th September 2007 – Centenary House  
22nd November 2007 – Eastfield House – 9.00am - 12.30  
14th February 2008 – venue to be decided. 
 

10. HEALTH AND SAFETY TRAINING   
 

 The Group were acquainted by means of a report by the Head of 
Human Resources and Payroll Services with details of Health & 
Safety training courses which had been held since the previous 
meeting of the Group.  Members were acquainted with the success of 
a number of short, sharp “toolbox” talks on specific training which had 
been issued to employees in the Operations Division. 
 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

135



136

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET                                                                    4th OCTOBER 2007 
 
 

SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP 
(Report of the Advisory Group) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Advisory Group met on 12th September 2007 when Councillors J W Davies, A 

Hansard and L M Simpson were present. 
 
1.2 Also in attendance were Messrs P Corley, J Craig, P J Duerden, S Howell, Ms C 

Deller, Ms M Draper, Ms D Ingram-Hall and Mrs C D Rowland. 
 
1.3 The Staff Side were represented by Messrs K Lawson, C Sneesby and Mrs S 

McKerral. 
 
1.4 Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on behalf of Councillors 

Mrs P Jordan and K Reynolds and from Mrs G Smith. 
 
1.5 Councillor K Reynolds was elected Chairman and Mr K Lawson appointed Vice-

Chairman of the Advisory Group for the remainder of the Municipal Year.  In the 
absence of Councillor Reynolds, Mr Lawson took the Chair for the duration of the 
meeting. 

 
1.6 The report of the meeting of the Advisory Group held on 13th June 2007 was 

received and noted. 
 
1.7 No declarations of interest were received. 
 
2. CORPORATE MANSLAUGHTER AND CORPORATE HOMICIDE ACT 2007 
 
2.1 By way of a report by the Head of HR and Payroll Services, the Advisory Group was 

informed that the Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate Homicide Act 2007 had 
received royal assent in July 2007 and would come into force on 6th April 2008.  
The Act had introduced a new offence for prosecuting companies and other 
organisations where there had been a gross failing throughout the organisation in 
the management of health and safety with fatal consequences.  The Act would place 
greater emphasis on the corporate safety culture and management of an 
organisation and its ability to demonstrate that it had appropriate systems in place to 
safeguard the health and safety of its employees which were rigorously enforced.  
The Advisory Group were informed that, following a review of current practices, a 
further report would be submitted on the potential impact of the legislation on the 
Council in terms of its effect on management structures, health and safety policies 
and procedures.  It was noted that the role of Health and Safety Co-ordinators would 
be involved in this process. 

 
2.2 In response to questions, the Health and Safety Adviser confirmed that senior 

Councillors could be held to account for a breach of a duty of care by the 
organisation but only to the extent of the knowledge or advice they had been given 
by the Council to assist them during their decision-making process.  Following 
discussion, it was acknowledged that further guidance/awareness in this respect 
would be required by senior managers and Members and the Health & Safety 
Adviser undertook to seek legal advice to clarify the position. 

 
2.3 Similarly, the Council owed a duty of care to members of the public undertaking 

activities on council property. 
 

137



 
 
 
 
 
2.4 In terms of the use of  pool cars, the Health and Safety Adviser assured the 

Advisory Group that the Council would be expected to demonstrate that it had taken 
reasonable care to advise employees of good practice e.g. through the availability of 
driving assessment courses and the policy for managing occupational road risk. 

2.5 It was assumed that, in the event of breach of this legislation, the Police and Crown 
Prosecution Service would undertake an investigation involving other agencies as 
appropriate.   

 
3. AD-HOC SAFETY INSPECTION 
 
3.1 The Advisory Group received an account of the observations recorded during an ad-

hoc safety inspection which had taken place on 23rd July 2007 at the Paxton Pits 
Nature Reserve and Visitor’s Centre.   

 
3.2 The inspection had demonstrated that the service offered by staff at Paxton Pits was 

excellent and that their capacity to manage, supervise and protect visitors and 
volunteers was exemplary.  Members requested the Health and Safety Adviser to 
convey their appreciation to the staff involved. 

 
3.3 Having noted that the number of schools engaged in pond dipping appeared to have 

fallen due to health and safety concerns, the Health and Safety Adviser undertook to 
verify the scale of the problem and to consider ways to allay fears and encourage 
schools to take up the activity again.  A report on this issue would be submitted to a 
future meeting. 

 
4. ACCIDENT/INCIDENT REPORTS 
 
4.1 District Council Employees 
 
 The Group received and noted a report by the Head of HR and Payroll Services 

giving details of 19 accidents involving employees and 9 accidents involving non-
employees, predominantly at the country parks, that had occurred since the last 
meeting. 

 
4.2 Having regard to reference numbers 2043 and 2051, the newly appointed Health 

and Safety Co-ordinator for the Operations Division undertook to ensure that, in 
future, accident details were reported accurately using specific terminology, that 
employees responded appropriately to the injuries incurred and that the accident 
reports make reference to whether the wound had been self treated/cleaned. 

 
4.3 Leisure Centres Accident Report 
 
 The Group also received a report by the Leisure Centres Health and Safety Co-

ordinator detailing accidents which had been reported at the Leisure Centres since 
the last meeting noting in particular that one accident had been reported under the 
requirements of the RIDDOR Regulations. 

 
5. HEALTH AND SAFETY TRAINING 
 
5.1 Details of Health and Safety Training Courses held since the previous meeting of 

the Group were submitted in a report by the Head of HR and Payroll Services. 
 
 

138



 
 
5.2 In response to comments received from the Advisory Group, the Health and Safety 

Adviser undertook to amend the format of the report to reflect the number of courses 
held over the quarter and the number of employees attending courses and identified 
for training. 

 
6. SAFETY INSPECTION AND NEXT MEETING 
 
6.1 The Advisory Group noted arrangements made for the next ad-hoc safety inspection 

and for their scheduled meeting on 14th November 2007. 
 
 
 

Vice-Chairman 
Mr K Lawson 

139



140

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 ST. IVO OUTDOOR CENTRE:  RELEASE OF SECTION 106 FUNDING
	4 Medium Term Plan - request for the release of funds
	5 Cultural Strategy
	Compressed Exec Summary_8 August
	Compressed Second Draft Cultural Strategy_8 August

	6 Sustainable Community Strategy (Draft)
	7 Treasury Management Investment Performance
	8 Voluntary Sector Commissioning
	9 PROMOTING BETTER HEALTH IN OLDER PEOPLE THROUGH PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
	11 Safety Advisory Group
	SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP REPORT - NO DATE - REPORT OF THE ADVISORY GROUP


